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As a local bank established for over 77 years in Hong Kong,
Dah Sing Bank is committed to building operational and
financial strength and resilience through different business
and economic cycles, delivering on our promise to create
sustainable and stable growth for our customers, employees,
shareholders and other stakeholders.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Group Head of Risk Management
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Chief Executive Officer and Director of

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Richard Tsung-Yung Li

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
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REGISTERED OFFICE
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 84, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Bank in 1983. He is also the Chairman of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, the ultimate
holding company of the Bank), Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”, the immediate holding company of
the Bank), Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing
Insurance Company Limited and Macau Insurance
Company Limited. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President
of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. He was the
Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology
and has over 60 years of experience in banking and
finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 72, joined the Bank in 1977 and has
served and managed various departments before
appointed as an Executive Director in 1989, promoted
to the Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed
as the Vice Chairman in April 2011. He is the Vice
Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited. He is also a director of various major
subsidiaries of the Group. He was the Chairman of Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited for the period from June
2008 to August 2023. He is a Non-Executive Director
and the Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd.
(listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai) in which the Group
has a 13.2% equity interest. Mr. Wong is an Associate
of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder
Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and
The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. He
holds a Higher Diploma in Business Studies from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and has over 45 years of
experience in banking.

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 55, is currently a Vice Chairman,
Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank and
an Executive Director and the Group General Manager
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”). He
joined the Bank in 2000, and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March
2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. From
April 2011 to June 2017, he was an Executive Director,
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”). He is also a Director
of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited,
Macau Insurance Company Limited and Macau Pension
Fund Management Company Limited. Mr. Wong is
currently an Executive Committee Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers and a Non-official Member
of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of Trade and
Industry Department under Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau. He was a Non-official member of
the Industry Advisory Committee on Long Term Business
established by the Insurance Authority from June 2018
to May 2024. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Harvard University, U.S.A.
and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from King’s
College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England
and Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of
Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of
the Bank, DSFH and DSBG.
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Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 64, joined the Bank as the Group
Financial Controller in 1995 and was promoted as a
Director in 1997, responsible for the overall financial
management and control, operations and IT functions
of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as
the Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank
in May 2011 and was re-designated as the Deputy Chief
Executive and Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in
August 2017. He is also an Executive Director and Deputy
Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”), a Director of Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB
China”), Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited and
Macau Pension Fund Management Company Limited,
the Chairman of DSB China and a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Bank,
DSFH and DSBG. Mr. Wang was the Group Chief Financial
and Operating Officer of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG until
June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor
of Social Sciences degree from The University of Hong
Kong and has over 40 years of experience in financial
management and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 57, joined the Bank in 1998, and
was appointed as an Executive Director in 2007, as the
Alternate Chief Executive in July 2011 and as the Deputy
Chief Executive in August 2011. He was appointed as an
Executive Director and the Deputy Chief Executive of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited in June 2017. Mr. Mayhew
is currently a Director of Dah Sing Insurance Company
Limited and Macau Insurance Company Limited. He
also serves as the Group Head of Treasury, Global
Markets & Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible
for its treasury and corporate finance activities. He was
an Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited during the period from August 2004 to May 2017.
Mr. Mayhew holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in
Chinese and Economics) from the University of London.
He has over 30 years of experience in financial services
both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Deputy Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 58, joined the Bank as Head of
Retail Banking in February 2012, responsible for the
development and management of overall retail banking,
bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth management
businesses, private banking and vehicle financing. She
was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2012 and
an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. She was further
appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank and
Group Head of Personal Banking in April 2022. Ms. Wong
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
Brunel University (UK) via Henley Management College
and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
Hong Kong. She has over 30 years of experience in
retail and personal banking business with other banks
operating in Hong Kong, including Standard Chartered
Bank and CITIC Bank International.
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Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Ma, aged 58, joined the Bank as Group Head of
Corporate Banking in February 2020, responsible for
overseeing and supervising corporate banking business.
She was appointed as an Executive Director and an
Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in February 2021.
She has over 30 years of solid banking experience in
Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and the United States,
mainly in commercial and corporate banking with a full
spectrum of clients in various sectors. Ms. Ma attained
a Bachelor of Science in Economics from The London
School of Economics and Political Science.

Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Alternate Chief Executive

Mr. Chan, aged 53, joined the Bank as General Manager
and Head of Wealth Management in 2009, and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Bank in March
2019. He was further appointed as an Alternate Chief
Executive of the Bank in June 2022. Mr. Chan is Group
Head of Wealth Management and is responsible for the
formulation and execution of overall business strategies
of the Bank’s wealth management business, including
securities brokerage, retail wealth management, and
private banking. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Cambridge and a Master degree
in Business Administration from the Harvard Business
School. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst of the CFA
Institute and a Certified Private Wealth Professional of
the Private Wealth Management Association. Mr. Chan
has over 25 years of extensive experience in various
areas including financial services, manufacturing and
public administration.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 84, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in 1996. He
is also an INED of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) and
Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited. He is currently
the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee (“AC”)
of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG. He served as the Chairman
of the AC of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG until December
2023. Mr. Sze is an INED of Nanyang Holdings Limited
and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He was
an INED of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (delisted)
and resigned in February 2022. Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was a former partner of an international firm of
accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.
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Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in
December 2017, a member of the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of the Bank in August
2018 and the Chairman of the RMCC of the Bank in June
2020 and a member of the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the
Bank in June 2021. He was also appointed as an INED of
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) in December
2017 and a member of the AC of DSBG in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member
of the Finance Committee and Human Resources
Committee of Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which
is listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an INED and a
member of the Finance Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of First Pacific Company Limited
(which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)), a member of the
Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of Hong
Kong (a Hong Kong unit trust whose units are listed on
the Stock Exchange ) and a member of the International
Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business and
Economics of The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of
Hong Kong from December 2008 to November 2014
and a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing
Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015 to
July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the AC
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent
company of the Company) from June 2013 to December
2017. Mr. Pickerell was also an INED, a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment
Trust (listed on the Stock Exchange) during the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2025.

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as
the Head of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in
2010 and served as the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset
Management Company until July 2015. He joined
Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held
various positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group.
In 2003, he joined HSBC Investments (Hong Kong)
Limited (now known as HSBC Global Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited) as Chief Executive, Asia Pacific.
From 2007 to 2010, he served as Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business
School, U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies)
and a BA degree (in Political Science) from Stanford
University, U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kennedy, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in
December 2018. He is also an INED and a member of the
Audit Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited,
an INED of Octopus Holdings Limited, Octopus Cards
Limited, BUPA International Limited and BUPA (Asia)
Limited. He was a financial services partner of KPMG
Hong Kong from 1991 to 2006 and Managing Partner of
KPMG’s Shanghai office from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Kennedy
was the chief operating officer and executive director
of the Securities and Futures Commission during the
period from 2006 to 2010 and he subsequently took up
a role as the Managing Director of HSBC Hong Kong’s
Global Banking Division from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Kennedy
was appointed as Special Advisor to the Chief Executive
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”)
in January 2013 and subsequently served as the Group
Chief Financial Officer of HKEX from May 2013 to
December 2017. He continued to serve as Senior Advisor
of HKEX until July 2018. Mr. Kennedy is a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in
Accounting and Financial Administration from the
University of Bangor in the United Kingdom and has over
40 years of experience in the financial services industry
encompassing auditing and professional advisory
services, regulation, risk management, banking and
listed company management.
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Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 69, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”), a member
of the Audit Committee (“AC”) and a member of Risk
Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank
in May 2020. He was appointed as the Chairman of
the AC of the Bank in January 2024. He is currently an
INED and the Chairman of the AC of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited.
Mr. Winkelmann joined PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”) in 1984 and was admitted to partnership in 1990
to become a member of the first group of partners to
set up PwC’s financial services practice in Hong Kong.
He specialized in the audits of financial institutions,
both local and international. He was partner-in-charge
of PwC’s risk and compliance matters for Greater China
for 14 years up to June 2014. He was also the leader
of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function
overseeing auditing and ethical standards within PwC.
In 2001, he joined the governance Board of Partners of
PwC in Hong Kong and subsequently was appointed
to the Management Board of PwC China and Hong
Kong. Following his retirement from PwC Hong Kong
in June 2014, Mr. Winkelmann was engaged as a senior
advisor of PwC in Hong Kong on risk and quality matters
during the period from July 2014 to December 2015.
Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED and a Non-Industry
Member of the General Committee of the Insurance
Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-IA Eligible DP
Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance
Authority. He was the Chairman of the Financial
Reporting Standards Committee of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) from
2004 to 2009 and the President of HKICPA in 2009. In
2005, he was appointed to the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform and served for a period of 6 years.
Mr. Winkelmann was the Chief Executive Officer of
Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong (now known
as the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council) from
April 2016 to March 2019. He is a fellow member of the
HKICPA. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Business) Degree
from Trinity College, Dublin.

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in March
2019. He was appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”) in June 2021 and a member of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Bank and DSBG in January 2024. Mr. Tam was an INED of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited during the period
from December 2018 to June 2021 and a member of
the Risk Management and Compliance Committee of
the Bank from March 2019 to December 2023. Mr. Tam
started his career with The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited in 1968 and held various
senior positions until February 1999. In March 1999,
Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and was the
Deputy General Manager and Head of Commercial
Banking during 2003 to 2008 and the Chief Risk Officer
from 2008 until his retirement in 2012. He was a director
of Yantai Bank, a city commercial bank in Yantai,
from December 2012 to June 2017. He resigned as a
Non-Executive Director of Nameson Holdings Limited in
April 2022 and retired as an INED of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited in June 2022. Mr. Tam is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The Chartered
Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an associate of
The Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Toronto,
Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years of experience in
commercial banking industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Chan, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and a member of
the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Bank and Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited in January 2024. From
March 2022 to December 2023, she was an INED and
a member of the AC, the Connected Transactions
Control Committee, the Risk Management Committee
and the Strategy Committee, and the Chairman of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Bank. Ms. Chan joined Bank of Communications
Co. Limited, Hong Kong Branch (“BOCOM”) as a
management trainee in July 1981. She was the Assistant
General Manager of BOCOM from April 1992 to June
1998, primarily responsible for the formulation and
implementation of the operation procedures for trade
finance, loan administration and bancassurance
business, and she also led the trade finance and
loan operations centralization project. Ms. Chan was
the Deputy General Manager of BOCOM from July
1998 to March 2021 responsible for overseeing the
daily operation of trade finance, loan administration,
remittance and retail banking business and the launch
of private banking business. She was appointed as
Alternate Chief Executive of BOCOM in August 2002.
Ms. Chan was a Director of Bank of Communications
Trustee Limited from September 1999 to October 2019
and was appointed as the Chairman in June 2006. She
was the Vice Chairman, Director and Chief Executive of
Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited before
her retirement in June 2021. She has over 38 years of
experience in the financial industry. Ms. Chan is an
associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers,
United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
(“HKIB”). She is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and a Certified Banker of HKIB. Ms. Chan
holds a Master of Science degree in Information and
Technology Management from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Corporate Finance degree
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and a member of the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the
Bank and an INED of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in
January 2024. Mr. Cheung worked with DBS Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited (“DBS”) from July 2009 to December
2022 where he served as Managing Director and Head
of Institutional Banking Group in Hong Kong from June
2011 until his retirement in December 2022, responsible
for growing DBS’s franchise in the corporate and
commercial banking businesses in Hong Kong. He was
also the Alternate Chief Executive of DBS from December
2012 to December 2022. Prior to joining DBS, he was the
Regional General Manager, North East Asia and General
Manager of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Prior to such appointments,
Mr. Cheung held senior positions in corporate
commercial banking and risk management with major
international banks including Citibank, Hong Kong, ABN
AMRO Bank N.V., Hong Kong and Rabobank, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. Cheung has over 40 years of corporate and
commercial banking experience. Mr. Cheung is currently
as an INED of K. Wah International Holdings Limited
and Yuexiu Property Company Limited (both are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He is
the Chairman of the Board of Governors of World Green
Organisation, a member of the Hong Kong Academy of
Finance and a member of the Advisory Committee on
Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He was a member of the Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation from
2011 to 2016 and a member of the Banking Industry
Training Advisory Committee from 2021 to 2023.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cristo Chi-Leung Chow
Group Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Chow, aged 57, was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Bank in June 2021 and was
re-designated as the Group Chief Financial Officer in
April 2022, responsible for the financial management
and control functions of the Group. Mr. Chow has over
25 years of solid accounting and finance experience
in the banking industry and had held various senior
positions in financial institutions. He has extensive
experience in financial and regulatory reporting and
tax, financial control, capital management, budgeting,
financial and business analysis. Mr. Chow holds a Master
of Science in Finance degree from University of Michigan,
U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Business degree from Monash
University, Australia. He is a Certified Public Accountant
and a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Ms. Betty Wai-Yee Chung
Group Chief Operating Officer and
Group Head of Information Technology

Ms. Chung, aged 59, joined the Bank in January 2019
as the Deputy Chief Operating Officer and Group Head
of Information Technology, and was appointed as the
Chief Operating Officer of the Bank in April 2020. She
was re-designated as the Group Chief Operating Officer
and Group Head of Information Technology in April
2022. Ms. Chung has over 30 years of solid banking
and IT experience. Prior to joining the Bank, she held
various senior IT management positions in multinational
and regional financial institutions. Ms. Chung holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor
of Science degree in Computer Science from Purdue
University, U.S.A.

Ms. Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Chan, aged 53, joined the Bank in January 2018 as
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources
Division. Ms. Chan has over 30 years of experience in
the human resources field, of which 27 years are in the
banking and financial industry. She graduated from the
University of Strathclyde, U.K., with a Bachelor of Arts
degree followed by a Postgraduate Diploma in Human
Resources Management. Ms. Chan, a Fellow of The
Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development of the
U.K., won the “HR Leadership Award” at the 2010 Asia’s
Best Employer Brand Awards and was named among the
“Top 10 Women HR Leaders from Hong Kong” in 2024 by
The Global Woman Leader.

Mr. Raymond Kwok-Yiu Suen
General Manager and Group Head of Compliance

Mr. Suen, aged 56, joined the Bank in January 2025
as General Manager and Group Head of Compliance.
Mr. Suen has over 27 years of solid compliance, risk and
legal experience in the banking industry and regulatory
body. Mr. Suen holds a Master of Law and a Master of
Science in Engineering from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Bachelor of Science, a
Bachelor of Engineering (with honours), and a Graduate
Diploma in Business Administration from the Monash
University, Australia.
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Mr. Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management

Mr. Lau, aged 54, joined the Bank in 2010 as the General
Manager and Head of Market Risk, and progressed to
become the Head of Risk Management and Control
Department within the Group Risk Division of the Bank
in 2012. Mr. Lau was appointed as the Head of Group Risk
in April 2018 and was re-designated as Chief Risk Officer
and Group Head of Risk Management in April 2021. He
was further re-designated as the Group Chief Risk Officer
and Group Head of Risk Management in April 2022. He
has over 26 years of working experience covering mainly
risk management and other roles in the banking sector,
and also in regulatory supervision capacity. Mr. Lau
attained a degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master degree in
business administration from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology.

Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 52, joined the Bank in July 2007. He was the
Head of Corporate Development, Strategy and Investor
Relations of the Group before the appointment as a
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”),
a key operating subsidiary of the Bank, in November
2018. He was then appointed as an Executive Director
of DSB China in June 2020 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in July 2021. Mr. Ho has over
25 years of experience in finance and banking industry
in China and Hong Kong. He worked for investment
bank, international commercial bank and international
accounting firm before joining the Bank.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 60, joined the Bank and was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. (incorporated in Macau), a
key subsidiary of the Bank, in January 2020. Mr. Lau
has over 38 years of solid banking experience in Hong
Kong, Malaysia, the United States and Macau. He started
his career in banking by joining HSBC in 1986 and
immediately before joining the Bank, he was the CEO of
HSBC Macau Branch.
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The Board of Directors and the Management of Dah
Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank” or the “Group”) are
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and devote considerable effort to
identify and formalize best practices. We believe that
sound and effective corporate governance practices are
essential for delivering sustainable value, enhancing a
culture of business integrity and maintaining investors’
confidence. Good corporate governance promotes and
safeguards the interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders including customers and employees,
thereby enhancing the credibility and reputation of the
Bank.

The Bank abides strictly by the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, and observes the rules and
guidelines issued by regulatory authorities including
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”). It
has complied with the requirements set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual module CG-1 entitled
“Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” (“CG-1") and CG-5 entitled
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”
(“CG-5"), Guidance on Empowerment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the circulars on Bank
Culture Reform issued by the HKMA in all material
aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Bank has in place a corporate governance
framework which identifies all the key participants of
the Group and the ways which they relate to each other
and their roles in the application of effective governance
policies and processes.

The Bank has adopted a set of Board Governance Policy
and Procedures (“BGPP”) since 2013. The BGPP of the
Bank is subject to regular review and update to ensure
compliance with the latest regulatory requirements.

The BGPP has been developed in pursuance of the
requirements of the CG-1, which has laid down
the governance framework and structures of the
Bank covering the responsibilities of the board, the
organization and functioning of the board, board
committees, appointment of directors and succession,
board qualification and training, delegation of authority
and oversight of senior management, evaluation of the
board and individual directors, governance in group
structure, controls on structures established on behalf
of customers, risk management, and legal obligations of
directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The supervision of the management and direction of the
business and affairs of the Bank shall be vested in the
Board, who, in addition to the powers and authorities
set out in the Bank’s constitutional documents expressly
conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers
and do all such acts and things as may be exercised
or done or approved by the Bank. In discharging its
responsibilities, the Board shall take into account the
legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and
other relevant stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Bank has the ultimate responsibility
for the supervision, leadership, operations and
financial soundness of the Bank. In discharging its
responsibilities, the Board actively engages in the affairs
of the Bank and is cognizant of material changes in the
Bank’s business and the external environment in which
the Bank operates. The Board acts honestly and in good
faith in the interest of the Bank, and on an informed
and prudent basis, having regard to the legitimate
interests of shareholders, depositors and other relevant
stakeholders.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
15 members, of whom 8 are Executive Directors and
7 are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Members of
the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors (“ED”)

David Shou-Yeh Wong - Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang - Deputy Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew - Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong - Deputy Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma - Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan - Alternate Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”)
Robert Tsai-To Sze

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Paul Michael Kennedy

Paul Franz Winkelmann

David Wai-Hung Tam

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
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The biographical information of the Directors is
disclosed in the “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Profile” of this Annual Report.

The Board possesses appropriate experience,
competencies and personal qualities, including
professionalism and integrity, to discharge its
responsibilities adequately and effectively. In addition,
the Board collectively has adequate knowledge and
expertise relevant to each of the material business
activities that the Bank pursues and the associated risks
in order to ensure effective governance and oversight.

According to the Terms of Reference of the Board, the
key responsibilities of the Board include:

«  setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies
of the Group

«  approving annual budget and business plan, and
monitoring performance and execution of plan

«  overseeing the development and implementation
of Environmental, Social and Governance and climate
related strategies

«  establishing and overseeing risk governance

«  appointment and oversight of senior management,
and ensuring competent management is in place

«  setting corporate values and standards

«  overseeing the remuneration policy

« ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate
structure

+ ensuring effective audit function and internal
control

« ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness
in respect of the structure, operation and risk
management of the Bank

«  matters involving conflict of interest of substantial
shareholder or any Director

«  material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in
the ordinary business or operation of the Bank),
investments and business reorganization

«  material capital projects with long-term commitments

«  delegation of authority to Board level Committees
or individual Directors (for approving specific
transactions)

«  delegation to Senior Management the authority and
responsibility to manage the regular businesses
and affairs of the Bank and its subsidiaries
consistent with the objectives and strategies of the
Bank, and within the risk framework and limits
approved by the Board

«  appointment of Directors and Senior Management

« actively engaging in succession plans for the
chief executive and other key senior executives as

appropriate

Board meetings are held at least 4 times a year. In
addition, special Board meetings are held when
necessary. Dates of regular Board and Board Committee
meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable
notice is given. Board agenda is approved following
consultation with the Directors and Senior Management.
All Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of Directors. The Board held 4 meetings
in 2024.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated its authority to various
committees to deal with specific matters under
written terms of reference, which set out in detail their
respective authorities and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
and Risk Management and Compliance Committee
were established under the authority of the Board. The
composition and terms of reference of these committees
are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that
they remain appropriate and in line with the regulatory
requirements, the Group’s business and changes in
governance practices. All Board Committees adopt
the same governance processes as the Board as far as
practicable and report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations.

Apart from regular meetings of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk
Management and Compliance Committee, INEDs
meet separately, without the presence of other EDs or
management, with the internal audit, compliance and
risk management functions, at least once a year.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC”) has the authority to
review all matters related to financial statements
and disclosure, audit work performed by internal
and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole
Group. The AC reports to the Board following each AC
meeting, drawing the Board’s attention to significant
issues or matters of which the Board should be aware,
identifying any matters in respect of which it considers
that action or improvement is needed, and making
relevant recommendations.

The AC meets at least 4 times a year with the presence
of the Bank’s executives including the Chief Executive,
Deputy Chief Executives, Group Chief Financial Officer,
Group Financial Controller, Group Chief Risk Officer
and Group Head of Risk Management, Group Chief
Credit Officer, Group Head of Internal Audit, and
representatives from the Bank’s external auditor. Special
meetings of the AC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC comprises
4 members and all of them are INEDs. The members of
the AC are Messrs. Paul Franz Winkelmann (Chairman),
Robert Tsai-To Sze, Blair Chilton Pickerell and Nancy
Ha-Fong Chan. The AC held 4 meetings in 2024.

The AC was established with written terms of reference
and its major roles and functions are as follows:

«  To ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting

«  Toreview the internal control system and compliance
with regulatory requirements

+  To make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor

« To review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards

« To approve the appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the head of internal audit

«  To approve audit plans

+  To review the effectiveness of the internal audit
function

«  To review findings and reports of the internal and
external auditors

«  To review and monitor the integrity of the Bank’s
annual and interim financial statements, including
significant financial reporting judgements used in
producing the financial statements

«  To review the Bank’s internal controls and reports
its major findings and comments to the Board

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(“NRC”) is responsible for overseeing the remuneration
matters of the Bank, and also to review and endorse
the nomination of candidates for appointment as
Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs), Executive
Directors and Senior Management, prior to the
approval by the Board of the Bank. The NRC reports
to the Board regularly on its findings, decisions and
recommendations.

The NRC meets at least twice a year and at such other
times as the NRC deems appropriate.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the NRC comprises
3 members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired
by an INED. The members of the NRC are Messrs. Robert
Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) and David Wai-Hung Tam who
are INEDs of the Bank, and Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, who
is an ED and the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank. The
NRC held 3 meetings in 2024.

The NRC was established with written terms of reference
and its major roles and functions are as follows:

+  To review and endorse the nomination of directors
and senior management

«  To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility
for the design and operation of the Bank’s
remuneration system

«  To review and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the Bank’s remuneration policy and
practices

«  To review and endorse the specific remuneration
packages of directors and senior management

« To ensure that regular review of the Bank’s
remuneration system and its operation is conducted

. To review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and also its committees at
least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board

«  Toregularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
the functioning of the Board and also its committees,
particularly in respect of the composition of Board
and committee members

+  To advise and assist the Board in discharging its
culture reform and related responsibilities
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Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The Risk Management and Compliance Committee
(“RMCC”) is to provide guidance and oversight on the
Bank’s risk management strategy and development,
review risk management issues and the resolution
thereof, review risk management policies and major risk
limits prior to the approval by the Board, and review
major regulatory compliance issues and development,
and exercise oversight on the compliance function and
activities of the Bank. It has the authority to conduct
any enquiry and review on matters related to risk
management and compliance with risk policy and
regulatory requirements. The RMCC reports to the Board
regularly, drawing the Board’s attention to significant
issues or matters of which the Board should be aware,
identifying any matters in respect of which it considers
that action or improvement is needed, and making
relevant recommendations.

The RMCC meets at least 4 times a year with the
presence of the Bank’s executives including the Chief
Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Group Chief Risk
Officer and Group Head of Risk Management, Group
Head of Compliance, Group Head of AML and Financial
Crime Risk, and Group Chief Operating Officer and Group
Head of Information Technology. Special meetings of the
RMCC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the RMCC comprises
4 members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired
by an INED. The members of the RMCC are Messrs. Blair
Chilton Pickerell (Chairman), Paul Franz Winkelmann
and Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung), who are INEDs of
the Bank, and Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, who is an ED
and the Chief Executive of the Bank. The RMCC held
4 meetings in 2024.

The RMCC was established with written terms of
reference and its major roles and functions are as
follows:

« To assist the Board in reviewing all major risk
management policies and risk limits, including
capital management policy and capital plan, as well
as the recovery plan

+  To assist the Board in reviewing major issues raised
by the eight inherent risks and the emerging risk,
including those relating to climate risk

+  Toassist the Board in reviewing all major compliance
and legal issues, including those relating to
anti-money laundering

+  Toassist the Board in overseeing the implementation
of the stress-testing programme, reviewing the
stress-testing results, including the stress test against
capital plan and ensuring that suitable actions are
taken to mitigate potential risks where necessary

«  To monitor and ensure that major risk management
policies and risk limits of the Bank and its subsidiaries
comply with relevant regulatory requirements, and
follow up on non-compliance issues and their
resolutions

«  To provide periodic update to the Board on its
work, finding and recommendations

«  To review any risk and/or compliance issues raised
by the HKMA which are considered significant by
the Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk
Management, Group Head of Compliance, Group
Head of AML and Financial Crime Risk, Group Chief
Operating Officer and Group Head of Information
Technology or Group Head of Internal Audit

«  To oversee the resourcing for the risk management
and compliance functions of the Bank, including
anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing

«  To interact with the AC to ensure consistency and
compatibility in actions and minimize any potential
gaps in risk management oversight

«  To promote sound risk governance and a strong risk
management culture and provide guidance and
oversight on the development of risk management
strategies as well as the risk tolerance and risk
appetite of the Bank
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK

The Bank’s risk appetite is defined as the level of risk the
Bank is willing to take, having regard to its resources and
financial capacity, strategic objectives and regulatory
constraints (e.g. capital and liquidity requirements), with
the expectation that the risk taken or to be pursued is
sufficiently compensated or at acceptable return with
reasonable confidence level. Against this background,
the risk appetite framework is comprised of a Risk
Appetite Statement (“RAS”) and a set of risk tolerance is
established. The RAS covers five key dimensions of the
risks and returns of the Bank, namely the target returns
to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity
and others while more granular risk types including
credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk
and other less quantifiable risks (e.g. operational risk,
reputation risk, strategic risk, technology risk, cyber risk,
legal risk and conduct risk, etc.) are controlled under
different risk limits and risk mitigation measures that
constitute the risk tolerance of the Bank.

The RAS is a high level statement which sets out the
risk-return requirements as well as the risk taking
capacity of the Bank, taking into account its financial
and capital strength and covers a wide range of metrics
including return on average shareholders’ funds,
liquidity maintenance ratio, core funding ratio, leverage
ratio and measures of impact on profitability and capital
adequacy ratio under selected stress scenarios, etc.
Moreover, to ensure that the Bank’s operations and
risk taking activities are in line with the RAS, the Bank
has adopted a set of risk tolerance levels to govern and
control specific categories of risk, which is made up of
major quantitative risk limits as well as some qualitative
measures.

As for the process of risk appetite setting, the Board
determines the optimal risk appetite having regard to
the Bank’s capital, risk profile and strategy. In addition,
the Board is responsible for overseeing the development
and monitoring of the Bank’s risk appetite to ensure
that the Bank is able to achieve sustainable growth
in pursuing its business strategy, operating within its
tolerance levels. The RAS is designed to be consistent
with the Bank’s business strategy, risk and return
balance and market outlook, for the medium to longer
term and it is not intended to be changed frequently,
unless there are significant changes in the Bank’s
strategy and operating environment. Furthermore,
during the annual and other ad hoc reviews of the RAS
framework, risk scenarios covering different courses of
development of the global economies including highly
stressed scenarios are developed for the purpose of
conducting the firm-wide stress test. The results together
with regulatory developments will be taken as one of the
key considerations in the review of risk appetite.

Compliance with the RAS and risk tolerance is monitored
and reported to the Board and the RMCC respectively
on a quarterly basis to ensure that the businesses of
the Bank are conducted within the requirements of the
risk appetite framework. Moreover, the risk appetite
framework and major risk appetite limits are subject
to the review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual
basis, when the annual budget and medium term plan
of the Bank are reviewed and approved, or new business
and risk strategies are to be approved.
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF
THE BOARD

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The
proposed appointment will first be reviewed by the NRC,
taking into account the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
NRC, the proposed appointment will then be reviewed
and, if thought fit, approved by the Board after due
deliberation.

In accordance with the requirement under the Banking
Ordinance, approval from the HKMA will need to be
sought prior to the appointment of any person as a
Director of the Bank.

The Bank issues appointment letters to each of the
INEDs, setting out the terms and conditions of their
appointments. For proposed appointment as INEDs
of the Bank, the factors as laid down in the HKMA’s
Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs will be considered
to assess the independence of a proposed INED of the
Bank. The same factors will be revisited to reassess the
independence of any INED who has served the Board of
the Bank for more than 9 years, where applicable.

The Bank has in place Board Appointment and
Succession Policy. The Board or NRC should satisfy itself
that the candidate nominated for appointment is a fit
and proper person for appointment, taking into account
the following features and attributes of the candidate:

« age

«  gender diversity

«  education background and professional qualification

«  experience, especially working and commercial experience

«  stature and reputation in the community

«  capability

«  professional and/or business management skills

«  trackrecord

« independence of mind (particularly in the case of
non-executive directors and INEDs)

« anyfinancial or other interest in the business of the
Bank

«  otherdirectorship

« intellectual strength

« fitness and propriety

Candidates as proposed Board members should not
have any conflict of interest that may impede their
ability to perform their duties independently and
objectively or subject them to undue influence from:

«  personal, professional or other economic relationships
with other members of the board or management
(or with other entities within the group)

«  other persons including shareholders

«  relationship arising from or connected to past or
present positions held

A Board director candidate has to confirm that there
is no conflict of interest prior to his/her appointment,
apart from clearance under the relevant regulatory
requirements relating to connected lending.
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STAFF CODE OF CONDUCT

To ensure the Group operates to the highest standards
of ethical conduct and professional competence, all staff
are required to strictly follow its Code of Conduct for
Staff (“Code of Conduct”) which sets out at its outset the
culture and values that are to be upheld at work and also
lays down the guidelines on ethical values and business
conduct that staff shall follow, which include, amongst
others, anti-corruption measures to curb corruption and
bribery.

All staff are required to observe a strict code of ethics
with no tolerance for any form of corruption or bribery
as stipulated in the Code of Conduct. Moreover, our staff
shall comply with our Policy on Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Financing of Terrorism (“AML Policy”),
which provides, amongst others, guidance to our staff on
how to identify and report suspicious money laundering
and terrorist financing activities. The Group uses various
communication channels to periodically remind staff
of the requirement to adhere to the rules and ethical
standards set out in the Code of Conduct and AML Policy.
The Group offers anti-money laundering, conduct,
anti-bribery and corruption training programmes to its
staff regularly, and requires them to attend refresher
training mandatory on an annual basis to ensure that
they are aware of the Group’s zero-tolerance stance on
bribery and corruption, and to strengthen the financial
crime risk and management culture.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Group has in place a Whistle-Blowing Policy, which
sets out procedures for its staff to communicate and
report, in confidence, material and bona fide concerns or
any violations. These communications can be elevated
to the AC and/or the Board (via the AC).

REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Remuneration information in line with the requirements
set out in CG-5 is disclosed in the Regulatory Disclosure
Statement of the Bank at the Bank’s website at
www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following
direct link:

http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_
disclosures.html

MAJOR SHARE OWNERSHIP AND VOTING
RIGHTS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited. The ultimate holding company
of the Bank is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. Both
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited are listed companies in Hong Kong.

The Bank’s related party transactions are set out in
Note 42 to the Financial Statements of this Annual
Report.

OTHERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Bank
did not engage in any material and complex or
non-transparent structure that is difficult for supervisors
and stakeholders of the Bank to reasonably assess the
risks to which it is exposed.
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The Directors submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(the “Bank”) are the provision of banking, financial
and other related services. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 41.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$6.17
per share, totalling HK$382,540,000, which was paid on
23 September 2024.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$8.90 per share, totalling HK$551,800,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW

No business review for 2024 is prepared as the Bank
is exempted under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance since it is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank during the year
are shown in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$760,000.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Blair Chilton Pickerell*

Paul Michael Kennedy*

Paul Franz Winkelmann*

David Wai-Hung Tam*

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan*

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)*

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

*

Independent Non-Executive Directors
There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of

Association for retirement by rotation, all Directors
continue in office.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served
on the boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the
year and up to the date of this report is provided in the
“Directors of Subsidiaries” section which follows this
Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The following were arrangements which subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year which
enabled the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in its holding
companies.

(i) Share Option Scheme

(a) Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”’)
Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 31 May
2024, the shareholders of DSFH, the Bank’s
ultimate holding company, approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme of
DSFH (the “New DSFH Share Option Scheme”)
and, at the same time, the termination of the
share option scheme adopted by DSFH on
27 May 2015 (the “Old DSFH Share Option
Scheme”). No further options can be offered
under the Old DSFH Share Option Scheme
after its termination.

During the year, no options were granted to
Directors of the Bank under the Old DSFH
Share Option Scheme (before its termination)
or the New DSFH Share Option Scheme (since
its adoption) and no Directors had outstanding
options under the Old DSFH Share Option
Scheme.

(b) Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”)

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of DSBG, the Bank’s
intermediate holding company, adopted on
27 May 2014 (the “Old DSBG Share Option
Scheme”) had expired on 27 May 2024. On
31 May 2024, the shareholders of DSBG
approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New DSBG Share Option
Scheme”). No further options can be offered
under the Old DSBG Share Option Scheme
after its expiration but the provisions of the
Old DSBG Share Option Scheme remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to exercise of all options granted prior to
the expiration of the Old DSBG Share Option
Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of
expiration.

During the year, no options were granted to
Directors of the Bank under the Old DSBG
Share Option Scheme (before its expiration) or
the New DSBG Share Option Scheme (since its
adoption).

During the year, save for Mr. Gary Pak-Ling
Wang, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew and
Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong had outstanding
options granted under the Old DSBG Share
Option Scheme which were lapsed on
27 April 2024, no other Directors of the Bank
had outstanding options granted under the
Old DSBG Share Option Scheme and none of
the Directors had acquired shares in DSBG by
exercising options granted under the Old DSBG
Share Option Scheme.
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(ii) Share Award Scheme

Each of DSFH and DSBG adopted a share award
scheme (as amended and restated on 31 May 2024)
(respectively the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” and
the “DSBG Share Award Scheme”).

(a) DSFH Share Award Scheme

During the year, share awards were granted
to Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, Mr. Hon-Hing
Wong (Derek Wong), Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing
Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, Mr. Nicholas
John Mayhew, Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong,
Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma and Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin
Chan under the DSFH Share Award Scheme
which shall be vested in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the scheme.

During the year, save for Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong),
Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling
Wang, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Ms. Phoebe
Mei-Chun Wong, Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma and
Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan, no other Directors of
the Bank held share awards or shares of DSFH
granted under the DSFH Share Award Scheme.

(b) DSBG Share Award Scheme

During the year, no share awards were granted
to Directors of the Bank under the DSBG Share
Award Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was
the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding companies a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Bank or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Bank’s business to which
the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding companies was a party and in which a Director
of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the Directors of the Bank is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Bank were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been set out
in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024, the Bank has fully
complied with the requirements set out in the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The Bank has fully complied with such
disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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MEBARIES
DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

B E2024F12831H IEFE R K EH F20255F The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the

3A31H BN AT AFEESTEREEH subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2024

HA) IEHAR HAEARIRIT 2 B AR EE G/ and up to 31 March 2025, being the date of the Report of the Directors

BEEHEWNT of the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(e X 14 FERFHES) (in alphabetical order)

fRIEE CHAN Ho-Tong (Tom CHAN)

BRENEE CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick*

PR A EX CHAN Cliff Wai-Kin

FR{m & CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

BT CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)

BER CHOW Chi-Leung Cristo

F5JKBR FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

(B HO Ka-Yeung Eric

IR LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

2 LAU Pak-Hung

FEK LEE Wing Shum (Sam LEE)

RER LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)

FIRE LI Richard Tsung-Yung

BEL MAO Chi-Dor (Johnny MAO)

HEE POON Clement

FHaZE WANG Pak-Ling Gary

=HiEE WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)

=g WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

FxE WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

TPz WONG Shou-Yeh David

FEHE WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

IR eI YAN Yun-Shum Grace

RiR[E YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

=R YUEN Yiu-Leung (Bacon YUEN)

* BRETSTNEEIENETERENE *  Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
ANBE BB o subsidiary(ies) of the Bank.

40 KHFERITAIRAE 20245 55



AR e W iR
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EZE20245F 1231 H1EEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

PEE
LGB T Do HKS'000 Note 2024 2023
FEWA Interest income 7 12,147,056 11,485,606
FESZH Interest expense 7 (6,858,998) (6,670,469)
FHERA Net interest income 5,288,058 4,815,137
RS E RAAEUWA Fee and commission income 8 1,559,336 1,078,967
R &R AT Fee and commission expense 8 (230,727) (212,165)
FIRBERAEKRA Net fee and commission income 1,328,609 866,802
FR WA Net trading income 9 259,702 164,993
HAnZERA Other operating income 10 59,264 69,004
EEKRA Operating income 6,935,633 5,915,936
EIETH Operating expenses 11 (3,349,307) (3,178,844)
NBRRERSIERI 2 EiEiaEF Operating profit before impairment losses 3,586,326 2,737,092
EERERE Credit impairment losses 13 (1,791,361) (731,311)
MFETRERETEEEZ Operating profit before gains and losses on
Wi R g5t m 2 EiEimF certain investments and fixed assets 1,794,965 2,005,781
HETERNEMNEETEEZ F Net (loss)/gain on disposal of premises and other
(B548) Wz fixed assets (1,758) 2,828
CEMEANTERE BB Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment
properties (101,882) (41,087)
HELUSERAATIERPISRIEEZY Net gain on disposal of financial assets at amortised
P cost 760 -
HEMRATESIEEEEHEA Net loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
Hith2EWEMNEMEEZFEIE  through other comprehensive income (103) -
FEMLEE AT 2 45 Share of results of an associate 677,425 688,957
BERBIRE 2 RIERE Impairment loss on the investment in an associate 23 (15,715) (552,000)
RRHEBEAERE 2 EE Loss on deemed disposal of investment in an
associate (1) (10)
FE(LHEEIEHIER ¥& Share of results of jointly controlled entities 33,131 27,014
PR#RATEF Profit before taxation 2,386,822 2,131,483
18 Taxation 14 (303,580) (281,275)
ERITRE SR FE(LEE R iEF Profit for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Bank 2,083,242 1,850,208
FAEEFUBZNEFHRGEEITHEREKRZ The notes on pages 47 to 241 are an integral part of these
— &R o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZE 2024412531 H1EEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

LGB T oI HKS'000 2024 2023
FEHF Profit for the year 2,083,242 1,850,208
FEHME2ERE Other comprehensive income for the year
AREEEMNEEFRSINEIRNIER Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BHEE Investments in securities
MaF(EstE BHESt A Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair
Hitt2mmEBR TAZ AT EEH)FEE value through other comprehensive income 177,285 298,270
el m g s A RIENBE AR 2 Share of other comprehensive income of an
Hit2miiam associate accounted for using the equity
method 193,649 251,558
MaF(EstE BHESt A Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
HithemlmEmEBIAS of debt instruments at fair value through other
TEHRE B8 R E)F4E comprehensive income 26,907 33,612
FHEEERNEEERGWERER Net loss realised and transferred to consolidated
income statement upon:
—HEMRATEFEBHESEA - Disposal of debt instruments at fair value
HithnrEkm 2 EHBITA through other comprehensive income 103 -
B R 2 EERIE Deferred income tax related to the above (29,387) (43,181)
- _3_68,557 540,259
BB BIMEIB BIRRNER E R Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities (290,718) (156,209)
FEEMPERFEWEIRINIER ! Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
17E Premises
REEMDEITEARBY = #E Reserves arising from reclassification of premises
to investment properties 45,533 -
HBHRE Investments in securities
B m g s AREBENBE AR Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of
HithemEiaE (518 an associate accounted for using the equity
method 2,759 (2,634)
AT ESEBHEHFTA Net change in fair value of equity instruments at
HithemimpEn it TR AT EES)FEE fair value through other comprehensive income (156,891) 1,086,307
B L2 IEEFRIE Deferred income tax related to the above 8,616 (65,481)
(99,983) 1,018,192
MsRER Z FEHMEE (518 Wa Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,
net of tax (22,144) 1,402,242
NirRIER Z FE2mIREREE Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 2,061,098 3,252,450

BATEEF21BE 2T RS R
RZ—EDe

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

The notes on pages 47 to 241 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20245128 31H As at 31 December 2024

B 5
LOBMEF U5 HKS'000 Note 2024 2023
BE ASSETS
RS MIEIRITAVASRR Cash and balances with banks 17 14,131,725 16,395,770
ERITIE12(E B R EIHANTFER Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months 5,409,555 3,151,814
?%T’Ffﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]éﬁ% Trading securities 18 2,006,353 1,739,841
NFEFFE2EESEEA Financial assets at fair value through 18

TE s ERIEE profit or loss 4,272 8,216
TTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 19 4,083,731 3,566,149
FEERRHMEER Advances and other accounts 20 143,050,781 149,116,035
UrEstEEEEHEA Financial assets at fair value through other 21

HihemWmpSrsE E comprehensive income 44,808,705 40,525,842
DUBER AT BRIV SR E E Financial assets at amortised cost 22 35,522,368 39,372,378
BHENTIRE Investment in an associate 23 2,532,810 2,215,131
HEEHIEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 138,097 129,946
&S Goodwill 25 713,451 713,451
mILEE Intangible assets 25 61,005 61,005
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 27 3,816,078 3,640,520
KEME Investment properties 28 708,023 761,606
BPHRIRIEE & Current income tax assets 662 1,273
REIRIEE Deferred income tax assets 34 159,481 165,823
BEA Total assets 257,147,097 261,564,800
I=RE LIABILITIES
RITER Deposits from banks 1,936,236 2,485,044
TTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,839,915 1,279,419
BERZAENERE Trading liabilities 30 498,069 99,853
BRTER Deposits from customers 31 201,710,974 207,303,078

BEITHEE Certificates of deposit issued 32 4,294,996 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes 33 4,146,914 5,916,645
HAhAR B &R Other accounts and accruals 7,847,404 8,076,766
BPERfRIBEE Current income tax liabilities 343,745 287,545
FIERIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 34 91,821 100,921
aEEst Total liabilities 222,710,074 227,977,299
R EQUITY
& Share capital 37 6,200,000 6,200,000
Hinf s (BIERERF) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 38 27,069,213 26,219,691
KREREE Shareholders’ funds 33,269,213 32,419,691
FEIMERMETH Additional equity instruments 39 1,167,810 1,167,810
Emast Total equity 34,437,023 33,587,501
EmkaESs Total equity and liabilities 257,147,097 261,564,800

EEE2025F3H31H A RIS R AE o

EF

FATEEF21B W ARG & %

Kz—Z7e

o]
EFAASIE

March 2025.

Hon-Hing Wong
Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Managing Director

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZE 2024412531 H1EEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

ASERITRZ SR FE (L o
Attributable to the EELTN
shareholders of the Bank EEuTA
fgzs Hithf#tE {REZF  Additional EmEE
Share Other Retained equity Total
LOBIETFoi3m HKS'000 capital reserves earnings instruments equity
202451510 4585 Balance at 1 January 2024 6,200,000 1,948,211 24,271,480 1,167,810 33,587,501
FEHF Profit for the year = - 2,083,242 - 2,083,242
FEHM2EEE Other comprehensive loss
for the year - (22,144) - - (22,144)
,\\JtEEwE% EHMDFE  Reclassification of net change in
NESTERE \Hiﬂ fair value of equity instruments
E‘l‘)\ﬂf‘ﬂ%ﬁ”& at fair value through other
*&’ sMTEREZA EF{E comprehensive income upon
FEE derecognition - 7,400 (7,400) - -
BIMERET A Distribution payment
IKEEFRIE of additional equity
instruments - - (134,636) - (134,636)
2023F REARR R 2023 final dividend - - (694,400) - (694,400)
2024 FFHARG B 2024 interim dividend - - (382,540) - (382,540)
20244F 12831 A 4585 Balance at 31 December 2024 6,200,000 1,933,467 25,135,746 1,167,810 34,437,023

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZE20245F 1231 H1EEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

g A
i oy =

SrL e

AIRTTAGERFE L 2
Attributable to the LT IN
shareholders of the Bank M T A
(152N HAthREE REB&EF]  Additional EHAE
Share Other Retained equity Total
LOBIETFi3m HKS'000 capital reserves earnings  instruments equity
2023F1 51 H#EER Balance at 1 January 2023 6,200,000 562,022 23,077,097 1,167,810 31,006,929
FEHF Profit for the year - - 1,850,208 - 1,850,208
FEHM2EES Other comprehensive income for
the year - 1,402,242 - - 1,402,242
LIRSS UBRIATEA  Provision of equity-settled share-
BRI - B3 based compensation - 54 - - 54
DIBGRESE (S LUBRIR{EA  Settlement of equity-settled
ERR > 45 share-based compensation - (16,107) - - (16,107)
BEIMERMET A Distribution payment of
IKEERRIE additional equity instruments - - (135,025) - (135,025)
2022 RHRR S 2022 final dividend - - (378,200 - (378,200)
2023F HRHARG S 2023 interim dividend - - (142,600 - (142,600)
2023512831 A4E R Balance at 31 December 2023 6,200,000 1,948211 24,271,480 1,167,810 33,587,501
FATEEF2IB W3R GREMBR The notes on pages 47 to 241 are an integral part of these

ES
xz—8b7e

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EZE 2024412531 H1EEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

5

LGB T T sR HKS'000 Note 2024 2023
REFHMZRETE Cash flows from operating activities
KRBT RIRE SR Net cash used in operating activities 40(a) (2,125,967) (1,087,013)
KEEFHZHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BA—HEMEBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary (184,386) -
EEREYEREMEEEE Purchase of investment properties and

other fixed assets (352,660) (275,081)
HETEREMETEEEMSIIE  Proceeds from disposal of premises and

other fixed assets 1,041 17,813
BUCHEEIEFIEREMEABIRE  Dividend received from jointly controlled

entities and associate 312,538 218,377
KRERESFMAIRESE Net cash used in investing activities (223,467) (38,891)
MEEHZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BRBERERS Repayment of subordinated notes 40(c) (1,759,714) -
?"‘?ﬂﬁf@fﬁ?’z Issue of subordinated notes 40(c) = 1,939,796

==L PANE Payment of lease liabilities 40(c) (141,682) (148,964)

%E%%’ ST B2 REERIB Distribution payment on additional equity

instrument (134,636) (135,025)
ZHBREBHZFE Interest paid on subordinated notes 40(c) (384,929) (309,761)
IKEE RN T 2 ZIERAE Dividend paid on ordinary shares of the Company (1,076,940) (520,800)
RRESES) FTA) MAIREPEE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (3,497,901) 825,246
RERERREEERIPEE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5,847,335) (300,658)
FRERERIREIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 18,964,804 19,260,423
ExEE o 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (181,621) 5,039
FERREKRERREER Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 40(b) 12,935,848 18,964,804

%%Z 2B

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5
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o

The notes on pages 47 to 241 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and
related financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s
Republic of China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial
Centre, No.248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2025.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the reporting years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”, which is a collective term and includes
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.
Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the period the assumptions
change. Management believes that the underlying assumptions
are appropriate and that the consolidated financial statements
therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are several amendments to HKFRS that became
applicable with effect from 1 January 2024:

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

- HKFRS 16 (Amendments) - Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

- HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) - Supplier Finance
Arrangements

- HKInterpretation 5 (Revised) - Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

None of these has a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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early adopted by the Group:

(i) Amendments to HKAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025)

The HKICPA amended HKAS 21 to help entities determine
whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency, and which spot exchange to use when it is not.

The Group does not expect these amendments to have a
material impact on its operations or financial statements.

(ii) Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments - Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7 (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2026)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7 to provide guidance as to when certain
financial liabilities can be deemed settled when using
an electronic payment system, the amendments also
provide further clarifications regarding the classification
of financial assets that contain contractual terms that
change the timing and amount of contractual cash flows,
including those arising from environmental, social and
governance-related contingencies, and financial assets
with certain non-recourse features.

The Group does not expect these amendments to have a
material impact on its operations or financial statements.
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yet adopted (continued)

(ili) HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2027)

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of financial
statements, introducing new requirements that will help
achieve comparability of the financial performance of
similar entities and provide more relevant information
and transparency to users. Its impacts on presentation
and disclosure are expected to be pervasive, in particular
those related to the statement of financial performance
and providing, management-defined performance
measures within the financial statements.

Management is currently assessing the detailed
implications of applying the new standard in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

REHEMB2024F 15 1HEERFNDREN There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective
2 EBUBREER NG ES RN AER from 1 January 2024 or not yet effective that would be expected to
BEAFE- have a material impact on the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in
an associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in
the consolidated income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity,
which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for using equity method of accounting.
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s
share of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year,
and the consolidated statement of financial position includes
the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated
income statement for all debt instruments measured at amortised
cost and fair value through other comprehensive income using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended
period of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period
the service is provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any
impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees
and points paid or received that are integral to the effective
interest rate, such as origination fees. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (assets that are credit-impaired
at initial recognition) the Group calculates the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate, which is calculated based on the amortised
cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and
incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in estimated
future cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the
carrying amount of the respective financial asset or financial
liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using
the original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in
profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or
financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of
a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs
of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately
after initial recognition, an expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance
is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI which results
in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an
asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from
the transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises
the difference as follows:

(@) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the
instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can
be determined using market observable inputs, or realised
through settlement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
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The classification requirements for debt and equity
instruments are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the
definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective,
such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade
receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depend on:

«  the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

«  the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:

«  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

+  FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is calculated using the
effective interest rate method.

«  FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises.



p

EXGERBE @

26 THMEEREE®

ETHEE @

) PERERZAE®
B TR @

EFBEN  EBRARREAERNFE
BEENEETRE M -AEEZBRE
BB ZEERNSNRES M
NEHNRE MR H EZEEPUEER
ER-MEMESTER WEREE
RS BR ADEZEREES
FE ) 2R 2 — 210 RIZULAF
BStEEHEH St AIBmstE -AEE
M—EEEEEBRAREZEZEER
BEBEZERN  MARZFEER
WNEMNRTM WEFEZEEEZE
RREHRTEEEEAS - WRIFHEM
EEREERNATMREEANE FHIER
SRBRZEBSTER/FIFERRS A
w—HEEZEMITEMBG 257
HERBRETORFEREN ZBSE
B -ZFEFUDEE THM) EHR

it

MEBAERMEZEMN  HEBEXS
FABEENRE SRS UE S
NBESRRHE AEEETEE/MT
AZREREEARMBEAERNEZ
BN (B A EZETRE) -
FETHER AEEEEEGNRE
MEEREELHEE -2 BIFER
B2 TENEEEE EERR  HitE
FMEERBRIBRZ ZREAREE
LH B WEHIRMRSIARERER
ZHIF Rz R AR R B E
MEESRUATESFEEEZH A
Bm N ENEEe

TARNTETAZSMEE BEEEH
RERESMBATRANEZEMKE
DR FE B -

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That
is, whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the
contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale
of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets
are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are
classified as part of “other” business model and measured
at FVPL. Factors considered by the Group in determining the
business model for a group of assets include past experience
on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key
management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed
and how managers are compensated. Securities held for
trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These
securities are classified in the “other” business model and
measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(the “SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group
considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other
basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with
a basic lending arrangement). Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset
is classified and measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments
that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and
that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets.
Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair
value gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on
disposal. Dividends, when representing a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included
in the “Net trading income” in the consolidated income
statement.
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(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI and with the exposures arising
from loans to customers, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts. The Group recognises a loss allowance
for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of
ECL reflects:

+  An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

«  Thetime value of money; and

« Reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at
amortised cost is presented as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts is recognised
as a provision as part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The
carrying amount of debt instruments measured at FVOCI is
their fair value. Their impairment allowance is recognised as
part of “Investment revaluation reserve”.,

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2024

61



2. EAGHHEERHEME® 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

26 THMEEREE®
THEE @

Financial assets (Continued)

62

(i) EFER

FEBBREHHHIUEMS E
HERERZEGHNREM - HEILEE
B > AEE GG RS BRIFR
BEARER -AEEFILEEETIE
E

. EERANBRMBRE ERES
ARBESHREAEEMATRR
B HNEERNEEE

- BAEMAEREXRBYFER BN
ERMTEERARERNFIED
=/ DR #ERE 2 [Ol3R

o BERARRBIR M HIE R EAM
IEREFRHAR

. RIEZEABE-

o IOAZIERG S RV AIE
BIEEMREHNREEMZES
M2 EREE R

HIFRBEEAER  AEERIHEHRE
RAEEMEERUATERRD G BEE
MEBEFFAEZEEZHERMNR KU
BT B AR A )65 50 B BILUES
HRERR QEAUEEEERRE
TARNBIE I 22 > AL B TR EFESS
2 EMEER SR YRFERRRRIE
EERESE LHEEBEBARER
[RB WS RIRMIE EEMIHE YIS
R e BREEZ E I E N RS Ry
FEW R BR RS A W SR ©

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

(ili) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms
are substantially different to the original terms. The Group
does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

« If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows
to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

«  Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such
as a profit share/equity-based return that substantially
affects the risk profile of the loan.

+  Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower
is not in financial difficulty.

«  Significant change in the interest rate.
«  Changein the currency the loan is denominated in.

« Insertion of collateral, other security or credit
enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a
“new” asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective
interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition
for impairment calculation purposes, including for the
purpose of determining whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred. However, the Group also assesses
whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed
to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the
debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments.
Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in
profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.
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(ili) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation
or modification does not result in derecognition, and the
Group recalculates the gross carrying amount based on
the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises
a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified
cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as “pass
through” transfers that result in derecognition if the Group:

«  Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

« Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

«  Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the
basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria
for derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to
certain securitisation transactions in which the Group retains
a subordinated residual interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the assets have been transferred, and the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, and the Group has retained control of the
transferred assets, the Group applies continuing involvement
approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount
of the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the
amortised cost of the rights and obligations retained by the
Group, if the transferred asset is measured at amortised cost;
or (b) equal to the fair value of the rights and obligations
retained by the Group when measured on a stand-alone basis,
if the transferred asset is measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for:

«  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading
booking) and other financial liabilities designated as
such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
are presented partially in other comprehensive income
(the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability, which is determined as the amount that
is not attributable to changes in market conditions that
give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the
remaining amount of change in the fair value of the
liability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the
gains and losses attributable to changes in the credit risk
of the liability are also presented in profit or loss;

«  Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or
when the continuing involvement approach applies.
When the transfer of financial asset did not qualify for
derecognition, a financial liability is recognised for the
consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent
periods, the Group recognises any expense incurred
on the financial liability; when continuing involvement
approach applies; and

«  Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are
extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders
of debt instruments with substantially different terms, as
well as substantial modifications of the terms of existing
financial liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability. The terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10% different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency
that the instrument is denominated in, changes in the
type of interest rate, new conversion features attached to
the instrument and change in covenants are also taken
into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or
loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification
is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred to adjust the carrying amount of the liability are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
others on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other
banking facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at the higher of:

«  The amount of the loss allowance; and

+  The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the
amount of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any
commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or
that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another
financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts
that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the
Group cannot separately identify the expected credit losses
on the undrawn commitment component from those on the
loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment are recognised together with the loss allowance for
the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses
exceed the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit
losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when
fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the
conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses
the entire contract as described in the financial assets section
above for classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise,
the embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives
when:

«  Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contract;

+ A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

+  The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
income statement unless the Group chooses to designate the
hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value
hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the
relationship between hedged items and hedging instruments, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)
(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
consolidated income statement under “Net trading income -
Net gain/(loss) arising from financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge”, together with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item
for which the effective interest method is used is amortised
to profit or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedge
relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
or is terminated for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due
to repayment of the hedged item, the unamortised carrying
value adjustment (the difference between the carrying value
of the hedged item at the time of termination and the value
at which it would have been carried had the hedge never
existed) to the hedged item is amortised to the income
statement over the remaining life of the hedged item by the
effective interest method. If the hedged item is derecognised,
the unamortised carrying value adjustment is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) from
derivatives entered into for trading purpose”. For derivatives
that are managed in conjunction with designated financial
assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising from
changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income - Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparty.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts
due to other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and
accruals, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements
to resell (“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances
to other banks or customers, as appropriate. The difference
between the sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and
accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest
method. Securities lent to counterparties are also retained in the
consolidated financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in
which case the purchases and sales are recorded with the gain or
loss included in trading income. The obligation to return them is
recorded at fair value as a trading liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are
not derecognised and are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position with appropriate amounts of impairment
allowances made. In the case of delinquent loans on which
collateral assets have been foreclosed and repossessed by the
Group pursuant to legal arrangements or court orders, and with
the legal title of the assets having been passed to the Group, such
loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets held for resale are
included in “Advances and other accounts - Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group of
persons that allocates resources to and assesses the performance
of the operating segments of an entity. The Group has determined
the Chief Executive and members of the Executive Committee
(“EC”) as its chief operating decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining
operating segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the
Group has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Global Markets, Mainland China and Macau
Banking and Others.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s
presentation currency and the functional and presentation
currency of the Bank and major part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the relevant entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in
the consolidated income statement are presented
net in the consolidated income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on
other comprehensive income items are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within the
corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a
distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other
changes in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for
impairment, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation difference on certain other non-monetary
items, such as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in
the investment revaluation reserve in other comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders' equity. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition

of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land and
all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
Over the estimated useful lives
generally between 3 and 10 years
or the unexpired terms of the lease,
whichever is shorter

- Furniture, fittings,
equipment and
motor vehicles

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations
are performed in accordance with the guidance issued by the
International Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations
are reviewed annually by external valuers. Investment property
that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property, or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation
of premises and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination on which the
goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include trade names and intangible assets of
core deposits, contracts and customer relationships. Intangible
assets are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated
useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance
method.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Bank’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position
exceeds the Bank’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s net
assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In such case, the tax
is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Bank and the
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and that are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income
tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset
when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they
are recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of debt
securities at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, is also credited or charged directly to
other comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised
in the consolidated income statement upon the realisation of
relevant investments.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and
by the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation
(i) Share option schemes

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the
share option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of
exercise under the share-based compensation plans. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the consolidated income statement, with a corresponding
credit or adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to consolidated income statement
in accordance with the terms of the vesting of the options over
time. When the options are exercised, the holding company
will issue new shares to settle its obligation, and transfer
applicable amount from the “Share-based compensation
reserve” to the “Share capital” account.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)
(i) Share award schemes

For award shares under the Share Award Scheme, the amount
to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions
associated with the grants on grant date. The total expenses
is recognised over the relevant vesting periods or on the grant
date if the shares vest immediately, with a corresponding
credit to the “Shared-based compensation reserve” in the
shareholders’ funds.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over the
vesting periods, the Group reviews its estimates of the
number of award shares that are expected ultimately vest
based on the vesting conditions at the end of each reporting
period. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative amount
recognised in prior years is charged or credited to share-
based compensation expenses in the current year, with a
corresponding adjustment to “Share-based compensation
reserve”.

Where award shares are acquired under the Share Award
Scheme from the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of
cash dividends, the total consideration of the shares acquired
from the market (including any directly attributable costs) or
the value of shares received under the scrip dividend scheme
is presented as “Shares held for share award scheme” and
deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested award shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired from
reinvesting cash dividends or received under the scrip
dividend scheme (dividend shares) are credited to “Shares
held for share award scheme”, with a corresponding decrease
in “Share-based compensation reserve” for the purchased
shares, and decrease in retained earnings for the dividend
shares.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are recognised when the
Group has a present or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the following lease payments:

«  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

« variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date, if any

« amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees, if any

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

+  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

+  where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received,

« uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest

rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

« makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.

The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so

as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

«  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

« anyinitial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are
excluded from the consolidated financial statements, as they are
not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with less than three months' maturity from
the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and
other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset
is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks.
Taking risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s
aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews
its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in
markets, products and emerging best practice.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy
and policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk
Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under
the authority delegated by the Board oversees and guides the
management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division (“GRD”) and
different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit is
responsible for the independent review of risk management and
the control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking into account the overall business strategy
and direction, under which a robust Risk Appetite framework is
established to guide the strategic planning process and strengthen
the risk-return management. Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite
framework sets out the types and amount of risk that the Group
is willing to take in order to achieve its business plan. The Group’s
risk appetite metrics are composed of key indicators for measuring
capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is supplemented by a
set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits of the Group. In
order to ensure that business is conducted within our established
risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk appetite
limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis. In this
connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement that
covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility,
solvency, liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is
responsible for the ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the
Risk Appetite Statement and the regular reporting of the status to
the RMCC and the Board. Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework
and major risk appetite limits are subject to review by the RMCC
and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and
floating rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive
interest margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide
range of assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by
consolidating short-term funds and lending for longer periods
at higher rates, while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all
claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through
its lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge
customers appropriate fees and commission, taking into
consideration credit risk and market conditions. Such exposures
involve not just on-balance sheet loans and advances, as the Group
also enters into guarantees and other commitments such as letters
of credit, performance bonds and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes
positions in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”)
instruments, including derivatives, to take advantage of short-
term market movements in equities and bonds and in currencies
and interest rates. The Board places trading limits on the level
of exposures that can be taken in relation to market positions.
Apart from specific hedging arrangements, foreign exchange
and interest rate exposures are normally offset by entering into
counterbalancing positions (including transactions with customers
or market counterparties), or by the use of derivatives, thereby
controlling the variability in the net cash amounts required to
liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed
rate assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part
of these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges,
and the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest
rates, hedge period and purpose are determined and documented
at the inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is
assessed at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed,
on an ongoing basis, based on actual experience and valuation.
Fair value hedge relationships that do not meet the effectiveness
test requirement of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect
from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
changes in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-
rate debt securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate.
Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched to
specific issuances of fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-
floating interest rate swaps are matched to fixed-rate debt
securities held with terms that closely align with the critical terms
of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore
other risks, such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by
the Group. Interest rate risk to which the Group applies hedge
accounting arises from fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate
debt securities held, whose fair value fluctuates when benchmark
interest rates change. The Group hedges interest rate risk only to
the extent of benchmark interest rates because the changes in
fair value of an issued liability or a debt security are significantly
influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate. Hedge
accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the
Group determines whether an economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument exists based on an
evaluation of the qualitative characteristics of these items and
the hedged risk that is supported by quantitative analysis. The
Group considers whether the critical terms of the hedged item and
hedging instrument closely align when assessing the presence of
an economic relationship. The Group evaluates whether the fair
value of the hedged item and the hedging instrument respond
similarly to similar risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting
(Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount
of the fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional
amount of the interest rate swap designated as a hedging
instrument. Possible sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(i) changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

(i) the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before
next fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark
rate of the interest rate swap;

(iii) changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;
(iv) the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit
risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not
reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to

the change in interest rate; and

(v) differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

(Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting

The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging

iz HHT Ao instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.
ZIHAE

20244128314 31 December 2024 Maturity

1FEBA 1EE SEME
B SRR —FI 2 E Risk category - interest rate risk Less than E5F More than
LB TF TS HKS'000 1year 1-5 years 5 years
BT BE— TR Hedge of issued liabilities - certificates of deposit
=l Nominal amount 4,293,851 - -
EHEERE Average fixed interest rate 5.10% - -
BT BB BEES Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
=l Nominal amount - 4,270,558 -
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate - 4.99% -
EHHFEZUAFESZ8EES)  Hedge of debt securities held at fair value

FFAEMEEN SN ERES through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 2,182,297 12,566,234 2,536,090
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 3.71% 3.75% 3.03%
SR 2 USRI A SIRRE Hedge of debt securities held at amortised cost
BRES

] Nominal amount 3,412,488 9,188,356 6,265,731
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 2.84% 3.79% 2.98%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

(Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting

EIHAR

2023F12H31H 31 December 2023 Maturity

TFMUA FEUE 5ENE
E\SREER] —F =R B Risk category - interest rate risk Less than ZE54E More than
LB TF TS HKS'000 1year 1-5 years 5years
BT BE TR Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 2,437,126 - -
EHEE R Average fixed interest rate 4.74% - -
BT BB BEES Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,757,543 4,296,215 -
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 5% 4.99% -
EHHFEZUAFESZ8EES  Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
FFAEMEEN SN ERES through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 1,983,923 11,275,548 3,929,084
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 3.79% 3.59% 3.15%
SR 2 USRI A SIRRE Hedge of debt securities held at amortised cost
BRES

HE Nominal amount 2,356,655 10,700,221 8,137,928
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 3.84% 3.47% 3.03%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3L1IFIERE EERE A EFEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting

H@ (Continued)
NEEEHH Fair value hedges
BEREfEEAEHIEE 2SN T - The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows:
2024
fREE
GRMBRAIRA
EileE syl
Rtz EmEH
HRZATE
HhERAREH
Accumulated
i FIEE2UE  amount of fair value
’@}E&ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ HAEH  hedgeadjustments
Z#;‘FIEEZ’R¥E BEWEE  remaininginthe
HaRpaEeR ZATEES consolidated
Accumulated amount of fair value hedge Change n value statement of
EfE adjustments on the hedged item included subjectto hedgeused  financialpositionfor
Carrying amount in the carrying amount of the hedged item L ARHND e & forcalculatinghedge  any hedged items
HWEE 2788 ineffectivenessfor that have ceased
Line item in the consolidated 224 tobeadjusted for
WEEF TR BE &f BE BfE  statement of financial position n () hedginggainsand
HKS 000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  which the hedged item is included Note (a) losses
Bk 4,294,996 - 1145  BETHEE (15,753)
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BEEH 4,146,914 - (123683) %EEH (12,657)
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
BEZNATEEEAEEHA 16,491,802 - (861,805) - NATEEAHES 91,720
Bt ENENERES STARMEEREN
Debt securities held at fai value THEE
through other comprehensive income Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
BRI BRI RVERES 17,469,291 - (1,397,284) - DESRATIR 114,653

Debt securities held at amortised cost

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

THEE
Financial assets at
amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

(Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows: (Continued)

2023

BEEHVERREE
ZHWERZATE
HhEREELE

Accumulated amount of fair value hedge

REE

REMHRIRA
BRLERNE
REE2EmE R

EEZATE

HHEREREE

FRSTEE  Accumulated amount
HA%HM offairvalue hedge
BEAEE  adjustmentsremaining

ZATEES  inthe consolidated

Changeinvalue  statement of financial
adjustments on the hedged item included in subjecttohedge used position for any
A the caying GANERIENES forcalculatinghedge ~ hedged items that
Camying amount amout of the edged tem HHEE 28 ngffectiveness  have ceased tobe
Line item in the consolidated for2023  adjusted for hedging
WEEFRAIR Eid &% BE &  statementoffinancial position in ) gains
HKS 000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  which the hedged itemis included Note (a) and losses
B - 2428028 - (9008) BEIHERE (54023) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of depositissued
BEEH - 5,916,645 - (313 %EES (167,058) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
REZURTEHEER 16,335,053 - (924,665) - NATEHEEEES 350,969 -
E85t \ 2R ENEN STARMEENEN
EHES EHEE
Debt securities held at fair value through other Financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income other comprehensive income
REZMRSIATRN 19,689,607 - (1,505,197) - DESRIATIRR 433629 -

Debt securities held at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2024



94

3. BEEREE®
3.1 FERERTAERE®

3LIFFIEREEERH N EAEEZITET

A®
DTERS @

BRfEE AP TAZBE R PR ZE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting

(Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments

ZBUNF and hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:
2024
RBREE
2045
Bk
ZRTEEE)
GaMBRARA Changeinfair  HESRHAMEGIR
BEHATRZIER value used for ZHHER
REE Line item in the calculatinghedge  Ineffectiveness  WEIRAB AN
Carrying amount consolidated statement  ineffectiveness recognisedin  Z18H
HfE of financial position for 2024 profit/(loss)  Line item in profit or
WG wmii Nominal BE Bf&  wherethe hedging & (F) sE(B)  loss thatincludes hedge
HKS'000 amount Assets Liabilities  instrument is included Note (a) Note (a) ineffectiveness
Sl
Interest rate risk
GlESEEERg e 4,293,851 3,956 2851 {TE&RITR 15,994 21 BATEHANERER
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3WE/ (58
certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
HERE- R ERS 4,270,558 7,839 133346  THSRTA 12,501 (156) EATESHNIERSRE
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3WE/ (BB
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
FEEE- B2 UATE 17,284,621 871,692 10,028 fIESRTE (91,789) (69) FATEHHNEHEH
STERHEEHA Derivatives financial TRZEWE/ (58
Hir ARG ERES instruments Net gain//(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt financial instruments
securities held at fair value through subject to fair value
other comprehensive income hedge
RS- S 2 U8 18,866,575 1,400,197 2954 [T4SHMTA (115,340) (687) FATEIAMVERER
PRASIRRAYERS Derivatives financial TEZ3M&E/ (5B)
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
securities held at amortised cost financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
S Note:
() BRIEBXEANEINREA T MY henaiE, (@) The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each

AREPEENREANEELHREHREZ

HHTAENATELIMERZER-

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in value
of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the change in
fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge accounting

(Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments
and hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)

2023
RREE
W3E
RSV
ZATHEES)
GREBRRRR Change in fair SRR ERAR
BEHHIAZER value used for ZHARN
Line item in the calculatinghedge  Ineffectiveness  WEERAE S HLN
KA consolidated statement ~ ineffectiveness recognisedin - ZJ8H
[ Carrying amount of financial position for 2023 profit/(loss)  Lineitemin profit or
LOBEFmlid)n Nominal BE &f  wherethe hedging HE) s (®)  lossthatincludes hedge
HKS'000 amount Assets Liabilities  instrument is included Note (a) Note (a) ineffectiveness
I
Interest rate risk
Sk P 2,431,126 1,362 105% frEEMIA 54,486 463 RATEHINERESR
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TAZ3KE/ &89
certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value hedge
MR- e EEs 6,053,758 50,159 188980 fTEERIA 169,006 1948 AATENANEREH
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TAZ3KE/ &89
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value hedge
FEB-mE Z WA TE 17,188,555 932,544 1950 fTEERIA (351,041) (1) BATEHTERSR
SHEREEHHA Derivatives financial TAZ3KE/ &9
Hit 2 ARG ERR instruments Net gain//(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt financial instruments
securities held at fair value through subject to fair value hedge
other comprehensive income
-2 2 LR 21,194,804 1,519,696 14630 fTEEMIA (433,746) (7))  BATEHMERSR
PRAFIRRMERES Derivatives financial TAZ3KE/ &9
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from

securities held at amortised cost

financial instruments
subject to fair value hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group.
These obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment
activities, and trading of financial instruments (including
derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee
(“CMC”) and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”)
are the committees responsible for credit policy formulation
and portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses
respectively. These committees have been chaired by the Chief
Executive or Group Chief Risk Officer with certain Executive
Directors and senior business and credit officers as members.
Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management
based upon established guidelines and delegated authorities.
Credit exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored
and controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The
Group’s internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits
to ensure compliance with credit policies and procedures, and
regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The
credit grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and
loan specific information collected at the time of application (such
as disposable income, and level of collateral for retail exposures;
and financial indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate
exposures). For retail exposures, this is supplemented with internal
data such as delinquency status and external data such as credit
bureau scoring information on individual borrowers. In addition,
the scorecards enable expert judgement from the credit risk officer
to determine the final internal credit grade for each exposure. This
allows for considerations which may not be captured as part of the
other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of
portfolio held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending
of retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a
periodic basis by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a
Probability of Default (“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at
the borrower level. A relationship manager will incorporate
any updated or new information/credit assessments into the
credit grading scorecard on an ongoing basis. In addition, the
relationship manager will also update information about the
creditworthiness of the borrower every year from sources such as
borrower’s financial statements. This will determine the updated
internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with
external default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD
master scales are calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit
grade.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)
Credit risk grading (Continued)

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury
and Global Markets portfolio, external rating agency credit grades
are used. These published grades are continuously monitored
and updated. The PDs associated with each grade are determined
based on default rates published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised

below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that result from default events possible within the
next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL
measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance
with HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-looking
information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
are those financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets):

BHRHEDEEZ EEERES)

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

- _
PEER 1 PEES 2 PEES 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FsamEsR (EEREBYiAME B ARG (EEREEE
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk (Credit-impaired assets)

12 {8 B HARITEARIE & 518
12-month expected credit losses

AERFLAERRE 2 T2 FE R
N -

32215 B RSN
ERGUT BN ZIBEELRAERR AT
BT EERIMEEREAREN

- WESFEEME E/EEEFREIIR

B B ERRASIFRERZ
B TRE—AR

- BMEREEMES > EREMEETRER
| REEADRESTR R—HRERL
R

- EEafps (AafE %) 880X

. TEEEEMS BERAEEHRATE
BER

. EBERAEREBLERZERNEZ
BARRIRE - DB ERZRETH K
ERAZEEENRENZZHTFZE
HIPJREE -

since initial recognition)

SHRFEHRE ERSIE SHITRHE B 1R
Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3221 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

+ when there is significant adverse external credit rating
transition for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment
grade to non-investment grade, or one notch downgrade for
bond with original non-investment grade at purchase

« when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from
one notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating,
for corporate portfolio

«  when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

+ when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for
corporate portfolio

+  when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify
the loans is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and
likelihood of individual counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3221 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a
portfolio level for all retail financial instruments held by the
Group. In relation to corporate financial instruments, where an
Early Warning list is used to monitor credit risk, this assessment is
performed at the counterparty level and on a monthly basis. The
criteria used to identify SICR are revised as when appropriate by
the respective credit departments of the portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any
financial instruments in the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

3222 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which
is aligned with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as
“Stage 3 financial assets”), when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

«  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
«  abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

«  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider otherwise;

«  the borrower is bankrupt;

« it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to
the loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify
the loans is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and
likelihood of individual counterparties defaulting; and

+  the disappearance of an active market for a security because
of financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3222 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual
cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue
for 90 days or more is considered credit-impaired.

3223 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime
basis depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial
recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the
PD, exposures at default (“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”),
defined as follows:

+  The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting
on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and
credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M
PD”), or over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the
obligation.

«  EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months or over the
remaining lifetime. For example, for a revolving commitment,
the Group includes the current drawn balance plus any
further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current
contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

+  LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or
other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss
per unit of exposure at the time of default.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for each individual exposure. These
three components are multiplied together and adjusted for
the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or
defaulted in an earlier month). This effectively calculates an ECL for
each future month, which is then discounted back to the reporting
date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is
the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop
on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical
observed data and is assumed to be the same across all assets
within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by
historical analysis.

The EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile,
which varies by product type.

«  For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower
over a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted
by expected lifetimes of loans. Early repayment/refinance
assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

+  For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is
predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding a
“credit conversion factor” on the undrawn limit which allows
for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time
of default.

«  For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the
maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilised amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The LGDs are determined based on the factors which impact the
recoveries made post default. These include collateral type and
projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs
observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in
determining the PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for an
explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc.,
are regularly monitored and reviewed.

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both
incorporate forward-looking information. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit losses for each
portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD,
EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has
also been applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic
variables (the “base economic scenario”) are provided by some
economic research institutions and the in-house economic
research team on a regular basis and provide the best estimate
view of the economy over the next five years. For the economic
variables out of the forecasting periods (i.e. after the next five
years), the point-in-time default risk level at the last forecasting
period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default risk level
of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables on
the PD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact changes in these
variables have had historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the
change in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop
indicator. This determines whether the whole financial instrument
is in Stage 1 or Stage 2 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime
ECL should be recorded. Following this assessment, the Group
measures ECL as either a probability weighted 12-month ECL
(Stage 1), or a probability weighted lifetime ECL (Stage 2). These
probability-weighted ECLs are determined by running each
scenario through the relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the
appropriate scenario weighting.

Although the US interest rates started to drop in 2024, the impact
on the local economy is yet to be observed as the pace and the
magnitude of the rate cut is still uncertain, especially under the
administration of the new US president. Meanwhile, in light of
the lingering shadow cast by the credit quality issue of Mainland
property developers, the Group has proactively managed related
problem loans over the past few years. Looking ahead, the
Group will continue to adopt appropriate assessment and risk
management procedures in the measurement of ECL. This includes
reviewing credit portfolios, considering different macroeconomic
forecast scenarios, assessing the reasonableness of ECL models
outputs, and evaluating the adequacy of ECL allowances.

ECL Model Refinements

In light of the rapidly changing retail banking landscape, the Group
has proactively reviewed its ECL models throughout the past year,
which led to a phased enhancement of specific model parameters,
allowing for a more effective representation of the asset quality
trends within the retail banking portfolio. Such enhancement will
facilitate a more resilient measurement of ECL provisions.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking
economic indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of
macroeconomic factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices,
GDP growth rates, unemployment rates, and interest rates. The
selection of MEFs had gone through stringent statistical data tests
commonly adopted by the industry as well as expert judgements
to ensure that MEFs used in the ECL models are relevant to and
reflective of the risk profile of the Group’s credit portfolios while
satisfying required quantitative standards.

The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based
on the underlying assumptions described in the below table.
In particular, the “base” scenario makes reference to a set of
macroeconomic forecasts obtained from different economic
research institutions and the Group’s economist. “Good” and
“bad” scenarios were developed by referencing the MEFs in the
“base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the upside
and the downside potential variations taking into account the
uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed
data covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.

Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The base
scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic forecasts which
formulate a “base case” view of the most probable future
direction of relevant economic variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties by
incorporating upside variations to the “base” scenario
macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects negative uncertainties by
incorporating downside variations to the “base” scenario
macroeconomic forecasts.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of credit
risk units put forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of
occurrence, enabling the Group to generate an overall market
outlook to determine the probability weightings assignment for
the different scenarios. These probability weights in turn drove the
forward-looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review
and reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided
his overall view on whether the collective forecasted outcome
is generally in line with his expectation. As a stringent measure,
the summarized outcomes will be submitted to the CMC for final
approval. These forward-looking PD and LGD are then used as
input parameters in the expected credit loss model.

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are
set out as below.

SEEHARIIE T8 1 EARTHE

Average of 5-Year One-Year

1420245F12H31H As at 31 December 2024 Forward-Looking  Forward-Looking
BEEEAMEERE Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate (%) HEE  Base 2.4% 2.8%
BER (B R§F Good 7.1% 7.5%
AR Bad -2.3% -1.9%

EBEEMEBR Hong Kong Residential Property HiE  Base 2.9% -3.4%
IEEEE (B Price Index Change (%) RBi¥F Good 22.2% 15.9%
AR Bad -16.5% -22.7%

BEKREZ (B Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%) HEE  Base 2.8% 2.8%*
Bi{f Good 2.3% 2.3%*

AR Bad 4.7% 4.7%*

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

S HAATIE T8 1 HARTHE

Average of 5-Year One-Year

120235 12H31H As at 31 December 2023 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking
HRBEAMEERE Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate (%) HEE  Base 2.3% 2.5%
BERX @D R#F  Good 7.0% 7.2%
AR Bad -2.4% -2.2%

EBEEMEBR Hong Kong Residential Property Price Hit  Base 2.9% -5.0%
2UEE) (Bt Index Change (%) RY% Good 22.2% 14.3%
R Bad -16.4% -24.3%

HRKEZ (BN Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%) HiE  Base 2.8% 2.8%*
R  Good 2.3% 2.3%*

AR Bad 4.7% 4.7%*

Y RBIFEHEE MR R ARIE S 2 TR TR

g_'fio

FtREREETRIE BB ERATE
RREHTEA - NREHR AR BERE
BRI A B EE IR E— S &5 BlE
SESAEFEM AR NE DS > LUK BREHT
1Bt B AT ARETILARAEE -

* These one-year forward-looking rates represent forecast average rates for
one year.

The above assumptions were the latest forecasts available at
the time the ECL calculation was performed. If after the period-
end date further changes in the economic condition that are not
consistent with the forecasts are observed, adjustments may be
made in the assignment of probability weightings accordingly to
reflect the latest situation. No such adjustment was made so far.
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3. BEEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAK® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 BRI B85 E 4B 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3224 SAATEHRE ERS1EEE 2 AT B R @ 3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)
AT E 2 RE @@ Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
DEFTEER  TRFI R RIKEEEREDN The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario,
TIIREEUNT ¢ “base”, “good” and “bad” are as follows:
20244 20234
12H31H 128314
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Lt Base 70% 70%
RiF Good 10% 11%
R Bad 20% 19%
BRI AR U E MG AN A _EHIEIR 2 AR Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated
EMERER GINEREEE  IENBUAE within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory,
B8 BRRABEAFE I EMZ legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but
ZRRHTEREEBBEHARKREEZER are not deemed to have a material impact and therefore no
EEAMEEEGEE- adjustment has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is

reviewed and monitored for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

R EDHT Sensitivity analysis
FETRIEERRERNREIERRAT : The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are
as follows:

() REXHE] \*Tﬁ}&ﬁ&ﬁt}fﬁﬁf = (i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and

NEBITEHIERBEINEE unsecured borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual
repayments;

(i) £ELEEER BEREHRATEER (i) GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
HERREENERFE , & performance and collateral valuations; and

(i) MEERIEE HREHIZBERILT (iii) Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mitENERTE- mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. HBREREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAK® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 FBHAE BE#E51E 4B 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
324 SAATEHRE B RS1EEE 2 AT B R @ 3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)
SORE T @& Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
MUTARERATERERNCBESHRRZTH Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
ERBRMELELESHMNSIEEZ1EE reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
REEEREEEZFE assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:
T Retail
B EEENEE
ECL Impact

LGBEF TSR HKS'000 2024 2023
KEX Unemployment rates +1% 19,205 14,037

-1% (10,876) (8,487)
SEMBEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,244) (4,145)

-0.5% 4,317 4221

YIEBEIRIEE Property price indices +5% (12,538) (5,729)

-5% 15,567 11,651
b Corporate

BHEEHENTE
ECL Impact

LGBEFT 3T HKS'000 2024 2023
KEX Unemployment rates +1% 30,408 26,048

-1% (27,294) (23,225)
SEMBEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% (5,023) (4,953)

-0.5% 5,164 5,161

YIEBEIRIEE Property price indices +5% (19,269) (9,044)

-5% 23,861 12,005
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and
control concentration risk with respect to individual borrower
or counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits
by borrower or counterparty group, industry or country are in
place and their exposures are monitored and reported to credit
committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size
of the overall credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit.
Country limits are also set up with reference to the sovereign credit
rating from international credit rating agencies. All these limits aim
to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will
obtain collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control
credit risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative
positions, the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved
financial institutions, and uses established market practices on
credit support and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk
exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for
individual financial institution counterparty, including valuation
limit for derivatives, is approved by the GCC with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of individual counterparty.
The acceptable types of collateral and their characteristics are
established within the credit policies, as are the respective
margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation establishes
the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any
collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess
the necessity to withdraw the credit line in cases where the
credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these
commitments do not expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions
are based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile,
cashflow position and ability to repay.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
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(a) Loansand advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

. Mortgages over properties;

«  Charges over business assets such as premises and
accounts receivable;

« Charges over financial instruments such as debt
securities and equities;

«  Charges over deposits; and
«  Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower
as soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant
individual loans and advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are
managed as part of the credit risk control and monitoring
process in respect of the counterparty including credit
controls such as setting individual limit for valuation risk,
daily settlement limits and performing periodic credit
assessment. Moreover, the Group requires derivative
contract counterparties to enter into International Swaps
and Derivatives Association Agreement or analogous master
agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice
of close-out netting arrangement in the event of default or
early termination and in accordance with the regulatory
requirements.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when
it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing
enforcement activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is
foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. The outstanding contractual amounts of
such assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2024
was HK$1,036 million (2023: HK$1,160 million).



3. BEEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAKR® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

325 K5I AIFE Z I Rt IS B e 75T 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
Ziisls BREE other credit enhancements

TREsEMIAENGEERERZ D T3 The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure

THEENRAEZREELETIIRA of financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount

EEZEETMEEZ R EERME of financial assets below also represents the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk on these assets.

(1) BEERETMENEREE (1) Financial assets subject to impairment
20245F12H31H At 31 December 2024
IREfE/ 2EEE
Gross carrying/notional amount
EHREE
HHREE  REBIUT Bk
E% Special  Sub-standard A5 ECL ]
LOEEFlid)n HKS'000 Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RINERRER Balance and placements with banks 19,547,209 - - 19,547,209 5929 19,541,280
—PEEL - Stagel 19,547,209 - - 19,547,209 5929 19,541,280
—PER - Stage2 - - - - - -
—&E3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
WATE:r 2B HEHA Debt instruments at fair value through
B 2ENENERIA other comprehensive income 44,301,386 - 11,647 44,379,033 108,787 44,270,246
—[REL - Stagel 43,835,507 - - 43,835,507 37,825 43,797,682
—BER - Stage2 465,879 - - 465,879 481 465,398
—[5E3 - Stage3 - = 71,647 71,647 70,481 7,166
DB ATIRNEH TR Debt instruments at amortised cost 35,554,370 - - 35554370 32,002 35,522,368
—[REL - Stagel 34,041,838 - - 34,941,838 31,093 34,910,745
—BER - Stage2 612,532 - - 612,532 909 611,623
—f&83 - Stage3 - = - - - -
RREDREH Loans and advances to customers 131,979,447 1,957,155 4,437,683 138,374,285 1,532,345 136,841,940
—PEHEL - Stagel 115,077,826 - - 115,077,826 385,262 114,692,564
—BER - Stage2 16,901,621 1,957,155 - 18,858,776 274,004 18,584,682
—[BE3 - Stage3 - - 4,437,683 4,437,683 872,989 3,564,694
E5ZE Trade bills 1,476,539 - - 1,476,539 1,121 1,475,412
—MEE - Stagel 1,475,878 - - 1,475,878 1,126 1,474,752
—BER - Stage2 661 - - 661 1 660
—[BE3 - Stage3 - = - - - -
st FIEREMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 4,643,710 24,864 86,033 4,754,607 21,178 4,733,429
—PEEL - Stagel 4,582,861 - - 4,582,861 7,719 4,575,142
—BER - Stage2 60,849 24,364 - 85,713 906 84,807
—[5E3 - Stage3 - = 86,033 86,033 12,553 73,480
EFREMER RYBER Loan and other commitments, and
financial guarantees 64,180,544 10,777 1,643 64,192,964 66,265 64,126,699
—[BE - Stagel 62,542,143 - - 62,542,143 62,287 62,479,856
—fBER - Stage2 1,638,401 10,777 - 1,649,178 3,978 1,645,200
—[EHE3 - Stage3 - - 1,643 1,643 - 1,643
=5 Total 301,683,205 1,992,796 4,603,006 308,279,007 1,767,633 306,511,374
ERBLFMBENE B5RURFEE For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
StERHEH S AHMEEWR@NER instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
TEREZAEBRTEMNREEMREETRAR maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.

2IERETRIE A
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3. HBREREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAK® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 K5I AIFE Z I am s Bt IS B e 757 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
ZREIEERE @& other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) EEREMENEMEE® (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
2023F12831H At 31 December 2023
REE/ G528
Gross carrying/notional amount
HEE
BT RBIAUT BiEER
i Special  Sub-standard =E ECL et
LBETF AT HKS'000 Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RINERRER Balance and placements with banks 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5534 19,547,584
ol - Stagel 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5534 19,547,584
—PEER - Stage2 - - - - - -
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
DATHE3HE B HEF A\ 22 Debt instruments at fair value through
WENEETA other comprehensive income 40,071,584 - 78,113 40,149,697 81,886 40,067,811
—PEE - Stagel 40,071,584 - - 40,071,584 34,356 40,037,228
—PEE - Stage2 - - - - - -
—[EHE3 - Stage3 - - 78,113 78,113 47530 30,583
DM AT IR EE A Debt instruments at amortised cost 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,928 39,372,378
A - Stagel 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,928 39,372,378
—BER - Stage2 - - - - - -
—[BE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
RREDREH Loans and advances to customers 138,418,175 1,851,740 2779561 143,049,476 1113256 141,936,220
—PEE - Stagel 128,604,667 - - 128,604,667 364345 128240322
) - Stage2 9,813,508 1,851,740 - 11,665,248 263,656 11,401,592
—MEE3 - Stage3 - - 2,779,561 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306
EES Trade bills 2,060,317 - - 2,060,317 2,981 2,057,336
—PEE - Stagel 2,060,143 - - 2,060,143 2981 2,057,162
—PEER - Stage2 174 - - 174 - 174
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
e FIS REMIRE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,054,974 20,487 67,933 5,143,394 20915 5,12479
A - Stagel 5,004,796 - - 5,004,796 6,979 5,017,817
) - Stage2 30,178 20,487 - 50,665 2,907 47,758
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - 67,933 67,933 11,029 56,904
BFREMER RYBER Loan and other commitments, and
financial guarantees 68,765,937 6,550 - 68,772,487 68,318 68,704,169
—MEE - Stagel 66,993,660 - - 66,993,660 65,861 66,927,799
) - Stage2 1,772,217 6,550 - 1,778,827 2457 1,776,370
—[BE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
Bt Total 313,337,411 1,878,777 2925607 318,141,795 1333818 316,807,977
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or

other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans for which
borrowers are current in meeting commitments and for which
the full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the
Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans with
which borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may
lead to credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan
quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to
13 of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents
loans in which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness
that is likely to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full
is improbable and the Group expects to sustain a loss of
principal and/or interest; or loans that are considered
uncollectible after all collection options have been exhausted.
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3. BEEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAK® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 K5I AIFE Z I am s Bt IS B e 757 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
ZREIEEREE @@ other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) EEREMENEMEE® (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
BE Treasury
FUARTER B2 NEMEETRABB- Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with
FU 2 XZEFRIRE internal credit rating of BB- or above.
FAAR M RIRS . B BN EET AR A Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
B+EB-Z X ZHFHIE R counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.
FIER T RARHA T B BREMEETR Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
BCCHE AT 2 R ZHFH R counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.
(2) BEFRENEMEE (2) Financial assets not subject to impairment
EREE
Gross carrying amount

LGB F T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
FER S ARNEE Trading assets

—f&%E - Debt securities 2,006,353 1,739,841

—TET A - Derivatives 1,800,047 1,062,388
HAHTETA Hedging derivatives 2,283,684 2,503,761
M aEstE2 B EEEEr ABEN Financial assets at fair value through

SREE profit or loss

—REEE - Investment funds 4,272 8,216
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or

other credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further

assessed with reference to the following:

«  Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the

portfolio, are backed by collateral;

+  Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
constituted 3.21% (2023: 1.94%) of the total loans and

advances to customers; and

o 80% (2023: 74%) of the investments in debt securities and

other bills have at least an A-credit rating.

3.2.6 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

LGB T Tism HKS'000 2024 2023
BRI BR4EER Gross loans and advances 138,374,285 143,049,476
0BR © RBEZEBEEER Less: total impairment allowances (1,532,345) (1,113,256)
FEE Net 136,841,940 141,936,220
EERBEZEREBR Credit-impaired loans and advances 4,437,683 2,779,561
$0BR : BEER3 REZEME Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (872,989) (485,255)
RER Net 3,564,694 2,294,306
FRERRAFE Fair value of collateral held* 3,620,776 1,707,443
EEREERRBTEE R ERRBRARZER DL Credit-impaired loans and advances as

a % of total loans and advances

to customers 3.21% 1.94%

* %ﬁ}ﬁE:QZF@E@?F%EEW%FE@&E%HEE
B MEPRGEERE

*

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. HBREREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAK® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 B R @ 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

TRYMEE BRI TARAAR Z REEHED The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance
IMEER LR Z B2tEe as a percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad

internal rating classes.

2024 2023
EZEE B
{EEFREREE L ERERER
BOLE Bt
BERBKEHR  Impairment EFUREE Impairment
B2 allowance as Aot allowance as
Loans and a% of loan Loans and a% of loan
advances balance advances balance
% % % %
bl Class
1—IE8 1-pass 95.4 0.4 96.8 0.3
2—HERIREE 2-special mention 1.4 6.8 1.3 10.0
3—WRFIAT 3-sub-standard or below 3.2 19.7 1.9 17.5

100.0 1.1 100.0 0.8
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3.

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Loansand advances to customers that are credit-impaired
under HKFRS 9

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

WU collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
EET=E it
HRIREE ATE
R\BR4REE REZERE Net Fair value
2024F12H31H At 31 December 2024 Gross Impairment carrying  of collateral
LGB IEF TS HKS'000 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER : Loans to individual:
—(EA< - Credit cards 15,277 13,196 2,081 -
—HEER - Mortgages 450,745 130,758 319,987 395,854
—EHfh - Others 427,012 150,908 276,104 40,771
EER Loans to corporate entities:
—BHEXR - Term loans 3,081,262 463,470 2,617,792 2,788,685
—ZBER - Mortgages 177,945 10,184 167,761 175,788
—B5mE - Trade finance 157,439 33,944 123,495 117,308
—HAfth - Others 128,003 70,529 57,474 102,370
EERBEZEREE Total credit-impaired loans 4,437,683 872,989 3,564,694 3,620,776
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3. HBEAMRERE® 3.
32 EERR @
326 BRIRZ @@

() HREBUBREERBSRFEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(a) Loansand advances to customers that are credit-impaired

120

BEZERERKRBER @ under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
FEERmD
FEIREE S
R fmAREE EZERE Net Fair value
20237 12H31H At 31 December 2023 Gross Impairment carrying of collateral
LGB T T3 HKS'000 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER Loans to individual:
—fER* - Credit cards 13,055 11,265 1,790 -
—ZIBER - Mortgages 336,922 60,443 276,479 315,248
—Efh - Others 295,157 118,753 176,404 51,617
hEER Loans to corporate entities:
—BHEMR - Term loans 1,834,850 195,196 1,639,654 1,073,352
—BIBER - Mortgages 49,254 12,842 36,412 47,724
BSmE - Trade finance 123,826 30,069 93,757 101,265
—Efh - Others 126,497 56,687 69,810 118,237
EEREZEREEE Total credit-impaired loans 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306 1,707,443
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32 EERR @
326 BRIRZ @@
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i)  Gross amount of overdue loans

2024 2023
BHAIRERE mEAREE
B4azE Bisazs
Gross Gross
amount {h4R%E amount {H48%R
of overdue BoLE of overdue Bott
LGB T3 HKS'000 loans % of total loans % of total
KEEBRLERRBAN  Gross loans and advances to
4azE Wil customers which have been
overdue for:
—3EAMULZ6@EA - six months or less but over
three months 2,104,322 1.52 344,615 0.24
—6EA MU EZE15 - one year or less but over
six months 778,884 0.56 664,811 0.46
—1FEM E - over one year 926,024 0.67 1,158,163 0.81
3,809,230 2.75 2,167,589 1.51
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3. BEEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAK® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 B R @ 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(2) BERRERA MU L2 ERRBH @ (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(Continued)
(i) EEIREERESN KRB ZRE (i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
EERATAFmE against overdue loans and advances
BRRER
KEEHE gl ERE  EIRRKAE PEER3
Outstanding B FEREDG RIEL R W
amount of Current Portion Portion Stage 3
2024F12831H At 31 December 2024 loansand  market value covered not covered impairment
LGBEF s HKS'000 advances  ofcollateral by collateral by collateral allowances
HHREER A Overdue loans and advances to customers
BT 3,809,230 4,773,407 3,253,094 556,136 694,499
RMEEHE Rt ERE REmRAE BEER3
Outstanding BihE  FEESD IS HEERE
amount of Current Portion Portion Stage 3
2023F 128314 At 31 December 2023 loans and market value covered not covered impairment
LGB FTlidlm HKS'000 advances  ofcollateral ~ bycollateral by collateral allowances
BRREERR Overdue loans and advances to customers
(e 2,167,589 2,615,092 1,553,890 613,699 228,158
FEZIRHRREERIRRPER % Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
BYERIBFEMEEEENR mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed
fho assets such as equipment.
(R) LEHED CHr\BEELRZE (c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in overdue
HIE™) loans and advances shown above
{L4E%EE {G4E%E
Bt Bt
LOBIETF i3 HKS'000 2024 % of total 2023 %oftotal
BREMRER Loans and advances to customers 360,912 0.26 405,780 0.28
FEESSRBEZER Stage 3 impairment allowances 116,075 115,036
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.7 Trade bills

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no balance of trade
bills that were overdue for more than 3 months.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

LOBIE T3 HKS'000 2024 2023

BEME Nature of assets
EIkY/ES Repossessed properties 426,280 252,687
Hih Others 1,440 925
427,720 253,612

W eI RIZEITERBIREE » BIRUE
RLUBE AR Z (ERAKREEES

{H 5t Pl B IR 48 (E %456,184,00078 7T (20234 !
58,181,000/ 7T) 2 7£ HR B Y I B A T H )
¥ AEERBEPEAMARER Z AL
AT E LA E R K BN o ZZIRIR a2 2 3R
sz THMEBE B MHRIEBEEZ
BE B ERMEWAR LTS -

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a
total estimated realisable value of HK$56,184,000 (2023:
HK$58,181,000), which had been foreclosed and repossessed by
the Group pursuant to orders issued by courts in Mainland China,
represent assets held by the Group for resale and have been
reported under “Other assets” in Note 29. The relevant loans had
been derecognised.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s
ECL allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan
commitments and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.

T Retail
4241 PEER2 PEER3 &%
BHEE BHEE EHEE HEHEE
R E R E EIR%EE 1R
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LGB Flidn HKS'000 ECLallowance  ECLallowance  ECLallowance  ECLallowance
202451810 At 1 January 2024 278,598 76,739 190,461 545,798
2702 Transfers:
B R Transfer to Stage 1 18,118 (11,048) (7,070) =
B R Transfer to Stage 2 (5,247) 15,286 (10,039) =
B RS Transfer to Stage 3 (30,137) (30,402) 60,539 =
PR B R EEREMEL Y Effect of stage transfers and changes

% in allowance (10,817) 10,783 482,928 482,894
HARITRE B AT HEE R New financial assets originated, purchased or

JEREE derecognised during the period 71,642 16,279 (20,650) 67,271
BT BIBRE BN Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/

RRAIE/BIEMEARER forward-looking assumptions (20,843) 6,508 102,853 88,518

FRRRARIR Unwind of discount 833 643 169 1,645
i G} Write-offs - - (504,302) (504,302)
SN R H At ) Foreign exchange and other movements (57) (56) (27) (140)
20245 12A31H At 31 December 2024 302,090 84,732 294,862 681,684
2023F181H At 1 January 2023 301,393 43,466 232,932 577,791
5 Transfers:
B R Transfer to Stage 1 7,800 (5,227) (2,573) -
B R Transfer to Stage 2 (6,259) 38,425 (32,166) -
BB RS Transfer to Stage 3 (25,868) (18,830) 44,698 -
MERERLEGESFMELTZFE  Effect of stage transfers and changes in allowance (4,595) 11,755 339,157 346,317
HARITRE B AT EE R New financial assets originated, purchased or

ZEMEE derecognised during the period 55,948 17,767 (6,880) 66,835
BINTIRE BIBRE BH Changes in PDs/LGDS/EADs/

RRAIE/BIREMEARER & forward-looking assumptions (50,112) (11,140) 48,651 (12,601)
FRRAALIR Unwind of discount 363 570 76 1,009
i G} Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
HNEEE R L {23 Foreign exchange and other movements (72) (47) - (119)
2023F 12318 At 31 December 2023 278,598 76,739 190,461 545,798

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5




3. BEEREE®
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.9FHEEE B 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
1aE Corporate
PER 32) PEER3 =H
RHEE RHiEE HHEE HHEE
BELEE R EiR%EE iR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LOBIEFTlidm HKS'000 ECLallowance  ECLallowance  ECLallowance  ECL allowance
204F151A At 1 January 2024 151,608 189,374 294,794 635,776
Bi% . Transfers:
BHERE Transfer to Stage 1 12,214 (5,229) (6,985) -
BRERR Transfer to Stage 2 (17,824) 17,824 = =
B ERER3 Transfer to Stage 3 (3,872) (104,413) 108,285 -
MBS RERESmESL Y Effect of stage transfers and changes

o7 in allowance (2,827) 24,688 364,745 386,606
HAPOHTR A B A SR B R SR New financial assets originated, purchased or

ZERMEE derecognised during the period 7,368 5,231 (24,144) (11,545)
BRSMAE BBAEEY Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/

BRI/ AR RE 2 28 forward-looking assumptions (894) 64,935 768,345 832,386

FERRALIR Unwind of discount 128 1,420 1,430 2,978
b6 Write-offs - - (928,217) (928,217)
SN R H At ) Foreign exchange and other movements (442) (490) (126) (1,058)
2044128310 At 31 December 2024 145,459 193,340 578,127 916,926
20351818 At1 January 2023 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
Bi% . Transfers:
BEERE Transfer to Stage 1 20,345 (19,629) (716) -
BEERE Transfer to Stage 2 (17,535) 17,535 - -
R R Transfer to Stage 3 (123) (200,220) 200,343 -
MBS R ERESMESL Y Effect of stage transfers and changes

T2 in allowance (8,115) 19,807 174,078 185,770
HARHTRE A SRRl 2 New financial assets originated, purchased or

SHEE derecognised during the period 10,497 43,908 (19,597) 34,808
BRSMAE BNBAEEY Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/

BRI RRZ 2 forward-looking assumptions (48,113) 17,929 257,298 227,114
b Unwind of discount 396 1,579 508 2,483
HisH Write-offs = S (971,199) (971,199)
SNE R H At ) Foreign exchange and other movements (290) (89) (42) (421)
2023128311 At 31 December 2023 151,608 189,374 294,794 635,776
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross
exposure (in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of
loans and advances to customers and notional amount of loan

BRo commitments and financial guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.
T Retail
i42a] FER2 PEER3 CEH
R E4E%E et R
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

LBEFisn HKS'000 Grossexposure  Gross exposure  Gross exposure  Gross exposure
202451815 At 1 January 2024 107,967,360 832,049 645,134 109,444,543
=702 Transfers:
BRERER Transfer to Stage 1 203,553 (181,955) (21,598) =
B R Transfer to Stage 2 (528,991) 550,985 (21,994) =
B R Transfer to Stage 3 (740,341) (186,450) 926,791 =
MIGHED AR FESD Origination, derecognition,

E— T ERNER further lending and repayment (1,819,358) (109,880) (130,746) (2,059,984)
i e Write-offs - - (504,302) (504,302)
SME R H A= Foreign exchange and

other movements (46,912) (725) (150) (47,787)
20245128310 At 31 December 2024 105,035,311 904,024 893,135 106,832,470
203E151H At 1 January 2023 108,270,902 549,368 608,783 109,429,053
=702 Transfers:
B ERER Transfer to Stage 1 91,960 (69,081) (22,879) -
B R Transfer to Stage 2 (499,145) 576,495 (77,350) -
B R Transfer to Stage 3 (449,421) (154,194) 603,615 -
MIGHED AR FESD Origination, derecognition,

E—FERNER further lending and repayment 581,670 (70,277) (33,527) 477,866
i Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SME R H A= Foreign exchange and

other movements (28,606) (262) (74) (28,942)
2023F12831H At 31 December 2023 107,967,360 832,049 645,134 109,444,543
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3.

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.9FHEEE B 3.2.9 Loss allowance (continued)
1aE Corporate
PERL 32) PEER3 =H
il et et R
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
VBB s HKS'000 Grossexposure  Gross exposure  Gross exposure  Gross exposure
20451818 At 1 January 2024 87,630,967 12,612,026 2,134,427 102,377,420
Bi% . Transfers:
B ERR Transfer to Stage 1 1,215,765 (1,189,909) (25,856) -
9 EPEE ransfer to Stage 1,634 1,634 - -
BRI Transfer to Stage 2 (9,691,634) 9,691,63
=15 S IEER ransfer to Stage 17 748,927 19,925 =
BRI Transfer to Stage 3 (2,170,998) (748,927) 2,919,92
AR AR SR Origination, derecogpition,

E—TERRER further lending and repayment (4,333,925) (752,931) (553,951) (5,640,807)

b Gie Write-offs - - (928,217) (928,217)
SNE R H ) Foreign exchange and other movements (65,517) (7,963) (137) (73,617)
204128317 At 31 December 2024 72,584,658 19,603,930 3,546,191 95,734,779
203%F181H At 1 January 2023 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584
Bi% . Transfers:
BEERE Transfer to Stage 1 825,047 (820,113) (4,934) -
B R Transfer to Stage 2 (4,489,852) 4,498,645 (8,793) -
B ERER3 Transfer to Stage 3 (60,863) (1,445,766) 1,506,629 -
TIAHER AR SR Origination, derecogpition,

E—FERRER further lending and repayment 4,608,617 (2,277,320) (327,205) 2,004,092
s Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
SN R H At %) Foreign exchange and other movements (46,002) 370 (425) (46,057)
2023128311 At 31 December 2023 87,630,967 12,612,026 2,134,427 102,377,420

MBS OERE RERTHE R R U
ARSIBRIIUA A FEF 2B EEE T AEM
2EWENEE TR > ER U LUBERM AT
BRAVMETS T B 48(8612,532,00078 7T FA P ER 188
B EREER2 > TEsHE B BEPS R ESEEER
722023512331 H AY353,00078 7018 N £ /22024
F12831H89909,000/8 7T (20234 © ) ; A
TEGTEBEEF T AEMEERENER
T E#8{5465,879,00078 7T FH & ER 18572 E PEER
2> JEsHE BR 1B AP B E % AE fE 1020234
12531 H#19253,00078 71 11 = 2202412 8
31H A9481,00078 7T (20234 © 481578,113,00078
TCHMEERER E MRS At E BB ERME
EX B %48 & FR630,00078 70 1 N 247,530,000/
D) ©

Treasury portfolio consists of cash and balances with banks and
debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. Of which, debt instruments at amortised
cost with carrying amount of HK$612,532,000 was transferred
from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an increase in ECL allowance
from HK$353,000 as at 31 December 2023 to HK$909,000 as at
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil); debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income with notional amount of
HK$465,879,000 was transferred from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an
increase in ECL allowance from HK$253,000 as at 31 December
2023 to HK$481,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: transfer
notional amount of HK$78,113,000 from Stage 2 to Stage 3 with an
increase in ECL allowance from HK$630,000 to HK$47,530,000) due
to stage transition.
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TR 20244F F22023F 12331 B 18T 4R 14
BIEE Z s HR DT 2 B85 o

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3210 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
agency designation at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

URTE
stERHEZE)
stAHMEE
WENEmMEE  WEGRRE
Financial HlIEREY
assets at EREE
BER S fair value Financial
FREE through other assets at
2024128311 At 31 December 2024 Trading comprehensive amortised =1
LOBMEF U5 HKS'000 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 2,082,760 237,774 2,320,534
AATEAAF AA-to AA+ 2,006,353 17,923,964 8,605,427 28,535,744
AZEAF Ato A+ - 17,886,015 15,798,254 33,684,269
B4R EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 4,254,381 4,253,190 8,507,571
KET4R Unrated - 1,056,984 6,659,725 7,716,709
&t Total 2,006,353 43,204,104 35,554,370 80,764,827
MRFE
T2 HHEZE)
STAEMEE
WampIEREE  LUBRREA
Financial HIEREY
assets at THEE
FER S fair value Financial
FREE  through other assets at
20235F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Trading comprehensive amortised =5
LGB F o5 HKS'000 assets income cost Total
AMA AAA - 927,174 204,328 1,131,502
AA-ZEAA+ AA-to AA+ 1,739,841 14,972,157 8,768,677 25,480,675
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ - 16,210,084 16,494,505 32,704,589
BT BRI A Rated but lower than A- - 5,259,389 6,458,233 11,717,622
KETR Unrated - 1,395,483 7,487,563 8,883,046
=1 Total 1,739,841 38,764,287 39,413,306 79,917,434

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5
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2L MEEIEERREZ M EEZREETR
EE
(F) &1
BERERKRBRZEBEHDTTHREBEEE
BREREE R 2 ERAFTEt D18 —
RS > B EMBIIERA BRIEERA
AR Z B I » ESERHESTE o

TERABFFRERARBRBEZ &L
#fre

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3211 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure

(a) Geographical sectors

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are
classified according to the location of the borrowers after
taking into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer
applies when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in
an area which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to
customers by geographical area.

20244 2023%F

12H31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

LOB T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
BB EBRAA%E Gross loans and advances to customers

—&58 - Hong Kong 108,718,160 112,872,652

—HREIRH - Mainland China 13,729,341 14,163,149

—BPg - Macau 13,527,103 14,012,453

—HAth - Others 2,399,681 2,001,222

5F 0 BE203FE12830HMERSEEET
BT U B AREEZFFR

138,374,285 143,049,476

Note: The amounts presented for the position as at 31 December 2023
have been revised to conform with current year’s presentation.
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R2uMEEEEREZ ZMEEZEER
EE @@

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3211 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

() 7% (b) Industry sectors
BB RBAAERE— 21T R ERZH Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector
baivar::] classified according to the usage of loans
LOBEFTsn HKS'000 2024 2023
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEERt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER - Property development 6,425,975 6,908,262
—MEERE - Property investment 23,066,021 23,767,506
— R - Financial concerns 5,154,554 3,607,794
—RRERL - Stockbrokers 1,441,956 1,240,252
—HEEBEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,298,542 4,791,670
e - Manufacturing 1,400,285 1,684,066
—EWRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,883,028 2,662,549
—RRELEE - Recreational activities 48,882 62,840
—ER - Information technology 48,392 29,760
—HAth - Others 5,665,507 6,062,815
50,433,142 50,817,514
EA Individuals
—EEEERHEREE - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
FAAZEREEEIK Ownership Scheme, Private Sector

A& EHERBIBFEMN
—EEEMETYEER

—ERFEM
—Hfth

EEBERANEN
BHRE )
EEBLUOMERNER (H@2)

(1) LI RZEZMERSEEBEER
BHZERESIMoBEAETBEO WY
OMBONRE UABEREZRES
ZERe

2 TEEFBLUIMEANER BERTES
ERBEEBLUMERZER

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

Participation Scheme and Tenants

Purchase Scheme 414,186 467,752

- Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,561,360 34,954,353
- Credit card advances 3,645,014 3,841,087
- Others 13,998,682 13,530,504

51,619,242 52,793,696

Loans for use in Hong Kong 102,052,384 103,611,210
Trade finance (Note (1)) 4,902,455 5,624,799
Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (2)) 31,419,446 33,813,467

138,374,285 143,049,476

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong
Kong.
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BERG 2 ERABIINESEE  AREE
REREEERMERRERREZE SR
EFERT RN EZ ERARIRER
ESINEE - BRRBREEEEUKRRE
mRAFEREERERRE ZFREFETED
T RETER ILRRE MRERERRRE
(TRRE) Z2&E-FTAE I RHiERERIZ
SRERETESARTEAKR -EERREZ
E PR E IR R B R (TR R E R BT aR ) Th
— BB AR EERZERIEFT BB LR
REME SRR LR 5t 8 BIERE
EZFEREERERTIHERARFERE
FIFE PRI R KF A AN ERERIF T
ARBAABRMEFEEGEEEE-VE
ERERBREZES AREERGREESR
NEFEEEMME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from adverse movements in market rates
and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board,
the RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from
the Board. Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by
products and by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise
a combination of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk
(“VaR”) controls. All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-
market valuation. The Risk Management and Control Department
(“RMCD”) within the GRD, as an independent risk management
and control unit, identifies, measures, monitors and controls the
risk exposures against approved limits and initiates specific actions
to ensure positions are managed within an acceptable level. Any
exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate
level of management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as stipulated in
the relevant policies and procedures.
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FIRITZ B ARRPIE FIRTTIRMNBRA
5] (NRPIFHEIRTTY) KAHIRTT (PED) AR
A7) (TRHIRTT (FE) ) REBEE—EBER
BNBERRERRITREZ TS RBREERE
RARTHERTZHMERE - RIRITZER
EEREEASERRERPIFERITRAN
R1T (PE) MEEEZTHAR BREE
HBY R R SR AR RE R RS R D I SR SR E Y

IRE—F

FERRBERZRKLIRTIRZ TI5ERE
ARz AR E IR B R RAZT

33 1REXGRZ 5 mBE

REBZ X ZHRM  FEINE EFE S Em
MESFKMTETIRZRZHREFEET SR

B o
S

() HiZEBEEt BT

EAmERRER AEBEREBE
REEKRB AT ET SRR IES]
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank,
run their treasury functions locally under their own set of limits
and policies and within the market risk management framework
set by the Bank. The RMCD of the Bank oversees the market risk
arising from the treasury operations of BCM and DSB China to
ensure that the risk controls put in place are commensurate with
their businesses and consistent with the Group standards.

The Group applies different risk management policies and
procedures in respect of the market risk arising from its trading
and banking books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(a) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures
market risks using various techniques commonly used by the
industry and control market risk exposures within established
risk limits. The major measurement techniques used to
measure and control market risk are outlined below.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (continued)

(a) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

() EEE

rEEEATSRREHEZS H
—ELSt AR ERRHERRZ Bk
HEREmEAM BTt BRER
Ko HRAXRERNREBEG KT
FIfERRZ ERAME m—AKAE
HIZ BEEFER AEBZEEK
F 7399% o (K It 77 TE BRFE B ARt 51 #8E
= BRIBARAISELL T 5 AR EE
ZAESH B R o FIL RN Z 77 AT
TEEB R EHIHI NS EEREE
R B SRR 2 Bk -

iz EERHEEEBRREERT 2
FMAEEMSH—XK) BEEL
FR -mHARBETKREREZ
BEHE - HHRBRRBEE—
BEFERZ BB RRERE &
F—TEE L EE T AR

FEREBEZLBRAHARZZRZ TS
RBREESR  FERRHIERR
HEREZEWIE -FRERIEAE
WRETUBERASEEEAS
BER -

AmiZREEEAERER 2 HIERE
GEEHEN—ERIRE EEE
REREZZEEMNMBERSTF
BEREFAEAMERRBEHERE R
PEREERSEBIFV LEVSFS
e RREENREREHERERE
EMSEREESE R EREEE
HHLETEE AEERFREEL
R a2 MIZRAREERIES
1,862,00078 7T (20234 : 3,022,00078
JT) ©

(i) Value-at-risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements.
It expresses as the maximum amount the Group might
lose given a certain level of confidence, which for the
Group is 99% for a one day holding period. There is
therefore a specified statistical probability that actual
loss could be greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the
use of VaR does not prevent losses outside the VaR limits
in the event of extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period”
(one day in the case of the Group) until positions can
be closed. It is calculated based on the current mark-to-
market value of the positions, the historical correlation
and volatilities of the market risk factors over an
observation period of one calendar year using a method
known as historical simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR, are
monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$1,862,000 (2023: HK$3,022,000).
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(i) BT R

B RAEHR R B N R sE IR
ZBERRZNRER  RREEREE
EERETRE N AE 85 | BRE
REIAE BERESEBRLER
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(2) THiEEBRERE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (continued)

(a) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(ii)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each
risk category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate
the maximum size of market stress that the Group can
endure before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.

(b) VaR summary of trading portfolio

#F2024F12831H LF12E B HE2023%F12H31H 1E1218 B
12 months to 31 December 2024 12 months to 31 December 2023
T 3] =K g =2 =&
LGB TFTI3m HKS'000 Average High Low Average High Low
4N J1 Bz Foreign exchange risk 1,370 3,367 427 2,504 4,030 291
IESE] Interest rate risk 1,126 2,834 404 1,393 4,822 469
2R R All risks 1,862 4,691 653 3,022 5,997 703

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly
associated with positions in debt and equity securities.

(a) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies
established by the Board and its delegated committees,
various limits, guidelines and management action triggers
are established to control the exposures of the Group’s
banking book activities to foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, and price risk. In particular, position and sensitivity
limits and price triggers are in place to control the price risk
of the investment securities. In addition, sensitivity analysis
and stress testing (including reverse-stress testing) covering
shocks and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on-and off-
balance sheet positions and credit spreads on the Group’s
investment securities are regularly performed to gauge the
market risk inherent in the Group’s banking book portfolios
and manage it against the established control measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the
market risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions
are normally matched against other customer
transactions or transactions with the market. Foreign
exchange exposure of the non-trading portfolio in
respect of MOP and RMB arise mainly from the operation
of subsidiaries in Mainland China and Macau. The net
exposure positions including the trading and non-trading
portfolios, both by individual currency and in aggregate,
are managed by the Treasury and Global Markets
Division of the Group on a daily basis within established
foreign exchange limits.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that
this is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice
versa, is normally matched using foreign exchange
forward contracts to reduce exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

At 31 December 2024, if HKS had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have
been HKS$31 million higher (2023: HK$34 million higher),
mainly as a result that the foreign exchange gain
on translation of RMB denominated financial assets
outweighed the foreign exchange losses on translation of
RMB denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HKS had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HKS$31 million lower (2023: HK$34 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure
interest rate risk exposures arising from its banking
book positions is consistent with the guidelines set out
by the HKMA in its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”)
on Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”).
From an earnings perspective, interest rate risk is the
risk that the net income arising from future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic
value perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the
economic value of a financial instrument will undergo
adverse impact because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from both
perspectives in the banking book. As such, the interest
margins or net interest income and the economic value
of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch
of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and
monitor the interest rate impacts through scenario
analysis and stress testing regularly.

At 31 December 2024, if HKS and USS$ market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up
shock under the HKMA’s standard parallel up scenario,
with other variables held constant, the impact on
earnings over the next 12 months and the impact on
economic value of equity would have been HKS$105
million higher and HK$981 million lower respectively
(2023: HK$201 million higher and HKS$775 million lower
respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2024 and 2023.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the
Group's investments in debt securities and equity securities are
also exposed to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the
value of such investments could change significantly depending on
a variety of factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment and
other events that might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and
credit commitments translated into equivalent HKS amounts,
categorised by currency.

2024F12H31H

At 31 December 2024 BT ET

gk

UN:

Hith

AL

[=N-]

LUBBEF AL HKS'000 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
RERIRITHREE Cash and balances with banks 5,759,593 871,577 489,602 4,377,140 2,633,813 14,131,725
FRMZERESAEIE  Placements with banks

HER maturing between one and

twelve months 3,815,024 312,033 - 1,176,306 106,192 5,409,555

BERZEREMNES  Trading securities 2,006,353 - - - - 2,006,353
AT EsEEHESE  Financial assets at fair value

STABRNEHMEE  through profitor loss - - - 4,212 - 4,212
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments 74,893 3,721,675 - 25,413 261,750 4,083,731
BIEEFREMKE Advances and other accounts 107,499,411 15,462,818 7,589,221 7,290,098 5,209,233 143,050,781
AT EstEEHE Financial assets at fair

STAEMEEREN value through other

TREE comprehensive income 6,707,921 36,849,241 787,890 13,155 450,498 44,808,705
DUB SRR AT IBR AT Financial assets at amortised cost

TREE 4,098,712 28,576,563 1,096,304 1,426,167 324,622 35,522,368
EHEER Total financial assets 129,961,907 85,793,907 9,963,017 14,312,551 8,986,108 249,017,490
af Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 126,952 400,490 - 434,441 974,353 1,936,236
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 41,472 1,548,170 - 27,820 222,453 1,839,915
BERZEENAR  Trading liabilities 498,069 - - - - 498,069
BRER Deposits from customers 125,431,895 47,169,407 8,127,904 12,483,704 8,498,064 201,710,974
BEITNENGE Certificates of deposit issued - 4,294,996 - - - 4,294,996
BERK Subordinated notes - 4,146,914 - - - 4,146,914
HiniRB KRR Other accounts and accruals 3,375,990 3,759,897 253,546 411,161 46,810 7,847,404
ERafRaH Total financial liabilities 129,474,378 61,319,874 8,381,450 13,357,126 9,741,680 222,274,508
BEBBRAFATFE  Neton-balance sheet positions 487,529 24,474,033 1,581,567 955,425 (755,572) 26,742,982
BEBFERIMIERE  Off-balance sheet net notional

R positions* (230,819)  (21,024,335) - (1,872,083) (563,203)  (23,690,440)
EERE Credit commitments 52,131,898 8,025,526 1,686,614 2,302,708 46,218 64,192,964
* EEABRINTEZE FHIETEHANHK * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

NEBINESB ARG ZINEESHITETAEN amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are
ZEFERE principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3. HBREREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33 HiFAR® 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.35MERIE @ 3.3.3 Currency risk (continued)
2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 BT EST piillics N Hith &%
LB FTi5n HKS'000 HKD usd MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Re RIRTIES Cash and balances with banks 7,825,273 1,925,695 488,870 1,456,791 4,699,141 16,395,770
HRTIZELERR Placements with banks maturing

ElpetTiopeo between one and twelve

months 496,027 271,724 - 2,230,640 153,423 3,151,814

BER G BENES Trading securities 1,739,841 - - - - 1,739,841
AT ESHEBHEEE  Financial assets at fair value

HABRNEREE through profit or loss - - - 8,216 - 8,216
TEEMITA Derivative financial instruments 98,744 3,190,255 - 43311 233,839 3,566,149
ZBERRAMER Advances and other accounts 114,606,456 12,751,407 7,789,057 8,794,149 5,174,966 149,116,035
AT ESHEBHEEE  Financial assets at fair value

SAEMEEKGEN  through other comprehensive

SHEE income 7,888,998 31,448,863 863,918 88,181 235,882 40,525,842
DUEER A A5 IBRRY Financial assets at amortised cost

SHEE 5,499,662 30,230,626 1,577,744 1,887,122 177,224 39,372,378
EHEEA Total financial assets 138,155,001 79,818,570 10,719,589 14,508,410 10,674,475 253,876,045
af Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 39,775 1,954,100 - 490,697 47 2,485,044
TEEMITA Derivative financial instruments 47,690 1,036,182 - 12,231 183,316 1,279,419
BERGHENER Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
RRERX Deposits from customers 137,700,017 40,434,677 8,823,039 12,005,523 8,339,822 207,303,078
BEETMEDE Certificates of deposit issued - 2,428,028 - - - 2,428,028
BEGER Subordinated notes - 5,916,645 - - - 5,916,645
HinikE & FEiR Other accounts and accruals 3,504,501 3,927,482 287,913 302,757 54113 8,076,766
EHEaRA Total financial liabilities 141,391,836 55,697,114 9,110,952 12,811,208 8,577,123 227,588,833
BEBBRAFEFE  Neton-balance sheet positions (3,236,835) 24,121,456 1,608,637 1,697,202 2,096,752 26,287,212
BESRRIMNGE Off-balance sheet net notional

LERIE positions* 47,035 (22,348,398) = (1,436,748) (1,798,634) (25,536,745)
FERE Credit commitments 55,122,860 7,059,396 1,841,877 4,697,483 50,871 68,772,487
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3. HERKREE® 3.
33 HBER®
3.3.4 FIERfE

TR AERZFNREARE - KRNBERE
RS ET R EMEEREE TR
EEBXRANIHE CIREERE) D

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the table are the Group's financial assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates.

3fEAMUE
38R 1 1EHE
FUTF Over F5F SENE FitE

2024512318 At 31 December 2024 3 months 3months  Over1lyear Over  Non-interest a5
LOBIEF i) HKS'000 or less to 1year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
RERIRITHREER Cash and balances with banks 13,029,762 - - - 1,101,963 14,131,725
TERTIZLESAEIERN  Placements with banks maturing

Pz between one and twelve months 3,872,694 1,536,861 = = = 5,409,555
FHER 5 BIENES Trading securities 1,491,922 511,436 2,995 - - 2,006,353
AT EEEEES Financial assets at fair value

SABRNEHEE through profit or loss - - - - 4,212 4,212
TEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 4,083,731 4,083,731
RBEERRAMER Advances and other accounts 123,885,303 5,322,966 5,066,989 195,115 8,580,408 143,050,781
UATHEstE B HES) Financial assets at fair value through

SAHMEERER other comprehensive income

SHEE 6,830,218 7,291,535 26,820,217 2,262,136 1,604,599 44,808,705
DUBERR AT IBRIERIEE  Financial assets at amortised cost 4,334,522 8,877,488 16,924,046 5,384,323 1,989 35,522,368
EREES Total financial assets 153,444,421 23,540,286 48,814,247 7,841,574 15,376,962 249,017,490
& Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,910,209 21,200 - - 4,827 1,936,236
i = Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,839,915 1,839,915
RIERZRENEE Trading liabilities 498,069 - - = = 498,069
BRER Deposits from customers 160,977,960 23,343,513 2,652,218 - 14,737,283 201,710,974
BEITNENGE Certificates of deposit issued 1,801,585 2,493,411 - - - 4,294,996
BEES Subordinated notes - - 4,146,914 - - 4,146,914
HiIRB KRR Other accounts and accruals 410,061 98,986 378,539 324,545 6,635,273 7,847,404
ERafRaH Total financial liabilities 165,597,884 25,957,110 7,177,671 324,545 23,217,298 222,274,508
FEHREEESRS Total interest sensitivity gap

(RIZR%)* (unadjusted)* (12,153,463)  (2,416,824) 41,636,576 7,517,029
FIETETEANZHEE  Effect of interest rate

derivative contracts 28,803,353 (2,478,677)  (17,522,855)  (8,801,821)

HEBREEES? Total interest sensitivity gap

(AE3REE)* (adjusted)* 16,649,890  (4,895,501) 24,113,721  (1,284,792)
* REEBRN EHAEEE LIRS EEERR * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of on-

EENBENFREEE KREMNEHRAE
Z BT ABUREF R & bR M E TR T
ETREGHNMR-

balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap takes
into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered into to

mitigate interest rate risk.
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3. MBEAREE®

33 HiZEK @

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.34 FERZ 6@ 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)
3ERMUL
3ER EIF 1EME
FUT Over E5E SEDE e

2023128314 At 31 December 2023 3months 3 monthsto Over 1 year Over  Non-interest &%
LOBISFTlidlm HKS'000 or less 1year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
R RIRTIES Cash and balances with banks 15,549,282 - - - 846,488 16,395,770
TERTIZLESAEIERN  Placements with banks maturing

Pz between one and twelve months 1,172,881 1,978,933 - - - 3,151,814
R 5 B EES Trading securities 1,725,135 7,293 7413 - - 1,739,841
AT EsrE B HES) Financial assets at fair value through

SABRNEREE profit or loss - - - - 8,216 8,216
TESHTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,566,149 3,566,149
BEERKEMKRE Advances and other accounts 129,093,406 7,390,531 5,604,257 253,581 6,774260 149,116,035
MATEsIEEHES) Financial assets at fair value through

SAHME AR other comprehensive income

THEE 5,882,922 7,989,493 21,376,780 3,515,092 1,761,555 40,525,842
USRI ATIBRMSMEE  Financial assets at amortised cost 4,855,651 7,644,867 19,744,598 7,125,270 1,992 39,372,378
EHEEA Total financial assets 158,279,277 25,011,117 46,733,048 10,893,943 12,958,660 253,876,045
=4 Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 2,472,238 6,107 - - 6,699 2,485,044
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,279,419 1,279,419
BERGBENER Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
BRER Deposits from customers 153,457,800 37,670,653 2,634,371 - 13,540,254 207,303,078
BEETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 796,144 1,631,884 - - - 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes 1,754,856 - 4,161,789 - - 5,916,645
HiIRB KRR Other accounts and accruals 487,347 101,404 326,627 149,162 7,012,226 8,076,766
ERBES Total financial liabilities 159,068,238 39,410,048 7,122,787 149,162 21,838,598 227,588,833
FNEGREEERER Total interest sensitivity gap

(RS (unadjusted)* (788,961)  (14,398,931) 39,610,261 10,744,781
FIRGTETEAKZEE  Effect of interest rate derivative

contracts 30,131,970 (395,558)  (17,669,399)  (12,067,013)

FMEGREZER Total interest sensitivity gap

(A~ (adjusted)* 29,343,000 (14,794,489) 21,940,862 (1,322,232)
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3. BEEREE®
34 Rt REE
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FrEERERRIEEST R SEN
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RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund
increases in assets or meet its payment obligations associated
with its financial liabilities when they fall due without incurring
unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the
objective to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure
that there is an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet
normal business operations and to withstand severe liquidity
stresses. The Group has adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio
(“LMR”) and the Core Funding Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory
standards specified by the HKMA for reporting on the Group’s
liquidity position. During the period, the Group had maintained
sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory minimum of
25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the HKMA’s
requirements set forth in the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework
for Supervision of Liquidity Risk” and the SPM LM-2 on “Sound
Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk Management”. The
SPM LM-1 is to provide the approach adopted by the HKMA for
supervising and assessing the liquidity risk of banks while the SPM
LM-2 is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles
formulated by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
(“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk management
standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and
framework approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s
ALCO to oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly
reviews the Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding
requirements and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk
metrics, including the LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an
ongoing basis. In addition, material changes in the liquidity risk
metrics together with any corresponding proposed mitigation
actions will be reviewed by ALCO. Appropriate limits or triggers
on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid assets are held
to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient level of stable
funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and Global
Markets Division is responsible for the day-to-day management
of funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for
the measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a
daily and monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and
stress testing. The Financial Control Division handles regulatory
reporting in relation to liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular
forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis

relating to liquidity and funding management.



3. MBEREE®
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a
diversified and stable funding. While customer deposits form the
primary portion of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit
and medium term notes are issued at opportune times in order
to lengthen the funding maturity and optimise asset and liability
maturities. Short-term interbank deposits are taken on a limited
basis with the aim of maintaining the presence in the market and
the Group is a net lender to the interbank market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons,
including the next day, week and month, which are key periods
for liquidity management. The starting point for those projections
is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial assets
and liabilities as well as the expected maturity of these assets
and liabilities based on historical observations. The cash flow
projections also take into account the historical behaviour of off-
balance sheet items, including undrawn lending commitments
and contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit and
guarantees. The Group always maintains an adequate liquidity
cushion, which is composed of high quality marketable securities
with sufficient market depth to meet its liquidity needs at all
times, even under adverse market conditions. Eligible securities
in the cushion mainly have low risk and simple structure and can
be readily sold or used as collateral to obtain funds within a short
period of time. Debt securities held are marked to the market on
daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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3. HBREEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

34 TEMERE @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1,7B MR EEEF @

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BEATT In HKS million
20245 20236
12A31H 124315
PER4E As at As at
Internal HA%ER| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2024 2023
14 TRREER IR EMRIE ERIBUR « 2188 RERIT  ERABEIRES R AE B
BTSRRI E A0 B ER S
Tierl Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government, multilateral 13,864 13,202
development banks, relevant international organisations and public sector
entities with a 0% risk weight under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2MER R EERIBEMRIE LB - ZBERERIT  REENRIFTRE R
TR BB E 220%80 5 B85
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government, multilateral 17,760 13,594
development banks, public sector entities and non-financial corporate entities
with a 20% risk weight under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
S52BAR BV ABKRESERA A ER B HAERF L RPN mIRE E I 2R
TRMEEE TR R HMEEES
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or financial 45,645 46,973

institutions with at least an investment grade and those securities that may be
included in “liquefiable assets” under the liquidity maintenance ratio.

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5



3. MBERREE®
34 REEERE @
3.4.1 B4 E R SRR 4B

AEETERETEAE  SEREEETE
HEAR s — ARG R EMENTE
AEMGHERBER R ERBZHIHER T
NWEBEERE AEBRI—RIIFARTETIE
1B BEEIEHNREIENRARR S RAIER
SOBRERI RHR IR ER 2 RER R T 51E
R AEEMFRETEEE) FIIEHES
BHZ REMNREZER MERRSRATE
212 GIUNET IR REL S B ERF R
PERBREERRZEE) - SFETES A
AREVSEERESEES B LIRFRED
RRERAN -EERBABZRZ R ATIR
AETRMERBR T ZRERTAAMES
MREHEME =2 X ZRIE AL
BRABNEERZBERTAEELRTE
TRRUEBNEREZ - AEBZITETAR
PBREDINEGHRARGH - AEB T
ETERGAREZRIINEGHRFIEREGL 1R
REERETETARSHFZIRTRLH
1RR IRiRm BB B 2 (E 5T AR RS
o

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario
and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the
potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed market
conditions. The Group maintains a set of early warning indicators,
including qualitative and quantitative factors and involving both
internal and market indicators that help identify any emerging
risk at an early stage. The Group maintains a contingency plan
that sets out its strategies for dealing with liquidity stresses and
the procedures for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting
repo transactions or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk
management purpose) in emergency situations. An annual drill
test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed at least
annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated
the same way as other third party transactions for the purpose
of cash flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of
the Group are required to manage their liquidity positions to
meet their needs under both normal and stressed conditions.
Most of the Group’s derivative transactions are exchange rate
contracts and interest rate contracts. Under the terms of our
collateral arrangements with derivative counterparties, collateral
movements are not linked with the credit ratings of the Group.
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3. BEEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

34 REMtAER @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 FIBIR 77 3.4.2 Maturity analysis
TRAOMAERRRESARERHSAEIE The table below analyses the Group's assets and liabilities into
AR r]ERH WER) 2 REFHRR DL relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
ZEEKEEC end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or,

where applicable, the earliest callable date.

1ERME
B3R 3fEAML 1EE
18R HUT BF E5F

il T 3monthsor Over Over SE
2024&12A318 At 31 December 2024 Repayable Upto lesshutover 3months 1yearto Over HEZIFAHEA G
LOBEF LA HKS000 on demand 1month 1month to 1year 5 years Syears Indefinite Total
BE Assets
B RARTIER  Cashandbalanceswithbanks 2,538,397 11,593,328 - - = = - 14,131,725
HEEMENERA  Placements with banks
HHER maturing between one and

twelve months - - 3,872,694 488,794 1,048,067 - - 5,409,555

BERSARNES  Trading securities - 799,143 692,779 511,436 2,995 - - 2,006,353

WATESFEEESE) Financial assets at fair value

SHABTASFEE  through profitor loss - - - - - = 4212 4212
i ! Derivative financial instruments - 547,254 349,349 916,420 1,088,031 1,182,677 - 4,083,731
RIBEFMEMIEE  Advances and other accounts 7,318,248 19,598,227 11,557,534 20,849,499 39,572,532 40,092,759 4,061,982 143,050,781
DATESEEEES Financial assets at fair

SAEMZERER  value through other

SHEE comprehensive income - 213,798 2351974 7,291,535 29,084,661 2,262,136 1,604,601 44,808,705
DU ERBURGBRRY Financial assets at

THEE amortised cost - 960,902 2,612,747 9,102,345 17,460,062 5,384,323 1,989 35,522,368
HENERE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 2532810 2,532,810
HEEHEERE  Investmentsin jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 138,097 138,097
BE Goodwill - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - = 61,005 61,005
TERHMETEE  Premisesand other fived assets - - - - - - 3816078 3,816,078
REME Investment properties - - - - - - 708,023 708,023
EEREEE Current income tax assets = = = 662 = = = 662
ELHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 159,481 - - 159,481
EER: Total assets 9,856,645 35,712,652 21,837,077 39,160,691 88,415,829 48,921,895 13,642,308 257,147,097
aff Liabilities
RIER Deposits from banks 49,026 1,804,102 61,908 21,200 = = - 1,936,236
{TEeMIE Derivative financial instruments - 496,544 321,205 826,402 194,801 963 - 1,839,915
FERZEENERE  Trading liabilities - 199,888 298,181 - - - - 498,069
ERER Deposits from customers 68,055,358 36,904,051 69,854,934 23343513 2,652,218 = - 201,710,974
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,606,276 155,309 2,493,411 - - - 4,2949%
BERS Subordinated notes - - - - 4146914 - - 4146914
HEaE Lease liabilities - 9,801 19,384 78,305 259,474 10,921 - 378,385
HERE KR Other accounts and accruals,

TEHEaR excluding lease liabilities 396,205 4,090,291 697,239 1,896,182 94,056 5,281 289,675 7,469,019
L= Current income tax liabilities - - - 343,745 = = = 343,745
EiMBRaE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 91,821 - - 91,821
BfEat Total liabilities 69,400,679 45,151,853 71,408,660 29,002,758 7,439,284 17,165 289,675 222,710,074
e EE Net liquidity gap (59,544,034)  (9,439,201) (49,971,583) 10,157,933 80,976,545 48,904,730 13,352,633 34,437,023
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3. MBEAREE®
34 REMEERR @

3.

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4.2 FBIR 7T @ 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
Iz
B8R  3EELE ML
1188 T FIf 5
fEE FLUT  3monthsor Over Over SENE
A3E1A31H At 31 December 2023 Repayable Upto  lesshutover ~ 3monthsto 1year Over  EEBAHH AE
LOBEF LA HKS000 on demand 1month 1month 1year to 5 years 5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
B RARTIAER  Cashand balances with banks 2798656 13,597,114 - - - - - 16395770
ERMZEDRERA  Placements with banks
HIEBNER maturing between one and
twelve months - - 1,172,880 77,398 1,901,536 - - 3,151,814
BERSARNES  Trading securities - 799,564 925,571 7,093 7413 - - 1,739,841
WATESHEEESE) Financial assets at fair value

SABTASEEE  through profitor loss - - - - - - 8216 8216
fTEeRTE Derivative financial instruments - 391,222 168,773 461,233 1,108,949 1,435,972 - 3,566,149
FESTREMES  Advances and other accounts 7906144 20,568,142 8765033 18835403 47061274 43855800 2124239 149,116,035
WATESFEEESE) Financial assets at fair

SAEMZERER  value through other

SREE comprehensive income - 2,462,699 2,424,252 8,100,081 22,262,164 3,515,091 1761555 40,525,842
DU ER AL ATIERRY Financial assets at amortised

SREE cost - 2,447,698 1,279,847 7995630 20,521,940 7125071 199 393723718
NS Investment in an associate - - - - - - 2,215,131 2,215,131
HEZHEEEE  Investmentsin jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 129,946 129,946
BE Goodwill - - - - - - 713451 713451
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 61,005 61,005
TEREMETEE  Premisesand other fixed assets - - - - - - 3,640,520 3,640,520
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 761,606 761,606
AEIEEE Current income tax assets - - - 1273 - - - 1273
EBLHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 165,823 - - 165,823
BEAT Total assets 10704800 40266439 14736356 35478311 93029099 55932134  1LAIT661 261,564,800
af Liabilities
RIS Deposits from banks 97,690 625,719 1,755,528 6,107 - - - 2,485,044
fTEErTE Derivative financial instruments - 484474 166,770 331,390 246,168 50,617 - 1,219,419
BECERAMAE  Tradingliabilities - 99,853 - - - - - 99,853
BRER Deposits from customers 61475731 35870147 69652215 37,670,614 2,634,371 - - 207,303,078
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued - 406,054 390,090 1,631,884 - - - 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes - 1,754,856 - - 4,161,789 - - 5,916,645
fEas Lease liabilties - 12,387 24,063 9,617 297,877 52,935 - 483,879
BB KR Other accounts and accruals,

TefEhESE excluding lease liabilities 379,281 4,294,330 972,785 1,591,954 64,501 11371 278,575 7,592,887
AEIEaE Current income tax liabilities e = = 287,545 = = = 287,545
EEaE Deferred income tax liabilities e = = = 100,921 e e 100,921
ElEEH Total liabilities 61,952,702 43547820 72961451 41616111 7,505,717 114923 28575 227977299
EREtED Net liquidity gap (512479020 (3281,381)  (58,225095)  (6,137,800) 85523382 55817211 11,139,086 33,587,501
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:

188

HE
{B3(ER 38R
FUT Nk

188  3months FFE 1FEYNE

EMER(ERE FIUT or less Over BsE SELE e
Repayable Upto  butover 3months Overlyear Over B At
LUBBETFL A HKS'000 ondemand 1month  1month tolyear to5years 5years Indefinite Total
2024%F12/31H At 31 December 2024
FEGREAER . Certificates of deposit held
included in:
BUATFEFEEEZE) Financial assets at fair
SAEMEERGEN  value through other
SHEE comprehensive income = - = 62,749 - = 62,749
LUBERAR A TIBR A Financial assets at
TRHEE amortised cost 137,719 946,980 2,638,365 - - - 3,723,064
2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023
FEGFETEEERN . Certificates of deposit held
included in:
AT EFEHESS Financial assets at fair
SAEMEERREN  value through other
EMEE comprehensive income - 116051 245,088 - - - 361,139
DUSBR AT IBREY Financial assets at
SHEE amortised cost 527,423 - 3,390,846 - - - 3918269

B E R A EHR AR RIS
HEREER+OEZ - HNETIEBR
PEER TR A AELER > BiRTT
ME > SRR E R &8 o AEECHYFR
BERFRERS&ME Bt EIRMNERER
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HEBE-—RAERE=SEREARHZEE
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The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and
of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount
of the commitment because the Group does not generally expect
the third parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The
total outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend
credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as
many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being
funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group
under non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial
liabilities that will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on gross basis by remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity risk
based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures
and other interest rate contracts; and

. Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps;

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

«  Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

150

(Continued)

AR LB 3EAMLE
3ERFIUT FE 1ENE
1EBSUT  3monthsor Over F5E
2024512310 At 31 December 2024 Upto lessbut over 3 months to Over 1 year SEMNE AaE
LOBIEFTlidn HKS'000 1 month 1 month 1year to5years  Over5years Total
FTETERESR Non-derivative cash flow
& Liabilities
RITHER Deposits from banks 1,853,952 62,150 21,256 - - 1,937,358
REER Deposits from customers 106,497,878 71,065,207 23,916,067 2,760,462 - 204,239,614
BERZARMAR  Trading liabilities 200,000 300,000 - = = 500,000
BETNENE Certificates of deposit issued 1,732,258 163,468 2,616,597 = = 4,512,323
BEES Subordinated notes - - 213,043 4,769,922 - 4,982,965
HESE Lease liabilities 9,801 19,884 78,305 259,474 10,921 378,385
Hit&a’ Other liabilities 3,922,087 91,726 735,571 - 285,116 5,034,500
SE0%5E Total liabilities (contractual
(BHEIER) maturity dates) 114,215,976 71,702,435 27,580,839 7,789,858 296,037 221,585,145
FTETERER Derivative cash flow
BPREEE Y Derivative financial instruments
fTEE/MIA settled on net basis (94,761) (4,788) (144,294) (26,206) - (270,049)
Bt Derivative financial instruments
fTEEmIA settled on a gross basis
TRHAREE Total outflow 349,808,467 14,474,588 14,376,128 7,066,074 767,571 | | 386,492,828
MAKREE Total inflow (350,062,197) | | (14,512,684) | | (14,878,577) | | (8,872,999) | | (1,331,801) | |(389,658,258)
(253,730) (38,096) (502,449)  (1,806,925) (564,230)  (3,165,430)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
B! 3EEME
AT Z1F M E
EBZHLUT  3monthsor Over E5E
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Upto  lessbutover ~ 3monthsto Over 1 year SELLE =1
LB Fnlidn HKS$'000 1month 1 month 1year toSyears  Over5years Total
FTETERSR Non-derivative cash flow
=15 Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 729,834 1,755,734 6,107 - - 2,491,675
BEEA Deposits from customers 98,086,351 71,344,966 38,783,585 2,706,755 - 210,921,657
FIERZRARNER  Tradingliabilities 100,000 - - - - 100,000
BETNENE Certificates of deposit issued 426,348 410,104 1,715,955 - - 2,552,407
BEES Subordinated notes 1,800,993 - 214,323 5,012,902 - 7,028,218
HEaR Lease liabilities 12,388 24,063 96,617 297,878 52,935 483,881
Hita’ Other liabilities 62,410 1,482 43277 - 292,685 399,854
BEeE Total liabilities (contractual
Gralkela) maturity dates) 101,218,324 73,536,349 40,859,864 8,017,535 345620 223,977,692
TETERER Derivative cash flow
BBREEEY Derivative financial instruments
TEERITA settled on net basis (4,705) (14,592) (33,941) (65,284) - (118,522)
Bt E Derivative financial instruments
fTESmIA settled on a gross basis
TRHAREE Total outflow 85,336,237 22,075,866 72,768,443 5,529,931 613,826 | | 186,324,303
TRAKEEE Total inflow (85,388,726) | | (22,183,153) | | (73,795,310) (8,432,753) (1,300,819) | | (191,100,761)
(52,489) (107,287) (1,026,867) (2,902,822) (686,993) (4,776,458)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items
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Included in the table below are the following items:

Loan commitments by reference to the earliest draw down
dates of the contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance
sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers and other facilities;

Financial guarantees by reference to the earliest date that
the guarantees can be called by the beneficiaries and based
on the conditions existing at the reporting date as to what
contractual payments are required;

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

. BEREEKSEZERNEE. «  Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1FEMUR 1EE SEM E
2024%F12H31H At 31 December 2024 No later E56F Over =
LB TF TS HKS'000 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRUKIE Loan commitments 63,098,059 = - 63,098,059
ER AR REMERART  Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities

—BRRERERSE - Guarantees and standby letters

of credit 644,749 - - 644,749
—IREREEERE - Documentary and commerecial

letters of credit 450,156 - - 450,156
S TRA R Operating lease commitments 1,800 3,600 - 5,400
BRI Capital commitments 17,796 3,025 - 20,821
ait Total 64,212,560 6,625 - 64,219,185

152 KHRITAIRAR 20245 55




3. BMFRRERE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
34 REMEEE @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
344 E5ESEXRINEH @ 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
1ELA M E SER L
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 No later F5F Over At
LB FIL SR HKS'000 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRUKIE Loan commitments 66,450,244 - - 66,450,244
BR AR Guarantees, acceptances and other
Hth&aR% financial facilities
—RBRKEERERR - Guarantees and standby letters of credit 1,928,921 - - 1,928,921
—IREREEERD - Documentary and commercial letters
of credit 393,322 - - 393,322
RS TRA I Operating lease commitments 2,474 6,355 1,430 10,259
BARGKIE Capital commitments 50,729 - - 50,729
At Total 68,825,690 6,355 1,430 68,833,475
B Note:

REBATIRZERAE - ERRBRAGEHER
2023F 123310 2 EEREETTES] U aRFEZ
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The balances of loan commitments and guarantees and standby letters of credit
by maturities reported for the position of 31 December 2023 have been revised
to conform with current year’s presentation.

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the
Board is held responsible for ensuring proper valuation
governance and control processes of the Group. It delegates
the responsibility for overseeing the valuation process for
financial instruments to the TIRC. Valuation is performed
independently by RMCD and where appropriate, by
independent and professionally qualified valuers and the
valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date under current market conditions
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using a valuation technique.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active
market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service or regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active
market provides the most reliable evidence of fair value and
shall be used whenever available. If a financial asset or a
financial liability has a bid price and an ask price, the price
within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair
value in the circumstances is used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments
is not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value
of such financial instruments by using appropriate valuation
techniques that are widely recognised including present value
techniques and standard option pricing models. In applying
valuation techniques for these financial instruments, the
Group maximises the use of relevant observable inputs (for
examples, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities,
credit spreads) and minimises the use of unobservable inputs.
For example, the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash flows, the
fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is generally
based on current forward rates and the fair value of option
contracts is derived using appropriate pricing models, such as
Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial
liabilities and other liabilities for which it has elected the
fair value option. When the Group’s credit spreads widen,
the Group recognises a gain on these liabilities because
the value of the liabilities has decreased. When the Group’s
credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises a loss on these
liabilities because the value of the liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the observable and
unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes
equity securities and derivatives that are listed on
exchanges.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices). This level includes the
majority of the OTC derivative contracts. These are
financial instruments with quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets
and financial instruments valued using models
where all significant inputs are observable.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
This level includes equity and debt securities with
significant unobservable components.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

AT EECEEKREE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
KEMATESE Recurring fair value measurements
2024F12H31H At 31 December 2024 SRR 828R 534K a5
LGBIEF TS HKS'000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RS Descriptions
FER % BIRmNES K Trading securities and financial

AT EtEEHES) assets at fair value through

FABENESREE profit or loss

&% Debt securities - 2,006,353 - 2,006,353

SERE Investment funds 4,272 - - 4,272
TTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments

FER SRR Held for trading = 1,800,047 = 1,800,047

B BEL A Held for hedging - 2,283,684 - 2,283,684
UnFEEEEES) Financial assets at fair value

FTAEMEEIRER through other comprehensive

THEE income

B85 Debt securities - 43,204,104 - 43,204,104

HmES Equity securities 295 - 1,604,306 1,604,601
BAFEREZ Total assets measured

BEAS at fair value 4,567 49,294,188 1,604,306 50,903,061
UnFEEEEES) Financial liabilities at fair

FFABENEREE— value through profit or loss -

HIER 5 Bk held for trading

157558 Debt securities = 498,069 = 498,069
TTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments

FER SRR Held for trading = 1,690,736 = 1,690,736

B BEL A Held for hedging - 149,179 - 149,179
BAFEREZ Total liabilities measured

aEast at fair value - 2,337,984 - 2,337,984
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in shares issued by unlisted entities. These
investments were acquired some years ago when the Group
applied to join the platforms or cooperative arrangements
operated by the relevant entities in areas such as
international financial messaging, cross-border payments,
credit cards issuance, etc. which are essential to the provision
of banking services by the Group.

The unlisted equity investments are measured using valuation
techniques of market comparable companies or recent
transaction. The significant unobservable inputs and their
range applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s
of unlisted equity investments includes price-to-earnings ratio
(“PE ratio”) of the comparables of 20.41x to 44.85x. As at 31
December 2024, if all of the significant unobservable inputs
favourably changed and unfavourably changed by 5%, the
Group’s other comprehensive income would have increased
by HKS$78 million (2023: HKS87 million) and decreased by
HKS$78 million (2023: HKS87 million) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into
or out of the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy.
The changes in carrying value represent the revaluation gains/
losses during the year. There was no addition or disposal
during the year.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2024

157



158

3. MBEAREE®

35 SREERERZATE®

(Z) 2 FEFR @

BRATEAEBZEERER @

KEEATEAE®

2023%F12H31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

At 31 December 2023

F14R

24k

34k

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

A

/Ap
LGBIEF TS HKS'000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S Descriptions
FER % BBRNES K Trading securities and financial
AT EtEEHES) assets at fair value through
FABENSREE profit or loss
157558 Debt securities - 1,739,841 - 1,739,841
SERE Investment funds 8,216 - - 8,216
TTEEmMITA Derivative financial instruments
FER SRR Held for trading - 1,062,388 - 1,062,388
B BEL AR Held for hedging - 2,503,761 - 2,503,761
AT EstEBEHEE) Financial assets at fair value
AR MEEEESN through other comprehensive
SREE income
B%E% Debt securities - 38,764,287 - 38,764,287
HRES Equity securities 268 - 1,761,287 1,761,555
AT EFF2E2EEARST  Total assets measured
at fair value 8,484 44,070,277 1,761,287 45,840,048
AT EstEBEHEE) Financial liabilities at fair value
FFABENEREE— through profit or loss -
FHER Z AR held for trading
B8 Debt securities - 99,853 - 99,853
TTEEmMITA Derivative financial instruments
FER SRR Held for trading - 1,057,303 - 1,057,303
B BEL AR Held for hedging - 222,116 - 222,116
WA EFF228EAET Total liabilities measured
at fair value - 1,379,272 - 1,379,272
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have
been applied in determining the fair values of financial
instruments presented below:

(i) Cash and balances and placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair
value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and
remaining maturity.

(i) Loansand advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated
future cash flows expected to be received. Expected
cash flows are discounted at current market rates to
determine fair value.

(iii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value
of amortised cost assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and
yield characteristics.

(iv) Deposits from banks, deposits from customers and
certificates of deposit issued

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.

(v) Subordinated notes

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
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35 SRMEEREBEZATE® 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(F) KL FEAZEZEHTA @

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

AEBIZ AT IR ATIERDI SR T
B 27 EE1E » BEE 20245 F2023F 12
BIHZ AT EWEEBAERE BRI :

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 except

160
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as follows:

BRME{E

2024%F12H31H At 31 December 2024 Carrying 14K SE24R 834K ATE
LGB TS HKS'000 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Fair value
ERIEE Financial assets
DUSERAY AT BREY Financial assets at

THEE amortised cost 35,522,368 - 35,597,944 2,000 35,599,944
ERaE Financial liabilities
BB TNEE Certificates of deposit

issued 4,294,996 - 4,298,538 - 4,298,538
BEER Subordinated notes 4,146,914 - 4,249,515 - 4,249,515
ERMEE

2023%F12531H At 31 December 2023 Carrying F1ER AR F3R NEE
BEFIT SR HKS'000 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
TREE Financial assets
DUSERAY AT BRHY Financial assets at

TREE amortised cost 39,372,378 - 39,306,558 2,000 39,308,558
Bt = Financial liabilities
BEITNEE Certificates of deposit

issued 2,428,028 - 2,430,481 - 2,430,481

BEER Subordinated notes 5,916,645 - 5,915,400 - 5,915,400
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

+  To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

+  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

« To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the
benefits to other stakeholders; and

«  To maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the
Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by
the Group’s management, employing techniques based on the
guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by
the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is
filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, the Bank is
required to meet three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity
Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of
these three ratios are set at 4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively
and are adopted by the HKMA. In order to comply with HKMA’s
requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory
Review Process”, the Bank is required to set further buffers, to
reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar
Il capital requirement. In addition, the Bank is required to fulfil
the capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer
requirements set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms
part of Basel Ill implementation and the required information
is submitted to the HKMA on quarterly basis. In line with the
international standards, the minimum Leverage Ratio is set at 3%
by the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted
amounts for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and
covers both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures.
On-balance sheet exposures are classified according to the obligor
or the nature of each exposure and risk-weighted based on the
credit assessment rating assigned by an external credit assessment
institution recognised by the HKMA or other rules as set out in the
Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into account the capital effects of
credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet exposures are converted
into credit-equivalent amounts by applying relevant credit
conversion factors to each exposure, before being classified and
risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated statement of financial position are share capital,
retained profits, other equity instruments and other reserves.
Capital also includes collective provisions and regulatory reserve
for general banking risks as allowed under the Banking (Capital)
Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the
Group’s Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in
Mainland China, DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines
provided by the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the
National Financial Regulatory Administration (“NFRA”) respectively
for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the NFRA on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the NFRA requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the
capital adequacy ratio) not lower than the required statutory
minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities,
such as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the consolidated financial statements.
These services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be
accused of mal-administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions
may have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the
periods when changes are made. The application and selection
of different estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent
changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in
the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of the
sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates
and assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions
adopted are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results
and positions presented in the consolidated financial statements
are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(a) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the
use of complex models and significant assumptions about future
economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the
inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring
ECL is further detailed in Note 3.2.2, which also sets out key
sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying
the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:
+  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

«  Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

«  Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the

associated ECL; and

«  Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes
of measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made
by the Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
The Group applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate
quotation for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the
range of observable quotations, recent observable transactions,
the reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature. For unlisted equity investments,
management judgement and estimates are required for the
selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and
modelling techniques.

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at fair
value at reporting date are shown in Note 18, 19 and 21.

(c) Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be
generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates which could
be caused by major changes in market conditions and outlook,
could result in adjustments to the carrying values of such assets. In
the event that the expected recoverable amounts of goodwill and
intangible assets are significantly lower than their carrying values,
impairment of such assets would have to be recognised.

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible asset at reporting
date are shown in Note 25.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out impairment assessments on its investment
in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of
the value in use is based on a discounted cash flow projection
which contains certain assumptions derived from management
and observable market information. This estimate is subject
to application of management judgement and is sensitive to
assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising from
the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.

At 30 June 2024, the fair value was below the carrying value. An
impairment assessment was performed and the carrying value
of the Group’s investment in BOCQ was written down by HKS$16
million to the fair value less costs of disposal. At 31 December
2024, the fair value of the investment was higher than the
carrying value. As there was no change in service potential of the
investment, there was no assessment of impairment or its reversal.
The total amount by which the Group's investment in BOCQ was
written down due to impairment assessment for the year ended
31 December 2024 therefore remained at HK$16 million (2023:
HKS$552 million).

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or
not terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the
most relevant:

«  If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend),

the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
terminate).
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Determination of the lease term (Continued)

« If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a
significant remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

+  Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included
in the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets
without significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or
not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised
if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances
occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the lessee. During the current financial year, the Group
has not exercised any extension or termination options.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at
reporting date are shown in Note 27.

(f) Tax position relating to the unamortised upfront payment
and deferred payments recognised as income

As announced by the Group when the Hong Kong Distribution
Agreement (“HKDA”) was entered into on 19 June 2017, the
HKDA was intended to be an exclusive, long-term bancassurance
cooperation between the Bank and Tahoe Life Insurance
Company Limited, which was terminated on 8 July 2022. A new
bancassurance arrangement entered into with Sun Life Hong
Kong Limited which has commenced in the second half of 2023.
Management assessed that the upfront fee and deferred payments
received and receivable by the Bank under the HKDA and the
new bancassurance arrangement can be treated substantially
as capital in nature for tax purpose. Management has taken this
consideration into account in the preparation of the financial
statements.
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5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

ERITIAFEAR R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12H31H
As at 31 December
LGB TF o5 HKS'000 2024 2023
BHE ASSETS
IRE R IRITHVAS R Cash and balances with banks 12,718,185 14,997,455
EIRTTIZE 128 B A EEARTFR Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 5,186,007 2,880,090
FHERZRRIES Trading securities 2,006,353 1,739,841
UrTaEsrEEEEHETA Financial assets at fair value through
BmBERREE profit or loss 4,272 8,216
TESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 3,787,061 3,441,663
EIEEM R EAMAEE Advances and other accounts 123,327,102 127,291,471
AT EtEEHEH A Financial assets at fair value through other
Hith2mEWmr s E comprehensive income 44,007,365 39,650,280
DU AT SR SR E E Financial assets at amortised cost 29,113,209 32,193,991
NI = Investment in an associate at cost 1,213,057 1,213,057
HEEHERIGE Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
MBARKRERER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 4,033,511 3,853,351
BVEE Intangible assets 2,753 2,753
TEREMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 3,094,909 3,089,905
wEME Investment properties 592,577 713,169
ENERfRIEEE Current income tax assets = 1,273
REIRIEE E Deferred income tax assets 65,874 85,047
BESS Total assets 229,172,235 231,181,562
=R LIABILITIES
SRITTFRR Deposits from banks 7,013,421 5,755,333
TEEMITA Derivative financial instruments 1,596,245 1,195,252
BERZAENERE Trading liabilities 498,069 99,853
ZEBEFE™R \ Deposits from customers 173,335,570 177,992,411
BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,294,996 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes 4,146,914 5,916,645
HMER B &8 Other accounts and accruals 7,127,408 7,314,701
BPERTRIEE & Current income tax liabilities 312,171 252,627
aE&st Total liabilities 198,324,794 200,954,850
R EQUITY
&N Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
(B Other reserves (including
(BIERERT) 5 () retained earnings) Note (a) = 23,479,631 22,858,902
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 29,679,631 29,058,902
BEIMERMET R Additional equity instruments 1,167,810 1,167,810
#Emast Total equity 30,847,441 30,226,712
EEkaES Total equity and liabilities 229,172,235 231,181,562

EEER2025FE3831 B E R IE Ao

FHE
EFRTE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31

March 2025.

Hon-Hing Wong
Director

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director
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5. ZIPITEMABRRARRFEHEEE @ 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)
5 Note:
() FIBITHEES (a) Reserve movement of the Bank
fiESfE  REEfR AR
1 fitf )
Premises  Investment ERfHE —fRfktE Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General Earnings &3
LB TS HKS'000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
20451818 At1January 2024 233,100 736,912 58 693,304 21,195,528 22,858,902
PR ERERRRS ) HELIATERFE B EZE  Fair value loss realised and transferred to
SIARMEERRNERLEMRED income statement upon disposal of debt instruments at
ATEZEERBBENTK fair value through other comprehensive income upon
derecognition - 137 - - - 137
WATE- 2B EEHHA Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair value
Htt2ERENERETRY through other comprehensive income
ATEZEFE - 177,250 - - = 177,250
DATE EBEEEHAEMRENG  Net changein fair value of equity instruments at fair value
MR T2 AT EESFE through other comprehensive income - (82,903) - - - (82,903)
REBMEEEH BTG Deferred income tax on movements in investment
revaluation reserve - (29,387) - - - (29,387)
WATESEEEEEEA Net change in allowance for expected credit losses of debt
,M%EWME'JF?IIE\Z instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
BHEERE e income - 26,907 - - - 26,907
““zﬁ: B SHDBEUATESER  Reclassification of net changein fair value of equity
HEHH A BN ARENERETE  instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
Z@?E EFH income upon derecognition = 7,400 = - (7,400) -
REEMNBIEARENE 2R Reserves arising from reclassification of premises
to investment properties 45,533 - - - - 45,533
BMERHTEZREFE Distribution payment of additional equity instruments - - - - (134,636)  (134,636)
e B TRHRRN Exchange differences arising on translation of
EREE the financial statements of a foreign branch - - (8,700) - - (8,700)
FEER Profit for the year - - - - 1,703,468 1,703,468
ABERERE 2023 final dividend 5 5 - - (694,400)  (694,400)
WHEFHRE 2024 nterim dividend - - - - (382,540)  (382,540)
AHERANA At 31 Decerber 2024 8633 836316 (8642) 693,304 21,680,020 23,479,631
5 Note:

FIBTRAUGERFBLNERRE

/% Hﬁ B

HEAFFAMIN REBERE - MR ZEE
R (5 RORPI R 2 RT Ezj(ﬁﬁ-ﬁfﬁ (F
B)) BDARNEEBRITEFEIRUBEEES
BN AMEERE - ZEERHERRAIKE
%HQ?Z@%ﬁﬁﬁgﬁoﬁ” RBEZEHAREER
T ERETER W EEN B FEE R

112024512831 H » & IR1T B35 544,500,000

7t (20234 : 616,530,000/ 70) Z SREEAEE

FEHESTIRHE GRS — R ERER B AIRTT
ZIRERBRAPIEE

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in
excess of those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve.
The regulatory reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is
maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance
and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision purposes.
The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can be
distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve
of HK$544,500,000 (2023: HK$616,530,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked
against the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.



5. ZAIRTTEHAFBAORR KR EEES @ 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Eac) Note: (Continued)
() AER1THREBEE) @ (@) Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)
NEEE  REER MEAAER  RERF
il e B2 e i
Premises  Investment  EREE  —HREE  Share-based Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General - Compensation Earnings fit
LEEFTSn HKS 000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
NFEIRIA At 1 January 203 23,100 195,724 S 6Bam U0 1998935 20834955

LATEHEEEEEA
A2 AWENERIEZ value through other comprehensive income
NFEETTE - 298270 - - - - 298,270

Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair

WATEHB AR
MR ERENREETRY
ATEEHFE

BEEERREZETNA

NATESEEEETHA
Ett2ERENERTIAZ
BREEERERESSE

BIMERMTRZREA

BE-RRMITHERRN
ERER

R (DR AR
EStva

DU AR e A B TR
gt

FERT

WEFRERE

WBFFERE

ABENF3NA

Net change in fair value of equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Deferred income tax on movements in investment
revaluation reserve

Net change in allowance for expected credit
losses of debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments

Exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of a foreign branch

Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation

Settlement of equity-settled share-hased
compensation

Profit for the year

2022 final dividend

2023 interim dividend

At 31 December 2023

(135,025)

1,862,018
(378,200)
(142,600)

543,920

(43,181)

33,627
(135,025)
58

54
(14,994)
1,862,018

(378,200)
(142,600)

233100

21,195,528

2,858,902
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6. BEDIEIRE

FEBREEAMBFREERFSER(EEE
BAR)RERDBRS - M EETEREERE
thATEEEMEZ T EEERRAZRM
ERBERDEKREETEAEZER 51
B ASRTT ~ R RIR1T - B IRk R E
Wt BB PISRIT R FH DR 2 B BERFETE &
WIRTTE B 2 BB R EFF LS DM M
R Pt R PR T R B 2 S BRIV ETS
HAB DT

ERBRAMEFR 2 B R Eam kT &
BRBENERER AEBREEXFI NS
THIZEHRDIAE

- BEARTEFLEERZEAZTRER
EEBFHRB MAER-BZ[EES
MAE B Rk  REREFH R EM KR
BiR% -

- GBERTEBUERSERCEN-Z2E
ETMEREZME  HEFCRRAR
BRI EETHEREBHERR-

- MERENGSEFIZEREINER
B hREFRSEE MXEAREE
BEREEERAEFARREZETER
B o

. FEAMBCRPIRITER RSB UNR T
Bl ADRPT 2 MY B A B IR 2 B AR
THMEERITEFRAER —FEETEH
PIMtER AL 7 B SRR T 2 M o

- HMEERFIEERENEMERDIE

ZEBXE EEREREHES (B
REEH) o
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other
Executive Committee members, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, is determined on the
basis of personal banking, corporate banking, treasury and global
markets and banking businesses in Mainland China and Macau.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for
local banking business, and on business entity basis for banking
businesses in Mainland China and Macau.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

+  Personal banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from individual customers and the extension of
residential mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft,
vehicle financing and credit card services, and the provision of
insurance sales and investment services.

+  Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

« Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the
provision of foreign exchange services and centralised cash
management for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk
management, management of investment in securities and
the overall funding of the Group.

« Mainland China and Macau banking businesses include
personal banking, corporate banking business activities
provided by subsidiaries in Mainland China and Macau, and
the Group’s interest in a commercial bank in Mainland China.

«  Others include results of operations not directly identified
under other reportable segments, corporate investments and
debt funding (including subordinated notes).



6. EXDTEHRT @

AR DR EM S > B EREREARE
ANEZREER ~ EmMIRFBWA R EEZ
ERNABNIE, MOBZENESERK
B ERTEENWANER A R2R
WIS R BREREFIDEESDE D
HEZRZIERERTE=EHRE=ER
5 2 [PHRIRREE - 2 BB Z WA S H AL
IREARAIEEE

FIEFARNEz BRI R RER AN D
IR ¥R - BB RS e S R B PR S Th i iR 5
XM mERZFEERIFENDEEE
WA DEERNER DR E MR N5t
DEESNE  EmKRIERBFIZEETS
s AUF RS 25Tt IE R o

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with
individual segments are reported directly under respective
segments, while revenue and funding cost arising from inter-
segment funding operation and funding resources are allocated
to segments by way of transfer pricing mechanism with reference
to market interest rates. Transactions within segments are priced
based on similar terms offered to or transacted with external
parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs
are allocated to various segments and products based on effort
and time spent as well as segments’ operating income depending
on the nature of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities
that cannot be reasonably allocated to segments, products and
support functions are grouped under Others as unallocated
corporate expenses.
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6. EXDTEHRT @

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

HE2024F12831HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2024
FERt R
HERIEK R
HiH%EE  Mainland
BASRT T Treasury Chinaand i18E
Personal  Corporate and Global Macau Hith Inter- st
LB TS HKS'000 Banking  Banking  Markets  Banking Others  segment Total
BHEKA/ (&) Net interest income/(expenses) 2,207,766 1,110,250 1,478,128 453,404 (51,526) 36 5,288,058
FERBWA/ () Non-interest income/(expenses) 1,199,850 187,584 58,257 176,641 21,112 (2,529) 1,647,575
BN/ (i) 1848 Total operating income/(expenses) 3,497,616 1,207,834 1,536,385 630,045 (23,754) (2,493) 6,935,633
SESH Operating expenses (1,929,801)  (554,334)  (302,139)  (549,294) (16,232) 2,493 (3,349,307)
EERESEZ Operating profit/(loss) before credit
SERT (58 impairment (losses)/written back 1,567,815 743,500 1,234,246 80,751 (39,986) - 3,586,326
EERESE Creditimpairment losses (517,346) (1,063,185)  (21,261)  (188,720) (849) - (1,791,361)
NBETRERETEEY  Operating profit/(loss) before gains and
WE MRz 8E losses on certain investments and
il (E598) fixed assets 1,050,469  (319,685) 1,212,985  (107,969)  (40,835) - 1,794,965
HERBMETER Net loss on disposal and fair value
HtETEER adjustment of investment properties,
HATERREY premises and other fixed assets
FEE (217) - - (41)  (103,382) - (103,640
HELBERMATIERAIER  Netgain on disposal of financial assets
BEZFNE at amortised cost = - 760 = - = 760
HEUATEFEEELZE Nt (loss)/gain on disposal of financial
SARMZERENEE assets at fair value through other
BEZF B8 /57 comprehensive income = - (137) 34 - = (103)
BEHEARZEE Share of results of an associate - - - 677,425 - - 677425
BEAAREZRERE Impairment oss on investment in an
associate - - - (15,715) - - (15,715)
REHEREARRKE Loss on deemed disposal of investment
d 5t in an associate - - - (1) - - (1)
EEEREHIEE s 2R Share of results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 33,131 - 33,131
BREnER/ (598) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,050,252  (319,685) 1,213,608 553,733  (111,086) - 2,386,822
0I5 () /e Taxation (expenses)/credit (173,313) 53,449  (200,221) (8,108) 24,613 - (303,580)
EEEN/ (BB Profit/ loss) for the year 876,939  (266,236) 1,013,387 545,625 (86,473) - 2,083,242
BE0UFDRNAEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024
TEREHEER Depreciation and amortisation 92,225 24,612 17,602 57,748 196,617 - 388,804
2024128314 At 31 December 2024
NEEE Segment assets 58,312,678 62,988,717 95,826,338 38,409,112 8,457,113  (6,346,861) 257,147,097
NBEE Segment liabilities 124,424,645 43,963,904 13,363,260 31,188,034 16,617,092  (6,846,861) 222,710,074
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

HE2023F12831H EFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023
FEIFSH R
MERER  BMRT
MmEEE  Mainland
BAST (%8BT Treasury  Chinaand BIEE
Personal  Corporate  and Global Macau Eft Inter- a5t
LB TS HKS'000 Banking  Banking Markets ~ Banking Others  segment Total
BHEKA/ &) Net interest income/(expenses) 2015007 1183911 1,124,749 478,004 13610 (164) 4,815,137
FERBIA/ i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 748,390 203211 (26,453) 148,483 36,443 (9,275) 1,100,799
EHEWA/ (Zi) 4855 Total operating income/(expenses) 2763417 1387122 1,098,296 626,487 50,053 (9439) 5915936
EESH Operating expenses (1,855232)  (533440)  (232,540)  (547,755) (19,316) 9439 (3,178,844)
NBMEERME (5518 /& Operating profit before creditimpairment

A2 EE T (losses)/written back 908,185 853,682 865,756 78732 30,737 - 2137092
EERE 658 /8 Credit impairment (losses)/written back (311,830)  (350,600) 27,560 (98,244) 1,803 - (131,311)
TNBETRERETEEY  Operating profit/(loss) before gains and

WEREERZEE losses on certain investments and

iafl/ (58 fixed assets 596,355 503,082 893,316 (19,512) 32,540 - 2,005,781
HERBMEREM Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value

EEEERHATE adjustment of investment properties,

BRI (58 /e premises and other fixed assets (874) - - 1,794 (39,179) - (38,259)
FEBE Nz 25 Share of results of an associate - - - 688,957 - - 688,957
BERAREZRERE Impairment loss on the investment in an

associate - - - (552,000) - - (552,000)
REHEHEARRKE Loss on deemed disposal of investment

BB in an associate - - - (10) - - (10)

EEEREHIEE s 2R Share of results of jointly controlled

entities - - - - 27,014 - 27,014
BrEETER Profit before taxation 595,481 503,082 893,316 119,229 20375 - 2131483
0I5 (4 /e Taxation (expenses)/credit (98,487) (82,320 (147,363) (16,346) 63,241 - (281219)
FERA Profit for the year 496,994 420,762 745,953 102,883 83,616 - 1,850,208
HEWBFEDRANAILEE For the year ended 31 December 2023
EREHER Depreciation and amortisation 73,020 18,407 10,177 57,666 201,734 - 361,004
F2023E1A31H At 31 December 2023
NEEE Segment assets 50462,117 65445748 93,997,176 38706673 8,690,058  (4,736972) 261,564,800
NBEE Segment liabilities 121,866,174 49354251 12,902,840 31,848,027 16,742,979  (4,736,972) 227,977,299
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RENERE R Z W@ B R BN EE R
R ZIRITHBABMRHZ T2 EmE
% BEERER EERE - BEME
EEREE

TREMREEBEZER BELHREAR
EEBIEERRERS BEBERLS &
BRI RARBYEE AR Z PRt T i ss o

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of
China, with major products and services including deposit taking,
extension of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment
services offered to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area,
which was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal
entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship

with, and services to external customers.

& BR1E
R E A H
Hong Kong BP9 Inter-segment =1
LOBMSEF T idm HKS'000 and others Macau elimination Total
HE2024F12H31HLEE For the year ended
31 December 2024
EEW AL Operating income 6,545,380 391,606 (1,353) 6,935,633
BRI AR Profit before taxation 2,340,932 45,890 - 2,386,822
$20245F 1231 H As at 31 December 2024
BEA Total assets 236,189,607 25,540,985 (4,583,495) 257,147,097
aEast Total liabilities 205,131,732 22,161,837 (4,583,495) 222,710,074
B BENEE Intangible assets and goodwill 223,181 551,275 - 774,456
FAREEREKIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 62,916,672 2,547,143 (101,294) 65,362,521
&5 S01E
R E A HEEH
Hong Kong JEFI  Inter-segment B%
LGEEFTUS)m HKS'000 and others Macau elimination Total
HE0BFRANHIEFE For the year ended
31 December 2023
=N Operating income 5,533,431 390,524 (8,019) 5,915,936
BRI AR Profit before taxation 2,017,611 113,872 - 2,131,483
R2023F12831H As at 31 December 2023
BESS Total assets 239,357,181 25,692,277 (3,484,658) 261,564,800
afss Total liabilities 209,345,951 22,116,006 (3,484,658) 227,977,299
B BENSE Intangible assets and goodwill 223,181 551,275 - 774,456
FAREEREKIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 69,117,565 2,291,041 (101,434) 71,307,172
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7. FFEUWA

7. NETINTEREST INCOME

LCBWEF T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
FISUTA Interest income
RERERITAEER Cash and balances with banks 769,092 704,047
EBHRE Investments in securities 4,350,918 3,846,823
FIEERRHEHMRR Advances and other accounts 7,027,046 6,934,736
b b ] )
12,147,056 11,485,606
FEXZH Interest expense
IRITTER BEER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 6,194,010 6,068,896
BETHFEE Certificates of deposit issued 218,467 184,061
BEBY Subordinated notes 344,230 328,257
HE&E (27 (2) Lease liabilities (Note 27(b)) 11,644 7,705
Hth Others 90,647 81,550
6,858,998 6,670,469
FMEWAES Included within interest income
—FERXZRERNES & - Trading securities and financial
MR ESAEBEEH A assets at fair value through
BENEMEE profit or loss 98,959 13,110
—MURTEFTEEHESFHFA - Financial assets at fair value through
HihemWmiemEE other comprehensive income 2,899,567 2,560,848
—DUSBRR AT BRIV SREE - Financial assets at amortised cost 9,148,530 8,911,648
12,147,056 11,485,606
MEZHEs Included within interest expense
MR EFE2EHESH T ABE - Financial liabilities at fair value
HEmEE through profit or loss 16,206 5,098
— DU ER AT BRIV ERIBE - Financial liabilities at amortised cost 6,842,792 6,665,371
6,858,998 6,670,469

RE E2024F 2023 F 12 331H IFFE > T

B REBEEZTSHA

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no
interest income recognised on impaired assets.
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8. ERFBERAEWA 8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

LOBWEF Lo HKS'000 2024 2023
RFEERAEWA Fee and commission income
KURFEEEHEZ A Fee and commission income from
BEaNEMEBEEREEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
R E RAEUA fair value through profit or loss
—EEBZIRBEREE - Credit related fees and commissions 162,353 158,987
—B2mME - Trade finance 52,614 49,475
—(EA+ - Credit card 249,568 272,664
HMMARFE & KR AEIA Other fee and commission income
— R e - Securities brokerage 118,160 100,840
— R E R EA - Insurance distribution and others 628,963 163,961
—DERBEKRVEBIERY - Retail investment and wealth
management services 187,437 131,980
—IRITAIRBERFEE - Bank services and handling fees 66,446 72,258
—HMARHE - Other fees 93,795 128,802
1,559,336 1,078,967
RFERAEZY Fee and commission expense
KURFEEEEHEZ A Fee and commission expense from
BEaNEMEBEEREEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
IRFFERAEZH fair value through profit or loss
—FREERAE - Handling fees and commission 220,691 202,974
—BNHEMER - Other fees paid 10,036 9,191
230,727 212,165
5t Note:
KREERFE=FHIRHEFAE T hEEEREEE The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and investment
EBR% BEXLERFHNEEZRUZEAIHESR management services to third parties. The assets subject to these services are
WA BELFREUHRERA held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in these consolidated financial
statements.
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9. BRBWA

9. NET TRADING INCOME

LCBWEF T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
INER P Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 250,661 125,817
FHER ZARMNES2F (518 Net (loss)/gain on trading securities (353) 2,819
FERZRENITE TR Z F Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 13,786 34,947
BAATEEFNEREM T A Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
2 (518 W instruments subject to fair value hedge (670) 2,222
MR ESEBEEFHE ABEN Net loss on financial instruments at fair
ST R FEE value through profit or loss (3,722) (812)
259,702 164,993
10. HMWEEUA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
LB T T sm HKS'000 2024 2023
REXRDI/FEZUAFEFER Dividend income from investments
HEFHzt AHM2mik=mm in equity instruments at fair value
HoMtTEREZREWA through other comprehensive income,
held at the end of the year
— FTRE - Listed investments 47 609
—JE LA - Unlisted investments 14,453 32,137
KEME S AL Gross rental income from investment
properties 15,318 14,580
HntEsUA Other rental income 15,935 15,994
Hth Others 13,511 5,684
59,264 69,004
11. EEZH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
LGB T T 5m HKS'000 2024 2023
EEFHNEFzH (sF2) Employee compensation and benefit
expenses (Note 12) 2,266,408 2,129,531
TEREMETEES Y TEIENE Premises and other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation
—fTEMREZH (Hr7 (2)) - Rental of premises (Note 27(b)) 3,818 2,959
—HAth - Others 266,214 223,948
e Depreciation
—TEREMEEEE ({527 (7)) - Premises and other fixed assets
(Note 27(a)) 247,946 214,734
—HBEREZYE (5t (2)) - Right-of-use properties (Note 27(b)) 140,858 146,270
BEEREHEEZ H Advertising and promotion costs 77,726 85,050
ENR X AR I & Printing, stationery and postage 47,514 47,858
25 Gl Auditors’ remuneration 13,541 16,240
Hih Others 285,282 312,254
3,349,307 3,178,844
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12. EE#HMREFZH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT EXPENSES

LOBWEFT 3T HKS'000 2024 2023
R EMAEZER Salaries and other staff costs 2,115,937 1,996,824
MBS 2 BN =~ Provision for share-based compensation
RS (frstas) charged (Note 43) 19,795 14,108
BAREZH R EHRREE Pension costs - defined contribution plans 130,676 118,599
2,266,408 2,129,531
13. EHRERIE 13. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
LOBBEFT s HKS'000 2024 2023
g (BNkREE > ZEH) New allowances net of allowance
releases 1,870,572 851,311
I EEE B 2 I8 Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (79,211) (120,000)
1,791,361 731,311
PECWT - Attributable to:
—EREREBR - Loans and advances to customers 1,776,627 798,335
—HtEMEE - Other financial assets 16,787 (36,369)
— BRI R - Loan commitments and financial
guarantees (2,053) (30,655)
1,791,361 731,311
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14. 18

BBFER TR ERG TR AT AR
#16.5% (20234 © 16.5%) FEREAE(S o FAE it
FoBPI AT i E R st IE R A A A EE
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14. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on profits in Mainland China and Macau has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

The Group is within the scope of the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development Pillar Two model rules. The Hong
Kong government has issued the draft Pillar Two legislations
including a Qualified Domestic Minimum top-up tax, which
will come into effect from 1 January 2025. Since the Pillar two
legislation was not enacted or substantially enacted in Hong
Kong at the reporting date, the Group has no material current tax
exposure. The Group applies the exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
related to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in the amendments
to HKAS 12 issued in July 2023.

The Group is in the process of assessing its exposure to the Pillar
Two legislation for when it comes into effect. Under the draft
legislation, the Group is liable to pay a top-up tax if the effective tax
rate of a particular jurisdiction, calculated based on the Pillar two
legislation is below the of a particular the 15% minimum rate.

LOBIE T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
REEMRIE . Current income tax:
—E5BFER - Hong Kong profits tax 231,932 231,269
— AR E ot B BB PR TE - Mainland China’s and Macau’s
taxation 42,407 38,212
—PIBEFERE S (B 2 #E - Under/(over)-provision in prior years 55,820 (39,498)
EIERRTE (M5E34) - Deferred income tax (Note 34):
— RN EREENES MR - Origination and reversal of timing
differences (26,674) 51,387
—iBR (FesD) MFBEEE - Utilisation/(recognition) of tax losses 95 (95)
303,580 281,275
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14. RIE@

AERBFRANEN 2 MBAERRIGEEE AT
INFEFITIR RSt E 2 IEREERU T ¢

14. TAXATION (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as

follows:
LGEMTF L3R HKS'000 2024 2023
FRIRAT R A Profit before taxation 2,386,822 2,131,483
BEBNEREIeS%TE ZIRE Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax
rate of 16.5% 393,826 351,695
FRIEAEIRA Tax effects of:
HUERZ AERE Different taxation rates in other
countries 21,982 13,208
EBEERZULA Income not subject to taxation (83,315) (39,944)
FEEIRASZ Expenses not deductible 55,851 138,208
MR ER IR HE AT Results of associates and jointly
R EESIEIE 2 248 controlled entities reported
net of tax (117,242) (120,115)
FRiaFRAERNIREEE Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses 95 -
REMEE G PR 2 EE Items recorded in other comprehensive
income (23,437) (22,279)
BEFERE (B 2 #HE Under/(over)-provision in prior years 55,820 (39,498)
303,580 281,275
15. EEME 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
LOBEF T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
EEEE Directors’ fee 4,560 3,835
et BEBYH @ Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits in
T ELfhERL kind and other allowances 105,937 108,918
MBS 2 BRI SZ (1 Share-based compensation payment 1,193 755
IRREN B 2 B E R Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,170 2,158
113,860 115,666
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15. EEME @

DU D A ERE 2 RN~ S Y B FE AR (0 B Bh 51
B MNFEAETERREURERES
R REUIRE N Z RN IEAER 2
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AERZNZEBM > HRRAEEMDIE
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u%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁiﬁzﬁm’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ
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FHUETHIE-

REERNPELEH > UEAERERES
FIEAEAR S ZHREH HPAIRTTA
Bh— A RARITZEEEEREEEES
BRIEAM T (20236F © %) ©

REZE2024F 12831 HIEFE > WERERE
EMEAEERIETHENBATDERE/R
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FH) o

RERN > IES R IEERA 2 ZIESEFF
BEERIERENESREMBE = AT
TS ATEAARE (20236 ]) o

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Share-based compensation payment includes share awards,
equity-settled and cash-settled share based payment on the share
options exercised or cancelled during the year. Share-settled
portion generated from incentive bonuses accrued in respect
of services rendered in the year is excluded from share-based
compensation payment. For share awards, it represents the cost
of the vested shares based on the closing price of the vesting
date. For equity-settled share based compensations, it represents
the cost borne by the Group recognised on the exercise of the
share options while for cash-settled share based compensation,
it represents the cash payment, being the difference between the
exercise price and the average closing price of the shares of the
Company for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of
cancellation of the share options.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2023: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any
director in respect of directors’ other services in connection
with management of the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries
undertakings during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors

and no consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties
for making available directors’ services during the year (2023: Nil).
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16. g2

16. DIVIDENDS

LOBISTF LT HKS'000 2024 2023
BIKFHIRE SREBRe1TET Interim dividend paid of HK$6.17
(2023£F 1 2307870 (2023: HK$2.30) per ordinary share 382,540 142,600
BICRER S | SREEKRS0ET Proposed final dividend of HK$8.90
(2023 : 112078 71) (2023: HK$11.20) per ordinary share 551,800 694,400
934,340 837,000
17. REREIRITHVEEER 17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
LOBIET 5T HKS'000 2024 2023
REMIERITIVAERR Cash and balances with banks 2,671,719 3,072,114
BRI R RATERR Money at call and short notice 11,461,153 13,324,813
14,132,872 16,396,927
0Bf © REERE Less: impairment allowance
—PEERL - Stage 1 (1,147) (1,157)
14,131,725 16,395,770
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18. FEXZRABNEFRUATEHFE

18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR

BHEH AEGITHEE VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
LB T s HKS'000 2024 2023
BER 5 ARmNES Trading securities:
B85 Debt securities:
—&ELEm - Listed in Hong Kong 9,790 14,406
—JEEm™ - Unlisted 1,996,563 1,725,435
2,006,353 1,739,841
UrTEstEEEEHEA Financial assets at fair value through
BmERMEE profit or loss:
KEES . Investment funds:
—&ELEm - Listed in Hong Kong 4,272 8,216
4,272 8,216
a&t Total 2,010,625 1,748,057
BIEEESHEAFNE ! Included within debt securities are:
—EEZEE GERREIER) - Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 597,920 1,725,135
—HAEEERR - Other treasury bills 1,398,443 -
— &S - Government bonds 9,647 14,706
—HMEFEES - Other debt securities 343 -
2,006,353 1,739,841
FRER TIANE By issuers:
—FRRIAF A RERTT - Central governments and
central banks 2,006,010 1,739,841
—b - Corporate entities 4,272 8,216
—RNEE - Public sector entities 343 -
2,010,625 1,748,057

720244 202312531 H » _E iit4S ER A9 £
BIERAEREE -

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no certificates of

deposit held included in the above balances.
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19. TEEMTA 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FR024F 12331 REEAZ ITETRAGHNEE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives
TEREAFENT : contracts and their fair values as of 31 December 2024 were as
follows:
&8,/
sELE AFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE afE
LGB F U5 HKS'000 amount Assets Liabilities
1) FHERZRGRZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
&) SMEDTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BINAEEH Forward and futures contracts 377,350,903 1,562,219  (1,417,618)
AR EHINERRRE Currency options purchased and written 42,029,494 166,932 (214,095)
TG EF a8 Cross currency interest rate swaps 3,280,648 21,472 (17,319)
) FIERGTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FilES=i Interest rate swaps 9,135,993 40,582 (32,844)
&) BmtiTETA ¢) Equity derivatives
BB AR s i e 1 A Equity options purchased and written 602,540 8,842 (8,860)
FERGB®RZITE TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
sE/ (&R a5t trading 432,399,578 1,800,047  (1,690,736)
2 FEEHRGRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
H) J5EULNFEE a) Derivatives designated as fair value
tTHETA hedges
FZ=4 HA Interest rate swaps 44,715,605 2,283,684 (149,179)
BESHBSGRZITE TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
sE/ (&R a5t hedging 44,715,605 2,283,684 (149,179)
EERZITEEMT A Total recognised derivative financial assets/
HE/ Bl &5t (liabilities) 477,115,183 4,083,731  (1,839,915)
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19. TESRMTA @

FR023F 2 A31AREBZ ITETRESNEE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives

TEREAFENT : contracts and their fair values as of 31 December 2023 were as
follows:
&/ .
EHeHE AFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE I={
LGB T oAu3T HKS'000 amount Assets Liabilities
1) FHERZRGRZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SMELTETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BRANAEEH Forward and futures contracts 183,067,007 878,718 (885,411)
B A Kok I EE ER AR Currency options purchased and written 20,696,124 128,874 (121,144)
IR E IS I HA Cross currency interest rate swaps 874,545 13,361 (12,907)
) FIEGTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FZEiaH8 Interest rate swaps 3,689,125 34,352 (30,717)
&) BmEiTETA ¢) Equity derivatives
B A Soa e AR Equity options purchased and written 433,584 6,779 (6,797)
7)) BEiTETA d) Commodity derivatives
P e A e R A Commodity forward and swaps 56,593 304 (327)
BERZRRZITETEEE,/ Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
&® a5t trading 208,816,978 1,062,388 (1,057,303)
2 FEERRRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
H) J5EULNFEE a) Derivatives designated as fair value
THETA hedges
FZiaHg Interest rate swaps 46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
e RBRZ TETEEE, Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
&® a5t hedging
46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
EERZITEEMTASE Total recognised derivative financial assets/
&® a5t (liabilities) 255,691,221 3,566,149 (1,279,419)
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19. TESRMTARE®

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BERS AR5 st
e Notional amount Trading Hedging Total
LCBEF ST HKS'000 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
BEXE4 Exchange rate contracts
REREEAN Forward and futures
contracts 377,350,903 183,067,007 - - 377,350,903 183,067,007
SMEERESL Foreign exchange option
contracts
—FEAINERE - Currency options purchased 20,441,320 10,603,232 - - 20,441,320 10603232
—hHINERE - Currency options written 21,588,174 10,092,892 - - 21,588,174 10,092,892
RBEENZEE Cross currency interest rate
swaps 3,280,648 874,545 - - 3,280,648 874,545
422,661,045 204,637,676 - - 422,661,005 204,637,676
FIEEL Interest rate contracts
M=t Interest rate swaps 9,135,993 3,689,125 =~ 44,715,605 46874243 53,851,508 50,563,368
9,135,993 3689125 44,715,605 46874243 53,851,598 50,563,368
B4 Other contracts
BmitEEEN Equity option contracts
—E A - Options purchased 301,270 216,792 - - 301,270 216,792
— g - Options written 301,270 216,792 - - 301,270 216,792
HmiEiies Commodity forward and
swaps - 56,593 - - - 56,593
602,540 490,177 - - 602,540 490,177
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20. FEERKLHEMIKE

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

LOEMETF o5 HKS'000 2024 2023
BR BRI BRAEEE Gross loans and advances to customers 138,374,285 143,049,476
0BR . REERE Less: impairment allowances
—PEERL - Stage 1 (385,262) (364,345)
—PEER2 - Stage 2 (274,094) (263,656)
—PEER3 - Stage 3 (872,989) (485,255)
(1,532,345) (1,113,256)
136,841,940 141,936,220
B5ER Trade bills 1,476,539 2,060,317
0B . REERE Less: impairment allowances
—BEERL - Stage 1 (1,126) (2,981)
—PEER2 - Stage 2 (1) -
(1,127) (2,981)
1,475,412 2,057,336
Hith& 2 (35529) Other assets (Note 29) 4,754,607 5,143,394
0BR © REERE Less: impairment allowances
—PEFX - Stage 7,71 ,979
PEERL Stage 1 (7,719) (6,979)
—PEER2 - Stage 2 (906) (2,907)
—PEEX - Stage 12,55 11,029
PEER3 Stage 3 (12,553) ( )
(21,178) (20,915)
4,733,429 5,122,479
FBIEENREMRE Advances and other accounts 143,050,781 149,116,035
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20. FRIEEERKREMERE @ 20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

() BiEEERERRBRZMERERIL (a) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease
BRUNF - receivables as follows:
BERERABREOEREMEEERAERRH Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
ERESECZHABSOMEETER ZRE equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
KE PR NI MHAB AR BB AR E purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases.
EZ DEEEEZEAEE- The contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased

asset at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

LGB T TR HKS'000 2024 2023
KEERERE 2 EWERAREE Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
1FEMRN Not later than 1 year 774,223 960,410
1FEL EEEE Later than 1 year and not later than
2 years 598,896 660,989
2FELL FFEIE Later than 2 years and not later than
3years 402,643 466,321
SFEMULEEE Later than 3 years and not later than
5years 411,730 397,624
SER Later than 5 years 1,821,471 1,478,151
4,008,963 3,063,495
MEREZ REIRZMEWA Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (1,018,513) (946,216)
MERERE S Net investment in finance leases 2,990,450 3,017,279
REREREFEZNNT The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:
1FEMRN Not later than 1 year 642,140 810,108
1FEN EEEE Later than 1 year and not later than
2 years 495,275 530,845
2L FFEIE Later than 2 years and not later than
3years 324,022 374,505
SFEULEEE Later than 3 years and not later than
5years 291,132 319,335
SER Later than 5 years 1,237,881 982,486
2,990,450 3,017,279
1220245 F2023F 125310 > FtIRIERE There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
KEMRRENT B RIEREIGREE investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.
120245128310 ZEE 2 AEEFEEET The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
Al El MEHEERUERELNERE ST A in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2024 of the Group
23,546,00078 77 (20234F © 29,418,00078 7T) © amounted to HK$23,546,000 (2023: HK$29,418,000).
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21, UnTEStEEEEHFAHMEE
WaEREE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LOBIS T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
EF5ES Debt securities:
—&8LH - Listed in Hong Kong 11,891,064 10,976,354
—&BUIN T - Listed outside Hong Kong 20,513,422 15,729,976
—JEEm™ - Unlisted 10,799,618 12,057,957
43,204,104 38,764,287
B Equity securities:
—&ELEm - Listed in Hong Kong 295 268
—JEEm™ - Unlisted 1,604,306 1,761,287
1,604,601 1,761,555
=Eil Total 44,808,705 40,525,842
BIETEERESAE - Included within debt securities are:
—FANERE - Certificates of deposit held 62,749 361,139
—EFHEEE (EEIRESIER) - Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 59,717 1,489,951
—HthHEZEE - Other treasury bills 3,897,954 1,878,367
— &S - Government bonds 1,378,969 1,198,230
—HMEHES - Other debt securities 37,804,715 33,836,600

AT E5HE B EEBE A
Hn R TR R AR
BT SAT |

BEFFES
—RREFFARRIRTT

—NEAE
—IRIT R A MR
—b%

P43

%
—%

ETURAFEFEEEE T AEMEEIK
HPERMETEKEREAME  ERE6
$8747,400,00078 7T © FR2023FE NI R B HE A
TEGEBREEFH T AEMEERENER
MHTEKE-

FFLEHREMRFEEARTERERMS
REMBIR X IRBNERIEET D
MM o

43,204,104 38,764,287

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are
analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

Debt securities:
- Central governments and central

banks 8,615,979 8,338,984
- Public sector entities 2,840,468 1,799,394
- Banks and other financial institutions 12,886,437 9,422,100
- Corporate entities 18,861,220 19,203,809

43,204,104 38,764,287

Equity securities:
- Corporate entities 1,604,601 1,761,555

44,808,705 40,525,842

The equity instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income has been written off during the year and
its cumulative loss was HK$7,400,000. No equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been derecognised during 2023.

Unlisted equity securities mainly represent the Group’s equity
interests in financial institutions that provide payment gateway

and cross-border payment services.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2024

189



22. LUSERRATIBRINERIE E 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

LOBMEF TS HKS'000 2024 2023
EF5EE5 Debt securities:
—&BLm - Listed in Hong Kong 12,878,232 13,549,372
— BB T - Listed outside Hong Kong 14,186,382 15,977,711
—JEL™m - Unlisted 8,489,756 9,886,223

35,554,370 39,413,306

0BR . REERE Less: impairment allowance
—PEERL - Stage 1 (31,093) (40,928)
—PEER2 - Stage 2 (909) -
(32,002) (40,928)
=118 Total 35,522,368 39,372,378
BIEEERESAE - Included within debt securities are:
—FAENERE - Certificates of deposit held 3,723,064 3,918,269
—EEER - Treasury bills 1,096,317 1,577,781
— &S - Government bonds 230,349 222,317
—HAMEFEE - Other debt securities 30,504,640 33,694,939
35,554,370 39,413,306
LSRR AT BRI SR E = Financial assets at amortised cost are
FEITISESER DI T analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
— FR DRI B R ORERTT - Central governments and central banks 1,326,666 1,800,098
— N - Public sector entities 1,731,208 2,031,319
—IRIT R E A SRS - Banks and other financial institutions 12,718,386 13,394,699
—1b% - Corporate entities 19,778,110 22,187,190

35,554,370 39,413,306
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23. BPEATHIRE

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

LOBIE T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
EIREESE Share of net assets 7,430,902 7,097,508
EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623

7,775,525 7,442,131
0B . REERE Less: impairment allowances (5,242,715) (5,227,000)

2,532,810 2,215,131
DRARZAFE Fair value at 31 December 2,788,135 1,816,000

AEBREBRTZRENATFENLNZES
B ERTTHIZ 7220244 2023 F 48 2 N B ©

2024 FE 2023 FE 12 A3 1H 2 &S AT 2 T8
Birln T

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongging
shown above is calculated with reference to the closing market
price of BOCQ’s H-shares as at the end of 2024 and 2023.

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at
31 December 2024 and 2023:

FE i St B FribtEzE B Lt
2iE Place of incorporation FEXH Percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2024 2023

BERIT FREE AN RHEM 1T
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 13.20%
LGB T Ti5m HKS'000 2024 2023
1818 At1 January 2,215,131 2,159,290
FE(LBRINB AR Share of results, net of tax 677,425 688,957
FE(LFFIRBIREEGEHE Share of investment revaluation

reserve, net of tax 196,408 248,924
[S15¢535) Dividend received (287,558) (198,237)
BRSBTS Impairment loss charged (15,715) (552,000)
RRIHE 2518 Loss on deemed disposal (1) (10)
ERZERE R HMARE Exchange differences and other

adjustments (252,880) (131,793)
12431H At 31 December 2,532,810 2,215,131

ERNAEREEERRTHNEFEEZRIRMA
x> AR AES EAERARYRRIBIZ - A EE R
BRANEBRITAERTES -

The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ
on the basis of its representation on the board of directors and
participation in policy-making process.
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23. BFENEIIRE @ 23.
(FF) ERRITZ s IEER
BRIRT AT 2 E 0412831 ¢

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

20247 %2023F 12331 H IE FEHIRS » 4
EBECEESEBRITEAMMNE E20245F12
B31H1E12ER 2 I Fkk o s o

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the results of
BOCQ were included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial
statements announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31

192

December 2024.

20244 20234F
12H31H 124314
At At
31 December 31 December
LCBEF T HKS'000 2024 2023
BEEIRTZBERTSIRRRERN Selected information from the statement of
financial position of BOCQ
IR MEPRIFITHVAER Cash and balances with central banks 36,583,788 43,939,228
FEUELANERTT B Rt Ag Due from other banks and financial
institutions 36,538,992 50,810,875
BE B Loans and advances to customers 452,933,002 418,020,589
Hithem&EE Other financial assets 368,856,532 308,278,102
Hith&EE Other assets 13,194,854 13,118,284
BESF Total assets 908,107,168 834,167,078
FEAT R ORERTT Due to central banks 57,737,531 68,498,716
BREFER - EAIRIT R EMER Customer deposits, and amounts due to
HEAETIE banks and other financial institutions 562,026,060 507,495,786
HithzMaEd Other financial liabilities 213,133,907 186,771,430
Hh&ai Other liabilities 7,614,944 6,304,844
=l Total liabilities 840,512,442 769,070,776
AT Total equity 67,594,726 65,096,302
0B EfiERET A Less: Other equity instruments (8,556,162) (8,860,278)
NBR REHIREAR R Less: Non-controlling interests (2,854,732) (2,614,518)
TR R (GRS Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 56,183,832 53,621,506
BERTREEG AT Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’
Mﬁﬁﬁé\ﬂﬁ@&%ﬁqz equity to the carrying amount in the
IREEHRE Bank’s consolidated financial statements
IR TR SR & 5T The Bank’s share of total shareholders’
equity 7,411,277 7,076,999
IR B R A TERE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment at
acquisition 364,248 365,132
0B% - BE Less: Impairment (5,242,715) (5,227,000)
IREE Carrying amount 2,532,810 2,215,131
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23. BFEQNEIIRE @

() EERTZHEEMTEEN @

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

20244 2023%F

12H31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

LOBMEF U5 HKS'000 2024 2023
FEALEEIRIT A E A Share of BOCQ’s contingent liabilities and

commitments 10,881,549 9,372,253

20245 20237

1H1H 1H1H

F20245F 0235

12H31H 12H31H

1E12{E R 1F12f@H

12 months 12 months

from from

1 January 1 January

2024 to 2023 to

31 December 31 December

LOEB T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
BEIRIT 2 BN ERE R Selected income statement information of

BOCQ

EREWA Net interest income 11,020,047 11,523,285

ERBERAEA Net fee and commission income 961,209 453,826

EXREEER Loan impairment charges (3,453,086) (3,577,073)

RIESZH Tax expense (945,291) (947,152)

FEmH Profit for the year 5,978,897 5,767,658

Hih2ml = Other comprehensive income 1,467,705 1,913,724

2EINELEEE Total comprehensive income 7,446,602 7,681,382

EWEEIRTTIRE Dividend received from BOCQ 287,558 198,237
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23. BFENEIIRE @

(2) REZRBERFH R 2024F /58 2 BB

12202468308 EAFERNREE o &
BEMGLR REEARENREEERR
ZRFAE ) MRS R (ER51816,000,00078 7T ©
1202468300 2 A ETV R EEREIRTTH
RE B HE > U T EERE LR Mt
2o02024F 128310 ZEEZ AFESRK
IREE AR B Z IRESBE IR B LS i
RETTRER OB

STEAMBITZEAR BRI BEEIEZE
B2 REBBRF EAIBTWREERTZ
RER BRI - HEZREEFTER SN
R E A A 21,213,000,000/8 7T > 2B
BEB R ERNIRITZEERTRLEE-

122023F 128310 AEBEEERITZEE
ZAFEBEREREE RESE L EUE
FREE (FRERE) MEEZEERITA
WEISFEMZEEZREE FREEDE
REBEEBEE2 EERTERAMARKE KR
B EREEEERITHHNERZIERER
BEFERBRZARRKRNAIERFER E
BMIRRESRERATE - ERNEREE
AR ZAIRENNRETRARMIBERNCE
EIRITIRASA AT & o

ETHERBEFSEUARERREZAlEE
B AEBEEMEEBAREETSE
HEEIEREURFRABEEREEZZ2HE
BB AFHURMEEEFRITZR
MERRABAEBIRITARKEARAZT
AR RIATHERE EEEEERITZRK

RENETEREEBIFEEHE -
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23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2024

At 30 June 2024, the fair value was below the carrying value. An
impairment assessment was performed and the carrying value was
written down to the fair value less costs of disposal and recorded
an impairment charge of HK$16 million. The fair value of the
investment as at 30 June 2024 was calculated with reference to the
closing market price of BOCQ’s H-shares as at 30 June 2024, which
was measured at the Level 1 inputs of the fair value hierarchy. At 31
December 2024, the fair value of the investment was higher than
the carrying value. As there was no change in service potential
of the investment, there was no assessment of impairment or its
reversal.

The calculation of the Bank’s capital adequacy does not include
the retained earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash
dividend received by the Bank. Provided that the investment
continues to be held at or above the original cost of the investment
of HK$1,213 million, impairment made on the investment does not
affect the Bank’s capital adequacy.

For the position as at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the
Group’s investment in BOCQ was below the carrying amount, the
impairment test was performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation,
with the carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation
used discounted cash flow projections based on management’s
estimates of BOCQ’s earnings and dividends to be paid in future,
and the estimated probable exit value in future after considering
the growth of BOCQ and its net asset value for the medium and
longer term. The discount rate applied to the VIU calculation was
estimated with reference to BOCQ's cost of equity, which was
publicly available in the market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable
amount of the investment, the Group considered all relevant
factors including market views and qualitative factors to ensure
that the inputs to the VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments
needed to be made to reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ
and also market outlook for the medium and longer term that
were relevant in projecting BOCQ’s future performance. Significant
management judgement was required in estimating the future
cash flows of BOCQ.
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23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2024 (Continued)

The key inputs underlying our impairment assessment on the
Group's investment in BOCQ as at 31 December 2023 was as
follows:

Annual profit growth rate N F2%E4%
Ranging from

2% - 4%

Dividend payout ratio 28.2%
Discount rate (Note) 12.0%

Price-to-Book (“PB”) ratio for estimation of 0.26
potential future recovery value under
different holding periods

Note: Post-tax discount rate is used to calculate the VIU using the post-tax cash
flows. The post-tax discount rate is subsequently grossed up to pre-tax
discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate for 2023 was 15%. The calculated
VIU using post-tax and pre-tax is the same.

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key
inputs which Management considers as reasonable and possible.
It reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to the change of
each key input. It is possible that more than one favourable and/or
unfavourable change may occur at the same time.

bpAllin el
Favourable change Unfavourable change

FREEN FREEN

+# T
2023 2023 Increase EREE Decrease in EREE
BEET In HKS million inVIU VIU ViU ViU
FERIERE Annual profit growth rate +1% 40 2,255 -1% (40) 2,175
R EIRES LR Dividend payout ratio +5% 124 2,339 -5% (124) 2,091
BRIRE Discount rate -25bps 25 2,240 +25 bps (25) 2,190
iRE PB ratio +1bp 52 2,267 -1bp (52) 2,163
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23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2024 (Continued)

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2023, which took into account the sensitivity of the
key inputs shown above and the effects of possible interaction of
these inputs, the recoverable amount, as determined by the VIU
calculation and after considering all relevant factors (including
the cumulative impairment charge having been recognised as
of 31 December 2022) and valuation inputs, remained below the
carrying amount. The impairment test performed by the Group
for the position as at 31 December 2023 concluded that the
recoverable amount, based on the VIU calculation, was assessed
as lower than the carrying amount, after deducting the cumulative
impairment allowance made up to 31 December 2022 of HK$4,675
million, by HK$552 million. As a result, an additional impairment
charge of HK$552 million was recognised in the year of 2023 to
reduce the value of the investment to HK$2,215 million at 31
December 2023.



24. HEHEFIERKRE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

LOBWEFT s HKS'000 2024 2023
JEETERRD » A Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FE(LUREE R RS Share of post-acquisition reserves 118,097 109,946

138,097 129,946

7220244 72023 F 123318 A EIEHIE A
T

The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
2024 and 2023:

LEAEZ
Bt

St EL Percentage of
Exg Place of FEHER RS E I, effective interest
Name incorporation Principal activities and place of operation in ownership
IRIHERRBIRAT =58 wEER &8
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding,Hong Kong 13.333%
REHEERIRAE =58 BIRTER BB
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, Hong Kong 13.333%
IRHERMARAE =58 BIRTER BB
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, Hong Kong 13.333%

EIRBHER AR AR 2 A ARITEES
BoMRMEEERABDKIEHMEMARL
BB IRMIERB IR AR 22BN B AT

The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held
by the Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT
Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank
Consortium Holding Limited.
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25. BERETEE

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BbER BRI
B4 RWEE  BIVEE
B EE Core  Customer B BEES
He Contract deposit relationship Trade Club a5
VBTl HKS'000 Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name debentures Total
PRAS Cost
024F1B18 K At 1 January 2024 and
WAEDA3IA 31 December 2024 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 2753 1,050,554
RRRE/ B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
204F181H K At 1 January 2024 and
04E1F31A 31 December 2024 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - - 276,098
fREE Carrying value
2024128317 At 31 December 2024 713,451 - - - 58,252 2758 774,45
wOER  BRREG
B8 EBVEE  BWEE
BVEE Core  Customer B BRES
e Contract deposit relationship Trade Club EE
VBT HKS'000 Goodwill  intangibles intangibles intangibles name  debentures Total
PR Cost
WRFIBIARK At 1 January 2023 and
2023E12831H 31 December 2023 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 2,753 1,050,554
RIERME/ Y Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
023F181A % At 1 January 2023 and
2023F12831H 31 December 2023 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - - 276,098
REE Carrying value
2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 713,451 - - - 58,252 2,753 TT4,456

BEERARZEBLEESRGHN  ZOEFR
REFBRETLEERUSFRIEREIZEN
FsEDRFZ P AFEHEHE - B R GREES
~EERART ESFASEREBERU
AR RIE R EREY T

198  KHMRITAIRAR 2024F 55

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using
a diminishing balance method. Trade name and club debentures
are carried as an asset of indefinite life and is tested annually
for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.



25. BEREIEE® 25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

MENEEREARNIEIRRS B —RHE Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
BOEERAZRTESL BN (ReELE (“CGU”) identified according to business segments in line with the

i) - FHENEBEZYW T o internal management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill

allocation is presented below.

&5H ]
Hong Kong Macau
BERIT {EASRIT SRITER
Corporate Personal Banking =L
LGB TF oAU 3T HKS'000 Banking Banking Business Total
D% Cost
2024F1H18 K At 1 January 2024 and
20244128318 31 December 2024 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
RERE Accumulated impairment
2024F181H K At 1 January 2024 and
2024512H31H 31 December 2024 98,239 - - 98,239
IREE Carrying value
2024%12H31H At 31 December 2024 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
58 BPY
Hong Kong Macau
REEIRTT B AIRTT IRITER
Corporate Personal Banking a5t
LOBBEFnisn HKS'000 Banking Banking Business Total
%S Cost
2023F1H1H K At 1 January 2023 and
2023F12H31H 31 December 2023 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
KERE Accumulated impairment
2023F1H1H K At 1 January 2023 and
20239128318 31 December 2023 98,239 - - 98,239
IRMEE Carrying value
20235 12H31H At 31 December 2023 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
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25. HEMBTEE®
() BEMEREEZRENR

EEAESFEERENS  HILRESEZ®
BEEMEEZREEEBUYIOEEE-
ZtEEAHEEEEASRES ) LIsEst
B FERIRE TN KZEEAFH EUWAF
Y18 R 2 29.8% (20235 © 9.6%) B LU E E 1Y
FEERUET2.2% (20235 © 2.0%) HERISEEELL
BEXKEBE - ZSFEHEEEEASERH
HERMBEESBUZ ERRZERNTER
RN EEB R 2 HEFTARE FTER 2
IR BN AEE 2 EAR A NI EF 98
11.68% (2023£F : 11.23%) © B EFHEIELIE
IV EEGEMZHEER

FIiR R R EE) > &4

7202412831 H » REBRPIIRTERIRS

EH B o ol&EaEsTE Y EiREE ED
28R 1) 48,000,000/ 7T (20234F : 387,000,000/

7T) ©

AUTHRRRELLE ZREELEN
BRI EERFIEREE EMERER)

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually
by comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based
on value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash
flow projections prepared by the Senior Management based on
the latest 5-year business plan, taking into account projected
average net interest income annual growth rate of 9.8% (2023:
9.6%), and projected annual growth rate of net profit, and in
perpetuity with 2.2% (2023: 2.0%) constant growth rate after the
fifth year. The 5-year business plan was developed by the Senior
Management based on their evaluation of the businesses and
associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the
relevant CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will
operate over the projection period. The discount rate used is based
on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital at 11.68% (2023:
11.23%). The impairment assessment was not based on valuation
by independent professional valuer.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the Group’s Macau banking
business is estimated to exceed the carrying amount of the CGU
(“Surplus”) as at 31 December 2024 by HK$48 million (2023:
HKS$387 million).

The recoverable amount of this CGU would equal to its carrying
amount (i.e. no Surplus) if the key assumptions were to change as
follows:

2024 2023
2] S 2] z
From To From To
FAEURA I E R Average net interest income growth rate 9.8% 9.6% 8.9% 6.5%
REEEX Long-term growth rate 2.2% 2.0% 2.0% 0.0%
FBEES Discount rate 11.68% 11.83% 11.23% 12.52%

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5
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SEEEASCGEZEHMBARRKRRZE
TEEE) > WARBIFE AR EEBURPIIRITER
BRSELEBARAEBLHAIKEEE B
we

SR e FET ZRER T ER2REET
BEBER 5 Z23% 0B EFEE K PHE S
ZIBRAWA > B#EAISESEURBRE KR FTE
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25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

(Continued)
Impact of possible changes in key assumptions (Continued)

Senior Management have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes in other key assumptions, and they have not
identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount of
Macau’s banking business CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually
using pre-tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar market
transactions, projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in
perpetuity after the fifth year. The discount rate of 11.68% (2023:
11.23%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

Impairment testing in respect of club debentures is performed
annually by comparing the book value of each club debenture with
its fair value less cost of disposal. Impairment loss is recognised
when the market value is below the book value.

No impairment losses on goodwill, trade name and club
debentures were identified in the year (2023: Nil).
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26. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Bank’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

202

2024:
BRTHERRA
Particulars of
NEZTE TEE st Es issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation share capital
KHFERTT (FE) BREAF 17 hEANRHEM
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China RMB1,200,000,000
BRI EIRITIRD BIRAT 17 BFS
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau MOP300,000,000
KRB A IRAT RREA ENE
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong HK$500,000
KIMEERRAT RIEABRTS e
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong HK$100,000
KEER e
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$9,998
KBS ARAT BHERXH e
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
KEER e
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HKS1
KEER e
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HKS1
MERE REERHES
CWL Prosper Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands USssS1

WATARRAE G

Fortune Land Corporation Limited (Note)

ZEPBEBRAR
OK Finance Limited

6REMH E&B BRAE

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited

BERERRAT

Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited

Wise Measure Limited

Reliable Associates Limited

Talent Union Holding Limited

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

Y ES

Property investment
W&

Money lending
Inactive

Y ES

Property investment
Y ES

Property investment
Y ES

Property investment
Y ES |

Property investment

e

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong
REERHES
British Virgin Islands
REERHES
British Virgin Islands
REERHES
British Virgin Islands

HK$487,749,696

HK$1,000

HK$450,000,000

HKS$20

uss$1

uss$1

uss$2
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21. TEREMEEEE

26. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by
the Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22%
interests indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB
BCM (2) Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China
in July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely
funded by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the
laws of the People’s Republic of China.

Note: On 26 November 2024, DSFH transferred to the Bank the
entire shareholding of Fortune Land Corporation Limited,
which then became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank.

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

LB TF o5 HKS'000 2024 2023
TENRM R Premises, furniture and equipment 3,462,963 3,184,134
FREEE Right-of-use assets 353,115 456,386

3,816,078 3,640,520

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2024

203



21. TEREMEEEE @
() 1TE R RE

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment

ES
RERRE
Furniture,
equipment
1TE and motor &%
LB TF o5 HKS'000 Premises vehicles Total
HZFE2023F12H31HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2023
FXREFE Opening net book amount 2,716,536 425,170 3,141,706
g Additions - 275,081 275,081
HE Disposals (12,309) (2,676) (14,985)
e (f5ELL) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (79,080) (135,654) (214,734)
ERER Exchange difference (2,020) (914) (2,934)
FREEEFE Closing net book amount 2,623,127 561,007 3,184,134
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023
[B%:N Cost 3,423,495 1,679,623 5,103,118
RIEINTE Accumulated depreciation (800,368) (1,118,616) (1,918,984)
EREFE Net book amount 2,623,127 561,007 3,184,134
HE2024F12831HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024
FYEREHE Opening net book amount 2,623,127 561,007 3,184,134
¥ig Additions - 274,474 274,474
HE Disposals = (2,799) (2,799)
e (fF5EL) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (77,892) (170,054) (247,946)
EMDBREMEATE Reclassification from investment properties
to premises 314,388 - 314,388
EMNBTEARENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties (54,467) - (54,467)
ERER Exchange difference (2,855) (1,966) (4,821)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,802,301 660,662 3,462,963
2024F12H31H At 31 December 2024
[B%:N Cost 3,648,173 1,898,238 5,546,411
RIEINE Accumulated depreciation (845,872)  (1,237,576)  (2,083,448)
BREFE Net book amount 2,802,301 660,662 3,462,963

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5
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27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZREFESIE The net book value of premises comprises:
LGBWEFT ST HKS'000 2024 2023
FRfEH Leaseholds
EEBFE 2L Held in Hong Kong on medium-term lease
(102505 2 &) (between 10-50 years) 2,413,115 2,217,766

HEEBUINTE Z PHITELY
(fE10Z=50F 2 )

(2) &

LB £ 0 A SR B 8 AR A 2 IR

(i) BERGEMBRARRZEE

REMBHIKRRNEREEZ 8RR
LI

Held outside Hong Kong on medium-term
lease (between 10-50 years) 389,186 405,361

2,802,301 2,623,127

(b) Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

LB TF TS HKS'000 2024 2023
FRESE Right-of-use assets
LYES Properties 353,115 456,386

HE&E BEEHEMIRE KA

2024 EERNMIZGEREEES
97,419,0007 7T, (20234 © 99,473,00075 7T) ©

Lease liabilities (included in
other accounts and accruals) 378,385 483,879

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2024 financial
year were HK$97,419,000 (2023:HK$99,473,000).
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27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Leases (Continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

P 5T

LCEBEF TS HKS'000 Note 2024 2023
FREEEZINESH Depreciation charge of

right-of-use assets
LIS Properties 11 140,858 146,270
FMELZE BREEFNEZH-HEAE) Interest expense (included

in interest expense -

lease liabilities) 7 11,644 7,705
B ENREEEE 2 H Expense relating to short-

BEREETEREMEEEES Y TEIENE) term leases and low-

value assets (included

in premises and other

fixed assets expenses,

excluding depreciation) 11 3,818 2,959

2024‘551E m E %g—*ﬁgziﬁﬁl)ﬂ H:Il sy %EEJ
154,198,00078 75 (20234 : 156,669,00075
7T) ©

(iii) ZEEZFHEEBRAMIAK

REBHEESIEY)ZE o 5320235 %2024
FroREER—MRAIEEIFE 2 EEH
FR{B Bl SEFT#E U T 5l)(v) Bt 7 TE R e
o

HERRERNBEIEZERESZHIEZ
RNEMFRR MR FRHBEAFBEEEZ
BEZEREDIN HESREILARMN
EEZEDN - HEZEENSFAERES
ik ER{EEFRY -

(iv) FERKALILZEZERE

IER K% U:QT%EFJ%EZKEEMD
ETYMEHEERN FAEREERE
hERAZEEMS %%ﬁﬁ&?ﬂ@i’ﬂTL
HNEREEEEEE - REZHFEZLR
AR IEEEE R P RSB MIFS HE
AITfEe

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

The total cash outflow for leases in 2024 was HK$154,198,000
(2023: HK$156,669,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2023
and 2024, but may have extension options as described in (iv)
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number
of property leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.



28. IGEYE

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

LGB TR HKS'000 2024 2023
1H1H At 1 January 761,606 802,693
Hrit Additions 262,687 -
BT EAREYE Reclassification from premises to investment
properties 100,000 -
BN BREMERTE Reclassification from investment properties
to premises (314,388) -
BHAFERE Fair value losses on revaluation (101,882) (41,087)
12H31H At 31 December 708,023 761,606
REXRFEZEETGEWERIRT Unrealised gains or losses recognised in
B2 RE RN eS8 consolidated income statement relating to
those assets held at the end of the year
—NFEERE - Fair value losses (101,882) (41,087)
KREYZEZIREFEDE ! The net book value of investment properties comprises:
LGB TR HKS'000 2024 2023
FRfEH Leaseholds
AEEBRA ZHPHIEL (E10E50F 2 H) Held in Hong Kong on medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 600,799 646,110
EEBLUMTE Z RHATRA (FE10ZE505F 2 f8) Held outside Hong Kong on medium-term
lease (between 10-50 years) 107,224 115,496
708,023 761,606

STEREMEZATE

AN EE 120244 2202312 331 H AR EY) £
MEEET T Efh o I E B S ¥R
AEEME — AN FEEN GEREXER) B
RABBMNEBRFTEBEANZ REER
F—KTFHAES CRPY) BRABAMIERP
ZREMERBRILR G ARVAIREBEE
{E77EURI2E Z A8 H I B A 42 8%
REIT L ER EMENEEBR Hh—18
FEMBEALE BERE - R EREE
BFHAR/NRAEE Pk EHE BB
HEBUESN THREENREMEZ AT
BErtEAHEEE 2 tEEL  RZ IR

Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31
December 2024 and 2023 by adopting the direct comparison
approach or the income capitalisation approach. Under
direct comparison approach, valuation is referenced to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation
and Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited
for investment properties in Macau. The key inputs was the unit
sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings. A decrease in unit sale
rate would result in decrease in fair value measurement of the
investment properties by the same percentage and vice versa.
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28. REYE®
AEREMEZATFE®

mEBEAMEZGERR HEEEMH
HREERBBR(AFESB)FZAFEE
HE—HREFARTISE2EEMS Z&SHM
RENYIZERR-

REVMEUKRBOAARR B ERMGE
AESEATE ERDBERREST A
MHBREERBBFR(AFEFE) P RTE
LARRY B3R R

DWAREBEELCTH ZEEAFEZREY
FoERZHERBRAREEEERE
BEMET X HRRERRAZENE
TN EStBEMIGHEEMIEERBR &
MR BRI (%

WARBEECR ETREZHE

fHER*

Valuation technique(s)

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best
use of the property from the perspective of market participants.

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are
classified as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”.

Under income capitalisation approach, investment properties of
which the fair value is determined on the basis of capitalisation of
net incomes with due allowance for outgoings and reversionary
income potential. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rental and inversely correlated to the
market yields.

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

ReTHE 2 Bk W

Unobservable input(s) Range

REWE

Investment properties

WAREBBEELT®

Income capitalisation approach

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

BRELEEUESE

Direct comparison approach

HHE BAER FFHR1,2758 7T F109,80078 7T
(2023%F : FF HR14558 7T
%102,000/87T)

HK$1,275 to HK$109,800 per square foot
(2023: HK$1,455 to HK$102,000

per square foot)

Unit sale rate

2.00%Z%3.00%

(20234F : 2.00%Z3.15%)
2.00% to 3.00%
(2023: 2.00% to 3.15%)

QRS

(ER W)
Market yields
(reversionary yield)

BT HR24BITEMETT

(20235 | BF 5 R26/ETESSETT)
HK$24 to HK$84 per square foot
(2023: HKS$26 to HK$88 per square foot)

itk

Market rental



29. Hith&EE

29. OTHER ASSETS

LOBIE T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
FEWERIE A FEJIBE Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,818,525 3,272,229
FESTURA Accrued income 1,815,939 1,746,420
Hith Others 120,143 124,745
4,754,607 5,143,394
30. FEXRZRRMERE 30. TRADING LIABILITIES
LOBIS T35 HKS'000 2024 2023
JHZEEE R M EEES Short sales of treasury bills and treasury
bonds 498,069 99,853
31. ERER 31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
LOBIE T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
TEHAESURIERER Demand deposits and current accounts 28,475,282 26,382,111
EEYEEN Savings deposits 40,301,479 34,682,959
TR B R R AT Time, call and notice deposits 132,934,213 146,238,008
201,710,974 207,303,078

PREHR S BRSEERIN FREEMME R F
MERTEFM

el

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer

deposits carry variable interest rates.
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32. BEITHIERGE

LGB T Tli5)m

32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

HKS'000 2024 2023

SRR R E R T USRI A R
N THESTRER TR

220245 5720235 Y » REB KRB IR VIR HER]
RIS EEREETEASEAUATESER
HE st A8 o

NEBFIE B TEIE DRI GAME
TR REER L P51 2 BRE{E 11,000,000/ 7T
(20234 : 59,000,000 7T) ©

33. BEE*E
LGB F AT

At amortised cost with fair value hedge

adjustments (for hedging interest rate risk) 4,294,996 2,428,028

During 2024 and 2023, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through
profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay
at maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HKS1
million lower (2023: HK$9 million higher) than the above carrying
amount.

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES

HKS'000 2024 2023

PR 22 B B T DA R AR A e
BNTELH HBEERTR
225,000,0003= 70F2 20295 ZHARY
EEREGR G ()
300,000,0003= 70F2 20315 I HARY
EEREGH G (2)
250,000,00035 7573203345 ZIHBAY
EEREGH G @)

20244 22023 7N » ANEEE R B R #IUA TS
RIS E XM BEESAUATEF=HHE
et AB= o

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

At amortised cost with fair value hedge
adjustments (for hedging interest rate risk):
US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate

Notes due 2029 (Note (a)) - 1,754,856
US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes due 2031 (Note (b)) 2,197,913 2,158,805
US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes due 2033 (Note (c)) 1,949,001 2,002,984
4,146,914 5,916,645

During 2024 and 2023, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or
loss.



33.
=t

(F)

()

)

REES @

WA EITHR2019F1 8158872
225,000,000 £ TTIEEBHE R ZFTERAE
(TEBRXS) EHRTEaEERBHBEN
MERES _HREANIOEREERER
% (&%) (BETEB@ERITE BN R
B ) Z &) o I EEFERFF 2029518 15H
EIEA o BEIE M EEIE H A2024F 15150 o HES
TEEEHEEMBEER T4 §¥F
TE—R - H#B MEBRERZEEEH
B TN ETETASRSFEHHER
EEGESEXRMNSHF FEREESE
BIEskHE  RIRITRIUZEEBERERLFRE
GEZ D) B o A IRTI B —E R IRTT
SN AXREHENBERENEEN SR
ABUERBRMENE (MERERREF
R|) ARBEEH SR

s AETHR2021F11 828 #8172
300,000,000 T EE B R ZA L RTE
EEZBHEINTME R E 2 R ER10EH
ERREER (MEFK) CAETEBER1TE
(BZ) MRA) Z &) o ILEEFERFL2031
F1152H 5 HE - BEE BB IE H 420265114
2H-HBTHEHEREGEEH FES
3% B¥FNE—R - HiB MEBREE
BEUHBEEOEL TN ESETAER
SRR EEES E X M98 F - HEF
ERsERBEAM A AMETHUEREE
HECIFT A (FESD) &R o AIR1T/AEH—FE
MRIRITI UM ERPENFEENEEFR
ElRRAMERBRMENEAERIY
EEISERESE

M7y ABITHR2023F 118150 #1172
250,000,000 T EE AR ZM LT AFTE
EZWHEINMRRE A ZRERR10FH
ERBREER (MEFK)) CAETEBERTT=
(EA) 3RA) Z &R © L EEFEHR 7220335
115 15H BIHf o B2 4 BB E H 420285118
ISH-RBTHEHEENHBEER F£84
7.375% B¥FENE—R - HB  MEBHK
FEEGEERNEBERLR FRNFEEETS
ERSEAEREEERES S X M58 T o5&
EESEEeERAELE NIRRT UER
BEBRIMA GEZRD) B - AIR{TIEH
—ERRRITT A R EA S NBEBNE
EFERBANERBRREFNEAER
B EENF BT

AEBTHEBEGRRIPRIZSOENS
R REE L R 2 BRI 1B =124,000,00078 7T
(20234F : =137,000,00057T) ©

33.

Note:

SUBORDINATED NOTES (continued)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 15 January 2029
with an optional redemption date falling on 15 January 2024. Interest
at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The Bank may, subject
to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole
but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed
rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) has been entered into with an
international bank.

This represents US$300,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling on
2 November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the
issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis points. The
Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on SOFR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
November 2023 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 November 2033 with an optional redemption date falling on
15 November 2028. Interest at 7.375% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 295 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on SOFR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay
at maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$124
million higher (2023: HK$137 million higher) than the above
carrying amount.
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34, IRIEFRIE

EIERIEE ERBENHIHRTERERESEN
TSR A IE S EM BV HRTR B & (B K
EIEFR TR AR — IR B A R 5 Al T -
HIHZBERNT -

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as

follows:
LGB T Tsm HKS'000 2024 2023
FIERIEE E Deferred income tax assets 159,481 165,823
EIERIEEE Deferred income tax liabilities (91,821) (100,921)

EERIEE E B RIREEREZ R 2 EE
BB 2 Fast BER D0 T

LGB T o5

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected
date of recovery and settlement are as follows:

HKS'000 2024 2023

BIERIREE
—AIER(E A BRI 2 IEIER TR &

Deferred income tax assets:
- Deferred income tax assets to be

recovered after more than 12 months 299,820 299,443
EERRIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
—ETRERBEEZIEILRIBERE - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled after more than 12 months (232,160) (234,541)
67,660 64,902
RIEFRIEAR B AR BN T - The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:
LOBWEF T3 HKS'000 2024 2023
181H At 1 January 64,902 226,006
BA—EREAR Acquisition of a subsidiary (181) -
PirE R EIRARRIBEE, . (1) Tax credited/(charged) to the consolidated
(f$5E14) income statement (Note 14) 26,579 (51,292)
REMEEmNEARIESZ H (T5E38) Tax charged to other comprehensive income
(Note 38) (20,771) (108,662)
ERESR Exchange difference (2,869) (1,150)
12H31H At 31 December 67,660 64,902

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5




34, IRIEFRIE @@

BEMBEEERBRREAFEZEE) 76
BEREEREEER THIH 2GRN T

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

IRERMIEEE © Deferred income tax assets:
R
EEREE EEZH
Impairment  MIRMRHITE Rt
allowances  Accelerated Deferred RESf
and tax MR%EE expenses  Investment =
LOBBFAR HKS'000 provisions  depreciation Taxlosses  andothers  revaluation Total
ABEIAIR At1 January 2023 25,354 . . 1,89 79,136 347384
RETREERENIE Reclassified from deferred income tax liabilities - 07 - - 416 843
PRERER (i) /[ (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statement (22,332) 200 95 17,490 - (4,547)
REMEEREASE Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - (43,181) (43,181)
ERZE Exchange difference (844) - - (212) - (1,056)
ARENFAAARAMEIRIE  At3LDecember 2023 and 1 January 2024 20,178 627 % 60,172 36,371 299,043
PralaiRAEE/ i) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
income statement 25,756 (309) (95) 7,979 - 33,331
REMEERGERS H Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - (29,387) (29,387)
ERZEZE Exchange difference (2,294) - - (1,273) - (3,567)
04E0A3A At 31 December 2024 225,640 318 - 66,878 6,984 299,820
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34. IRIERRTE @ 34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

IRIERIEEE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
AELERE
RiE
Impairment  TIERIRFEINE REMEER
allowances  Accelerated Investment REEfR
and tax BE  properties  Investment Ai

LEEF AT HKS'000 provisions  depreciation  Provisions  revaluation  revaluation Total
2023E181H At1 January 2023 - 81,343 - 3,369 36,666 121,378
ENNBEEIREEE Reclassified to deferred income

tax assets - a7 - - 416 843
PiREUEIRASH,/ (T4  Charged/(credited) to the consolidated

income statement 34 26,980 10,851 (136) 9,016 46,745
REM2ERGEATE Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - 65,481 65,481
ERER Exchange difference - - - - 9% 9%
03F12A31HK At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

204F151H 34 108,750 10,851 3,233 111,673 234,541

BA-BHEAT Acquisition of a subsidiary - 181 - - - 181
PEEURGERA (I8 /%4 (Credited)/charged to the consolidated

income statement (34) 3,207 (1,880) (396) 5,855 6,752
REMZELEAEE Credited to other comprehensive income - - - - (8,616) (8,616)
BREE Bxchange difference - - (343) - (355) (698)
2024128317 At 31 December 2024 - 112,138 8,628 2,837 108,557 232,160

TaAEAREMPEREA S 2 IRER The deferred income tax charged to other comprehensive income

5! during the year is as follows:
LGB T TR HK$'000 2024 2023
NI R R 2 AT ERE Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
—URTFERHE B HE S A HAh - financial assets at fair value through
ZERENEREE (5538) other comprehensive income
(Note 38) (20,771) (108,662)

214  KERITAIRAR 20245F £



35. HEBNT 4R
$é?$#ﬂ%@%@a%ﬁ%%@?&—

35. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position

e EIRRET X BT EL 2 A eRs+51T0 captions are balances with the ultimate and immediate holding

T companies arising from transactions conducted on normal
commercial terms:

LGB TF TR HKS'000 2024 2023

EIEEHAEMKRE Advances and other accounts 598 11,093

BERER Deposits from customers 473,596 237,506

HER B &R Other accounts and accruals 19,446 15,086

REVBRRIRNREREEARRWBAR
ZAEERSESIE

]

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
captions are balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

LCEBET Tlug)m HKS'000 2024 2023
BIEAHAMERE Advances and other accounts 7,564 7,925
BERER Deposits from customers 631,148 530,212
HAthER B K812 Other accounts and accruals 14,376 14,896

36. ABBERIEKIE
(FF) BAKIE

R12A31RRBRNAREREE ZBRER
KIBABEEEZ EAEENT

LGB T Tlug)m

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

HKS'000 2024 2023

BENERERERZHX

Expenditure contracted but not provided for 20,821 50,729
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36. WABEREE @

(2) FEXifE

FEBEERERIINEAERETERZEH
THEENZBEMREEERBMEHERNT :

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit

to customers are as follows:

BHEEE
Contract amount
LGBEF TS HKS'000 2024 2023
BERGEERER Direct credit substitutes 249,050 1,572,787
R S AIEE Transaction-related contingencies 395,699 356,134
BB Z 18k 2 S ATEE Trade-related contingencies 450,156 393,322

BIERAFEUE T AR B

Commitments that are unconditionally

i cancellable without prior notice 57,897,554 62,066,805
H R Other commitments 5,200,505 4,383,439
64,192,964 68,772,487

EERIELEE
Credit risk weighted amount
LOBMEF o5 HKS'000 2024 2023
HARBBRIEIE Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,155,128 2,119,544

EEREMEHZBEDREGRITE EX) R
RI)Frst&E e

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with

the Banking (Capital) Rules.



36. WABEREE @

(R) BIEHERZEE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

LGB T TR HKS'000 2024 2023
BRI IHERZAREERK Trading assets and financial investments
ERKEFAEER pledged to secure liabilities 1,143,336 2,473,697
—H  EOEE - of which: under repurchase agreements 744,891 2,373,752
BRFRzBERRE Amount of liabilities secured 1,130,231 2,397,069
—HA  ZOERHE - of which: under repurchase agreements 732,140 2,297,216

ERIITRIER R ANEEME HIERIFE
BRERZBEE -ZSXZHREEREEH
AL 5 (BSOS 0 SRR & A AR
BREMEIER T Z I12 ) IR T

(T) REEHEXKIE

MAEEZ REABHEAN > BABIBUEYE
REREMRN KRB 2 RIEEE I TRAEEE
LI

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted
to secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These
transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and
customary to collateralised transactions including repurchase
agreements, and include assets pledged to cover short positions
and to facilitate settlement processes with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease

payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating

leases are as follows:

LGB TR HKS'000 2024 2023
1FELA Within 1 year 14,747 12,260
1FZ2F Between 1 and 2 years 5,193 8,470
2EFEE3F Between 2 and 3 years 2,881 834
IFEAF Between 3 and 4 years 1,431 -
AFESE Between 4 and 5 years 1,431 -
SELE Later than 5 years 6,201 -

31,884 21,564

9N > AREBEA AT A > B 520245 2023
F12R318 B & TIMABBZHAE 1%
ZEHEMEL N ZHEENREESA
5,400,00078 7T (20234F : 10,259,000787T) ©

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number
of leases as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 that have not yet
commenced. The aggregate lease payments payable under these

leases amount to HK$5,400,000 (2023: HK$10,259,000).
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37. Bga

37. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
BEEL &7 e &N
ZiEhg Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
BEITREERE issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1818 &12831H At 1 January and 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000

2024F 12 831HEE T EBERRMDEE S
#562,000,0008% (2023%F : 62,000,0000%) cFTEE
BT BRSBTS

are fully paid.

The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December
2024 is 62 million shares (2023: 62 million shares). All issued shares

#E 38. RESERVES
IEEfm RESHE REEH
ikt ikt )
BAfE  Premises Investment ERGHE  —MREE  Retained
Consolidation Revaluation Revaluation  Exchange General  Earnings ai
LGB Flidn HKS'000 Reserve  Reserve  Reserve  Reserve  Reserve (Note) Total
20451810 At1 January 2024 8827 233,100 1,656,055  (650,025) 700,254 24,271,480 26,219,691
AR IERERRES ) HEDUAT (T2 Fair value loss realised and transferred to
BEEF:HAHM2ERER  income statement upon disposal
BRIEAFMBIATEZER  of debtinstruments at fair value
REBERIR through other comprehensive income
upon derecognition - - 103 - - - 103
DIATESTEEEESET A Netchangein fair value of debt
EMRERENESTAZ  instrumentsat fair value through
ATHEEHFE other comprehensive income - - 177,285 - - - 177,285
FEGER s HAREN Share of other comprehensive income of
Bensz At ERE an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - 196,408 - - - 196,408
DIATEFEEEZE A Net changein fair value of equity
Htr2mamagait instruments at fair value through
TEZNTHEEIER other comprehensive income - - (156,891) - - - (156,891)
RESHEFESHZRILRE  Deferred income tax on movements in
(izE34) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) - - (0 - - - (0m)
DUAFEFSEEEHTA  Netchangein allowance for expected
Hth2ERENEBIEY  creditlosses of debt instruments
EHEEFEEBEHFE  atfairvalue through other
comprehensive income - - 26,907 - - - 26,907
\“M:EE 2R BRI Reclassification of net change in fair value
PHEFIEEEESHA of equity instruments at fair value
Eft2miamEn through other comprehensive income
TREZATEEEFE upon derecognition - - 7,400 - - (7,400) -
BEENDEITEAREME  Reserves arising from reclassification of
Ik premises to investment properties - 45,533 = = - o 45,533
BIMERIETEZIRSTIE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - (134,636)  (134,636)
HEEIMEENHRE Exchange differences arising on translation
MERER of the financial statements of
foreign entities - - - (290,718) - - (290,718)
FERH Profit for the year - - - - - 2,083,242 2,083,242
WREREARE 2023 final dividend = - - - - (694,800)  (694,400)
WUERERE 2024 interim dividend - - - - - (382,540)  (382,540)
204F12A310 At 31 December 2024 8827 2718633 1886496  (940,743) 700,254 25135746 27,069,213

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5



38. f#E @

38. RESERVES (continued)

HE1ANHILEE
Year ended 31 December
LGBIEFT 5T HKS'000 2024 2023
BIEMMRE RN RN BRRERE, Proposed final dividend/final dividend paid
EIRKREAR E (fisE16) included in retained earnings (Note 16) 551,800 694,400

5

FIETANEERBET AR GRS BRHFREER
PREBUSN 2 RAEBE R - T ZEEE B (RS
B PIRE EIRTT R AMRTT (P ED)) H A EE AR
TEROIRUBEEEABNZ RMEEERE - Z
EERARRAIKETREZHBSE-BEEHB
ZEBHAREREERETHN LERN S
LSRN

1120245128318 » AN iR17 B 5 544,500,00078 7T

(20234 : 616,530,000787T) ~ RAFAEE FMiE
KRS ES —REE REBULRRTZEERE
BFIFIEE

Note:

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$544,500,000 (2023: HK$616,530,000) first against the consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against the
consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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38. HE®

38. RESERVES (continued)

TEEfE  REER URAAE  RERF
i it v i)
RAtE Premises  Investment EREE —f#E  Share-based Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General Compensation Earnings a5t
LOBIST A5 HKS 000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
203F151H At1January 2023 8821 233,100 97,604 (493,816) 700,254 16,053 23,077,097 23,639,119
WATEsEEELEEA  Netchangein fair value of debt

H2ENENERTE  instruments at fair value through

ZATHEEEFE other comprehensive income - - 298,270 - - - - 298,270
[EIEEGEEHARIEN  Share of other comprehensive income of

BeNFzEM2AENE  anassociate accounted for using the

equity method - - 248,924 - - - - 248,924
WATEHEEEZEA  Netchangein fair value of equity

Hth2ERENERS instruments at fair value through

TEZATEEHE other comprehensive income - - 1,086,307 - - - - 1,086,307
R ES(EREEE ZIRIERTE Deferred income tax on movementsin

(Hi3E4) investment revaluation reserve

(Note 34) - - (108,662) - - - - (108,662)
LUATESHEBEEEE A Net change in allowance for expected

HEt2EBEHEKETE  creditlosses of debt instruments

ZEBEESEERED atfairvalue through other

2 comprehensive income - - 33612 - - - - 3612
BIMERIETAZIREZUE  Distribution payment of additional

equity instruments - - - - - - (135,025) (135,025)
HEEIMEEMBRE Exchange differences arising on
NEREE translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - (156,209) - - - (156,209)
LIRS (SLURIAEAREE  Provision of equity-settled share-based

Bz BEREMREE compensation - - - - - 54 - 54
DURHESZ (TOURARES  Settlement of equity-settled share-

ERERm 24 based compensation - - - - - (16,107) - (16,107)
EERF Profitfor the year - - - - - - 1,850,208 1,850,208
WFFRHRE 2022 final dividend - - - - - - (378,200) (378,200)
ABFHHRE 2023 interim dividend - - - - - - (142,600) (142,600)
203E12A31H At31 December 2023 88271 233,100 1,656,055 (650,025) 700,254 - 24,271,480 26,219,691

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5




39. FEIMEmMTHR
LGB T T3

39. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

HKS'000 2024 2023

150,000,0003= o8B IMER E T A

122022512 58H » AIRTTETHEEEHH
TEIZ FHAS % 74150,000,0005= 70 2 FEHAFR IER
BB ERS 2 EIN—RERES (MBI
BARES)) o BB —REXEBSDIAK
FrER1TEE B K AHT = FE14110,000,0003E 7T K
40,000,000E T2 BIE3HE ©

HEEBTERBNARIT REEETE
BEERZ BFEBER B AMEEEE N —
mEARES AR SRIIRITREAEE
AN —RERESF AR ERMBES
BEERPETR 58

HETTHEH2027F12H8H 2 BEE M ER
HiE IR IR E R ERB11.5% FFEZ (T —
Ko Bz HEEIM— AR E AT SR IED]) K
BEEERBUSSFEE]— 1 BERSFHRE
BB 15 25 B N788%5 F o IRIRERIN— AR S

BB AR AR PRV E 2 FRTE > A ER1T
BREBUHIKEZ > REBUH Z K211
FER5to

RESEBTERASLAE RIBTANE
EMHEEHRRBZIRE M AUZEER
BBEIFFA GEED) BRIM—IRE A S o

US$150,000,000 AT1 Capital Securities 1,167,810 1,167,810

On 8 December 2022, the Bank issued Basel Ill-compliant undated
non-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities
(the “AT1 Capital Securities”) with a total notional principal of
US$150,000,000. The AT1 Capital Securities were subscribed
in full by DSBG and DSFH to the extent of US$110,000,000 and
US$40,000,000 respectively.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up
to the amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the
Bank that in the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government
body that a write-off is necessary, without which the Bank would
become non-viable.

Distribution at 11.5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the
issue date to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December
2027. Thereafter, if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed,
the distribution rate will be reset every 5 years and it will bear
distribution at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus
788 basis points. The Bank has the right to cancel distribution
payment, subject to the requirement as set out in the terms and
conditions of the AT1 Capital Securities, and the distribution
cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part,
at par either on the optional redemption date or any distribution
payment date thereafter.
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and losses
on certain investments and fixed assets to net cash used in

HARE operating activities
LGB T T sm HKS'000 2024 2023
NFEETREREEEE W& Operating profit before gains and losses on certain
E18R1 2 B R investments and fixed assets 1,794,965 2,005,781
) BUA Net interest income (5,288,058) (4,815,137)
B B R Dividend income (14,500) (32,746)
EERERE Credit impairment losses 1,791,361 731,311
e Depreciation 388,804 361,004
BREIE - BRrisE $E8 Advances written off net of recoveries (1,353,308) (1,284,633)
DUBSHESZ (S AR (E A E RN 2 B8 Provision for equity-settled share-based compensation - 54
BUFIE Interest received 12,015,789 11,162,676
BEFE Interest paid (6,881,130) (5,411,661)
BUREE Dividend received 14,500 32,746
SESEKMBEEFE 2 EERT Operating profit before changes in operating assets
and liabilities 2,468,423 2,749,395
SEBERBEZES: Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—RERERITHEGRREIEBREBE - cash and balances with banks and money at call
3ME 2 Z B S FE TR R and short notice with an original maturity
beyond three months (2,389,609) 757,616
—REIEAHBI83E B 2 TiRITHER - placements with banks with an original maturity
beyond three months (1,075,989) 3,597,492
—FHER ZFTRES - trading securities (1,393,727) 458,177
—TEERTA - derivative financial instruments 42,914 616,869
—URTHEsTE BEEEE T ABEN - financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
TRIEE 3,944 1,087
—BZEE — trade bills 583,778 1,606,671
— B P ERRER - loans and advances to customers 4,675,191 (6,519,105)
—HAEWERE - other accounts receivable 457,321 (692,326)
—MURTEsTEEHES G AEMEE - financial assets at fair value through other
WA SR EE comprehensive income (5,692,704) 68,922
—DUBBRA AT BRI SR E - financial assets at amortised cost 3,681,151 (6,351,827)
—iRITER - deposits from banks (548,808) (1,627,449)
—REXZRATRNER - trading liabilities 398,216 (630,638)
—BPRER - deposits from customers (5,592,104) 7,500,483
— B T1FAREE - certificates of deposit issued 1,889,361 (1,796,485)
—HEMSIRE RTER - other accounts payable and accruals 440,606 (377,551)
P O EAEE Exchange adjustments 339,069 (43,440)
&S EBPTANIRE Cash absorbed by operating activities (1,712,967) (682,109)
BB THNEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of deposit issued (139,733) (176,733)
EEEEATER Hong Kong profits tax paid (255,841) (215,280)
E A B Pyt BRI ER Mainland China and Macau tax paid (17,426) (12,891)
REEBFTAREFRA Net cash used in operating activities (2,125,967) (1,087,013)
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible
to known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

LGB T TSR HKS'000 2024 2023
REMIERITIVAERR Cash and balances with banks 2,246,486 2,675,034
FEEIEABEE A AT 2B R R2 iR Money at call and short notice with an

original maturity within three months 8,454,639 12,679,755
[REIEABTE3E A U T 2 I RITERR Placements with banks with an original

maturity within three months 1,577,086 394,929
BERFER 7 BRE SN BEZE Treasury bills included in trading securities 597,920 1,725,135

BERUATEFEBHEEHFA
HitheERaESREERNZ BERE

FR8s 8 B REF N PR THYAE 7425,233,00078
7T (20234 : 397,080,000 7T) BILIRE KR ER
HEBEBE RETIMRAEZE BRERER
TRYAERRIBRIE T o

Treasury bills included in financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income 59,717 1,489,951

12,935,848 18,964,804

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$425,233,000 (2023:
HK$397,080,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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4. FERERELERMET @ 40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(R) REMEESHZARZHIRR (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
TRFMAERREME LB BRES The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
EERERIIFREZEFH REMEGTE Y financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
B EHREMEHR KRR EEIR Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
ERFESREMEAERADBEAMELE cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
ReEnzaBEe consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
FEREEE
2 BB
Total
liabilities
HEaE BEES FE(IFIS from
Lease Subordinated Interest financing
LOBBEF i) HKS'000 liabilities notes payable activities
12023F181H At1 January 2023 533,535 3,801,495 51,949 4,386,979
MERERE Changes from financing cash flows:
iﬁe@%ﬂ%@;ﬁz?ﬁj,ﬁ Interest paid on subordinated notes - - (309,761) (309,761)
BITRERHE Issue of subordinated notes - 1,939,796 - 1,939,796
BERESE Repayment of lease liabilities (148,964) - - (148,964)
MBERESR 281055 Total changes from financing cash flows (148,964) 1,939,796 (309,761) 1,481,071
Hits) . Other changes:
BETREERZENFE Interest accrued on subordinated notes - - 328,257 328,257
mEEEaR Additions to lease liabilities 99,473 - - 99,473
BERER Exchange difference (165) 7376 _ 7211
NEEEAEE Fair value hedge adjustment - 167,978 - 167,978
Hithighieza Total other changes 99,308 175,354 328,257 602,919
12023512831 At 31 December 2023 483,879 5,916,645 70,445 6,470,969
ERER Exchange difference (1,897) - - (1,897)
202451518 At 1 January 2024 481,982 5,916,645 70,445 6,469,072
MERERE Changes from financing cash flows:
iﬁe@%ﬂ%@;ﬁz?ﬁj,ﬁ Interest paid on subordinated notes - - (384,929) (384,929)
BREEES Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,759,714) - (1,759,714)
BERESE Repayment of lease liabilities (141,682) - - (141,682)
RERES R 2 E8EEE Total changes from financing cash flows (141,682) (1,759,714) (384,929) (2,286,325)
Hitgs) . Other changes:
BETREGH RIS Interest accrued on subordinated notes - - 344,230 344,230
meHEaR Additions to lease liabilities 38,085 - - 38,085
ERER Exchange difference - (25,658) = (25,658)
NTEH PR Fair value hedge adjustment - 15,641 - 15,641
Hnghiaze Total other changes 38,085 (10,017) 344,230 372,298
142024125317 At 31 December 2024 378,385 4,146,914 29,746 4,555,045
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41. ERTESFRHERRERKE

RIBEEBATES (556226%) F1781 K E
EFNEER)  AHERTESEH E20245F
F2023F 12831 HIEFEZINEHF T2
glo

LGBEET Tlug)m

41. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONNECTED
WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 are shown as below.

HKS'000 2024 2023

RRANBZ AR SR EERER

—ENREY

i

FRNERRZZRBSMBIER

—ERREB®R

7R2024F F72023F Lt 2 FrBE BRARZ S H K
R1TERET o

2. BREALTZRS

FIRTZ ERERARAIRTERARA
8] (TRHIRITER)) RREERABTRNE
REATEEBEMNE B LH AT -

1220244 220235 » RIRITIR— AR FE &R
BN B R EMBRM B AR ST LB
BRAER 5 BIEIRTTREERRBE - HE
KA ENER— R ED  IREEMIRTT
ART% o

S > AIRTT IR RARIER A B R AR &M
BABIRMBIRITHRE  HEKRDHEY
ESUEENhZYNSIK

Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at 31 December
- Loans and advances 698 984

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
- Loans and advances 1,500 1,233

The above relevant transactions in 2024 and 2023 were all
transacted by the Bank.

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company is DSBG and the
ultimate holding company is DSFH. Both holding companies are
incorporated and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2024 and 2023, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other
fellow subsidiaries on normal commercial terms and conditions
and at market rates. These transactions include interbank
placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution of life
and general insurance products and the provision of other banking
services.

In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative
services to its immediate and ultimate holding companies and
its fellow subsidiaries, leases and sub-leases properties to fellow
subsidiaries.
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2. GRAEALZRZ @ 42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

BEEREATZEARRRZUWT ! Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:
() R ATIRRARMBARNRZ KRS (a) Transactions and balances with holding companies and
B fellow subsidiaries
(i) WARSEH (i) Income and expenses
BIERREERAR RARHBAE
Immediate and ultimate
holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
LUBET T 5 HKS'000 2024 2023 2024 2023
BAFE Interest paid (1) (263) (13,799) (21,391)
BUFIE Interest received = = - 1
BWEE Commission received = = 31,385 30,782
BURARTSE, Wl Service fee received/recovery of
HirgiEs other operating expenses 6,737 6,659 6,310 5,441
B E RIERAE Rental and related building
BIRE management fee received - - 2,484 2,484
ENEMEESTH Other operating expenses paid - = (43,107) (25,681)
BfNHEE Rental paid - - (4,356) (4,531)
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() HEFERFTEEENEZEAXS
ReiZER

FR NRTTIRBUWEER EE 5
FREERETTEEEAS  HITR
R EL i S s PRI B 1 2 > tEARFS
RIEBEKBRPIREREEME T K
FRAEE

TEEEBEAESZRGREEZWRARS
B AER > MERREFRZ AT

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and
key management personnel

During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with the
key management personnel, their close family members
and the entities controlled by them including deposit taking,
loans, credit card facilities and investment services. These
transactions were provided in the ordinary course of business
and at the same terms with other employees.

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

LOBIET 3T HKS'000 2024 2023
BERRBR Loans and advances 716 984
PaE Deposits 572,149 438,197
KAz BFUEEA Undrawn commitments 4,451 4,133
(R Guarantee = -

(i) FTEEEANEME

FFTETEZEEBAERWITES HR
ME B EE R 25 RMIEE15°

() BEMEARRHEEEHERZ X B RS
BR

FARACABTWRIBEHBEELARDEERT
287,558,00078 7T (20234 : 198,237,000/87T) IR E
WA © 132024512831 H » A ER1TI FEE =
EERTEHNE ZEEE (20235F | BERX) ©
FA RIBTEEHBEEGER 2 ER M
H1£20245F12 531 H 7 704 87 #3303,401,00078
70 (2023%F : 113,786,000/87T) ° A » AIRTT
U Z) FB T B3I B B8 24,980,00078 7T (20234 !
20,140,000787T) B B U < 1B LT 5 R AG RS
HHBEBEER—REERTIZTIGNE
FEESE -

(ii) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Bank are executive
directors and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entities

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$287,558,000 (2023: HK$198,237,000). As
at 31 December 2024, there is no outstanding balance of trade
bills issued by BOCQ accepted by the Bank (2023: no outstanding
balance). During the year, the Bank took deposits from jointly
controlled entities and the balance of deposit as at 31 December
2024 was HK$303,041,000 (2023: HK$113,786,000). During the year,
the Bank received from a jointly controlled entity dividend income
of HK$24,980,000 (2023: HK$20,140,000). The transactions and
balances were provided in the ordinary course of business and on
normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
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43. DUBRn A EEREEREN 518
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
compensation plans. Details of the share-based compensation
paid to directors under these plans are disclosed in Note 12.

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Schemes (the “DSBG
Share Option Schemes”) and the Share Option Schemes of its
holding company, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“DSFH Share Option Schemes”), equity-settled share-based
compensation is available to directors and senior executives
of the Group.

(i) DSBG Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on
27 May 2014 (the “Old DSBG Share Option Scheme”)
had expired on 27 May 2024. On 31 May 2024, the
shareholders of the Company approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “New DSBG Share
Option Scheme”).

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG
Share Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Share Option
Scheme since the date of its adoption to the date of its

wr expiration are as follows:
BEaEE
AIRITEER
SRRGHEH
RS E
Number of DSBG  EZ1THE (BT)
= #a5! B 171EHA shares in share Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period options granted per share (HKS)
2018F4526H DR sz {t 2018F4F26HE  2019F4H26HE
2023F4526H 2024F4526H
26 April 2018 Equity-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 - 1,500,000 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
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LE RS R 201558 27TH RN
OB EET 8 (TR SRS SRR ST
ET

R RAESSOARIE ST B B ER M B
AR IR IR AR 2B EESD
IRfEStEIR L » KT R EDRE
stEIR LR NERFULSTEE—
TIRBERIRARE
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PRAERIRIN 2 SZHINT -

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
(ii) DSFH Share Option Schemes

On 31 May 2024, the shareholders of DSFH approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
DSFH Share Option Scheme”) and, at the same time,
the termination of the share option scheme adopted
by DSFH on 27 May 2015 (the “Old DSFH Share Option
Scheme”).

No share options had been granted under the Old DSFH
Share Option Scheme since the date of its adoption and
no further share options can be offered under the Old
DSFH Share Option Scheme after its termination.

No share options had been granted under the New DSFH
Share Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.

Equity-settled share-based compensation charged to
consolidated income statement is as follows:

LOBMEF o5 HKS'000 2024 2023
DU HESZ (S 2 R AR Equity-settled options = 54
ARG HES: {1 22 SRR 1 Equity-settled options

LI AR ERTT SR B EE SR AR R 5 BIPT I%
Tz LR EX BRI HINE T H
ZAFEDU=ZEAREEEREE
o

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the
Old DSBG Share Option Scheme described above, the fair
value is determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing
Model at the date when the options are granted.
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43, UURR(n AERERIETE @ 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

(FA) LABGHESZ (FLARRID A EREERINETE @ (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
() LURIEST (1520815128 4 (a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
LURRHES {3 2 B R @ Equity-settled options (Continued)

BT 2 RS B R E T 91THE Movements in the number of share options granted and their
28T related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
AsRITEBED e E) AEEREIR e
0ld DSBG Share Option Scheme 0ld DSFH Share Option Scheme
2024 2023 2024 2023
B¥9 H-ad) e ) )
FBEAH FEEXH B B8
HTER RITEE KE&R (A

RRiER  miETs ket mEm RBRER O mEms 2RET R
RPHE I kih¥E TE  RAYME B ROHE (icac!

Number of (#B7T)  Number of (70 Number of (B7T)  Number of (870)
DSBG  Weighted DSBG Weighted DSFH  Weighted DSFH Weighted
shares in average sharesin average sharesin average sharesin average
share exercise share exercise share exercise share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS$) granted (HK$) granted (HKS) granted (HK$)
181A At 1 January 1,200,000 1824 1200000 18.24 - = - -
By Granted - = - - = = - -
BIBERKN Expired and lapsed (1,200,000) 18.24 - - - = - -
BT Exercised - = - - = = - -
[Epedle Forfeited - = - - = = - -
12A31A At 31 December = - 1200000 18.24 - = - -
12A31H AT Exercisable at 31 December - - 1,200,000 18.24 - - - -
FR2024F12831H T EFEAIKRITHEZ There is no share options outstanding under the Old DSBG
KHIBITEBEER RSB 2 TR Share Option Scheme as of 31 December 2024 (2023:
(2023%F | RITEZRREZITHEES outstanding share options with exercise price of HK$18.24 and
182478 T R L INHE T 1T R BT B HAR 2 a weighted average remaining vesting period of 0.32 years). In
0.32%F) *FAMAKEREERRERITHA respect of directors and senior executives of the Group, there
BREAZ KifreRish i > 1120245F12 is no DSFH’s share option outstanding as of 31 December 2024
BB RAERTEZ KT EmeR R EST (2023: Nil).
B 2 RREHE (20235 1 RBETHEZBR
1) o
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(ii)

(iv)
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(b) Share award scheme

DSBG and DSFH have each established a share award scheme
(hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Share Award Scheme”
and the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” respectively) as another
long-term incentive plan to recognise the contribution or
value of certain employees or directors and to motivate and
incentivise them in furtherance of the long-term business
objectives of the Group. Details of the schemes are as follows:

(i) Both schemes were adopted on 9 September 2021 for a
term of 10 years.

(i) Any employee or director (including executive director,
non-executive director and independent non-executive
director) of the Company or any other member of the
Group is eligible to participate in the Scheme.

(iii) The Board or its Delegate shall determine the vesting
schedule, vesting criteria and other conditions in the
Award Letter.

(iv) The Award Shares should be acquired via on-market
purchase and/or issue of new shares.

(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme

The scheme was adopted on 9 September 2021 (updated
and amended on 30 March 2022 and further amended
and restated on 31 May 2024). Award shares granted
under the scheme since the date of its adoption till 31
December 2024 are as follows:

BRATE

(&)

®¥H BFIREIRR (D EE R B AR Fair value per share

Date of grant Number of award shares granted Vesting period (HKS)

20224E12H6H 358,100 2022F12H6HZE 18.34
20274 126H
6 December 2022 6 December 2022 -
6 December 2027

2023FF4H83H 848,782 20234830 E 20.15
20265F4H3H
3 April 2023 3 April 2023 -
3 April 2026

2024F4H83H 1,132,790 2024F4H38E 19.34
2027 4H3H
3 April 2024 3 April 2024 -
3 April 2027
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
(b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Share award expense charged to consolidated income

Han statement is as follows:

LOCBIEF o3 HKS'000 2024 2023

B BN tH Share award expense 19,795 14,054
BT RNZENEE 2 ST Movements in the number of award shares granted as

follows:

KRR (5 12BN 52 RErERITEE BB D 12BN 518

DSFH Share Award Scheme  DSBG Share Award Scheme

2024 2023 2024 2023

KRl A¥rEm KMIRITEE AHRITEE

RinEE eS| aGE L] g e

Number of Number of Number of Number of

DSFH shares  DSFH shares DSBG shares DSBG shares

1A1H At 1 January 1,133,022 358,100 - -

g Granted 1,132,790 848,782 = -

il Vested (353,862) (70,940) = -

K Lapsed (480) (2,920) = -

128314 At 31 December 1,911,470 1,133,022 - -

SRz ATE Fair value per share HK$19.47 HK$19.70 = -

FRRMERSEIE FRMNFE -

Details of award shares granted during the year:

BRZAFE
BT R SIS E (#7T) SmRE
Number of Fair value Vesting period
#FH award shares per share =2 F
Date of grant granted (HKS) From To
2024F483H 1,132,790 19.34 2024 4H3H 2027 483H
3 April 2024 3 April 2024 3 April 2027

232 KERITAIRAT 20245 F5§



43. DURRID AERRERIETE @
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(Z) BR1PZZRHE @)

(b) Share award scheme (Continued)

(1) KHERARITIZRENEE @
BRI B2 Rh St &R BRER B AR -

(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Remaining vesting periods of award shares outstanding:

2024F12H31H 202312531
At 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2023

TR B AR IANEE  FIERER B HAR f1nEE
Remaining Remaining

vesting Number of vesting Number of

BHnEFE Shares granted in period shares period shares

20224F12H6H 6 December 2022 2.93%F 212,820 3.937F 284,240
2.93 years 3.93 years

20235F4H3H 3 April 2023 1.25%F 565,860 2.26%F 848,782
1.25 years 2.26 years

20245F4H3H 3 April 2024 2,255 1,132,790 - -

BB TETEERBIUETH
REE2024F12831H IEFEE(EH
HE R 0 2024F ERVRIVIEALE R
2025F3A28HB M T EIEEENS
ERET -AEENETETIKRES
(MSHRITEAEL) 12024 1KRIT
TEAL B ZRIBFEFEMELE H A
NEE RO FR2022FE M EZEERG
BARITEA B BIEMA BT IR &
1 A A 2 RAAR (D SR Bh 51 8 25 iU
IEFN S o 2024 RIBIEAL T 5
BATHA BN ZHE BIRLUELESE
WA EMED > E5220255-3528
HRARITEEGRANERHMNE
EEBEB-BTERITHABIES
2024 F RIFICALIEIEM &2 2
BEPRLERD BT ERTER
EEENRMIREE GRS
B 8 B 15 Ry EL AR > i =48
HARIA D =@t o

2.25 years

As a reward to eligible employees to recognise their
contribution for the year ended 31 December 2024,
2024 performance bonus was advised to or paid to
eligible employees including directors of the Group as
of 28 March 2025. For certain employees and directors
(“Senior Management”) of the Group, their 2024
performance bonus was granted in the form of deferred
remuneration similar to prior years, and starting from
2022 performance year, a portion of the deferred
remuneration payable to the Senior Management is in
the form of deferred shares granted under the DSFH
Share Award Scheme. The arrangement of the payment
of 2024 performance bonus to Senior Management,
including granting to them deferred shares, was
approved by the Board of the Bank and the Board of
DSFH on 28 March 2025. The deferred shares granted
as a portion of the deferred remuneration to the Senior
Management as their 2024 performance bonus will be
vested in three equal tranches over a three-year period,
subject to vesting and satisfying other conditions per
the bonus and share award letter given to the Senior
Management.
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518522021989 H KA (7220245
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AP IRIE AR TEE B AR S SR 5T
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RATRITEBE NN EMERI—IBURE
SR A B BRI 58 (D55
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REEAIEE)  EREBESNRIIER

sta&le

(F) ARFIRTTEE BEEB1EF 512

1£2023F 12858 » KFTRITERALER
TR BN RN ET & (TARHIRTTEE TR
EhRERISTEI) - 0 ERIE R RFAA AR 1220185
38208 /40 2 SR ENRERISTEI (TARTERTT
EEEREEREE) o

RHIRITEBERBEN B IEE
SR ETBE— P IR H IR R > tE
RATIRTTEE B B ZE R A 518 2 RS
AR EERBEF 5t R LR B %
BB IR ARITEEZREF M S
DEAEBM A AER

BAREBRREENEFRMAEE
20245128311 Lk B RIBIEFT AHIR
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
(b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(2) DSBG Share Award Scheme

The scheme was adopted on 9 September 2021
(amended and restated on 31 May 2024). By the end of 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023, no award share
was granted under DSBG Share Award Scheme.

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

DSBG and DSFH have each adopted cash-settled share-based
incentive option schemes (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG
Incentive Option Schemes” and the “DSFH Incentive Option
Schemes” respectively) as a long-term incentive plan to incentivise
employees.

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Schemes

On 5 December 2023, DSBG approved the adoption of a new
incentive option scheme (the “New DSBG Incentive Option
Scheme”) and, at the same time, the termination of the
incentive option scheme adopted by DSBG on 20 March 2018
(the “Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme”).

No further incentive options can be offered under the Old
DSBG Incentive Option Scheme after its termination, but the
provisions of the Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
allow grantees to exercise incentive options granted prior to
the termination of the Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme but
not yet exercised at the time of termination.

No incentive options had been granted under the New DSBG
Incentive Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Schemes (Continued)

Incentive options granted under the Old DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December

T 2024 are as follows:

FIRITEEE (Bo)
=] b=l Sw B HAR 1T{EHA Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
20184526 LIREX 20185F4H26H E 20195F4H26H E

2023F4526H 20244526 H

26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 - 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
20195F6H5H LIREXZ 2019F6H5HE 20206 H5HE
202456 H5H 20255F6H5H

5June 2019 Cash-settled 5June 2019 - 5 June 2020 - 13.66
5 June 2024 5 June 2025
2020%E7H22H DIRE 2020E7TH2AE 2021 F7TANHE
2025 7H22H 2026 7H22H

22 July 2020 Cash-settled 22 July 2020 - 22 July 2021 - 7.33
22 July 2025 22 July 2026
20204E8H28H LIREX 20205F8H28HE 20215F8H28H E
20255E8H28H 2026F8H28H

28 August 2020 Cash-settled 28 August 2020 - 28 August 2021 - 7.44
28 August 2025 28 August 2026
202110529H LIREX 20215F10829HE 2022£F10829HE
20267F10H529H 20274E10529H

29 October 2021 Cash-settled 29 October 2021 - 29 October 2022 - 7.46
29 October 2026 29 October 2027
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SEENER SRR BT AIEEE R o

B KT < R B8 SR RO R B H RE 22024
F12A3A 1L R R E B R
SHEITRTFERES 2NN

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Schemes

On 5 December 2023, DSFH approved the adoption of a new
incentive option scheme (the “New DSFH Incentive Option
Scheme”) and, at the same time, the termination of the
incentive option scheme adopted by DSFH on 20 March 2018
(the “Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme”).

No further incentive options can be offered under the Old
DSFH Incentive Option Scheme after its termination, but the
provisions of the Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
allow grantees to exercise incentive options granted prior to
the termination of the Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme but
not yet exercised at the time of termination.

No incentive options had been granted under the New DSFH
Incentive Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.

Incentive options granted under the Old DSFH Incentive
Option Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December
2024 which are related to employees of the Group are as

follows:
BRITEE (B
#FH $a5! FREHAR 1T{EHA Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS)
2020495 28H DARE At 20206F9F28HE 20215F9F28HE 19.89
20255F9528H 20265F9H28H
28 September 2020 Cash-settled 28 September 2020 - 28 September 2021 -

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

28 September 2025 28 September 2026
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Schemes (Continued)

The incentive options were granted in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Old DSBG Incentive Option
Scheme and Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme. The exercise
prices per incentive option were concluded by the NRC on
behalf of the respective Boards of DSBG and DSFH on the
basis no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule
17.03E of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the SEHK and were determined as no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price
of DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The rights granted under the Old DSBG Incentive Option
Scheme and Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing
from the first anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to
the fulfilment of the vesting conditions set out in the option
award letter, the grantees may exercise their vested options.
No shares of DSBG or DSFH will be issued to the grantees of
the options under the Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme
and Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme which are essentially
deferred cash incentive schemes linked to the performance of
the grantees and the share price of DSBG and DSFH.

Cash-settled share-based compensation charged to

D AR ST HOT : consolidated income statement is as follows:
LB F U5 HKS'000 2024 2023
MRS 2 #EF| Cash-settled options = -
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Schemes (Continued)

MUIREX 422 #F Cash-settled options
EYEBRES 2N E RENEFS Movements in the number of options granted to employees of
THEEZEHNT the Group and their related weighted average exercise prices
are as follows:
AHSRITE BB ER 8 AHERLEE BRI 2
0ld DSBG Incentive Option Scheme 0ld DSFH Incentive Option Scheme
2024 2023 2024 2023
B¥ -
AfEE oEE R®¥ =Y
RESRAT REIRIT EE e
£E T £8  mETs ANERE O ERS KheR mETS
TR f1fEfE 1R e il f71efE il B
RAHE (Br RH¥E (Bm)  RHA%E (Bm) RMmEE =)
Numberof  Weighted  Numberof = Weighted ~Numberof  Weighted Numberof  Weighted
DSBG average DSBG average DSFH average DSFH average
shares in exercise sharesin exercise ~ sharesin exercise sharesin exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HK$)
1H1H At 1 January 13,550,000 12,39 14,250,000 12.31 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
By Granted = = - - = = - -
B Expired (4,300,000) 18.24 - - - - - -
BT Exercised - = - - = - - -
[mhillit Forfeited (150,000) 7.44 (700,000) 1062 - - - -
12A31H At 31 December 9,100,000 9.71 13,550,000 12.39 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
RARATE Exercisable at 31 December 7,870,000 10.08 10,440,000 13.48 320,000 19.89 240,000 19.89

MER T ZUREZA 2N AEE
RERBSZHRATENEAKRER

In relation to the cash-settled options granted, the Group has
recorded liabilities of HK$12,000,000 (2023: HK$12,000,000)

712,000,000 7 (20234 : 12,000,00078
70) ©

RAEEESERESRITHASTER
ZARHIRITEE B S AR BN R B B K AT
TRIEESRENMERIETE] > 522024 12H31H
KITEZLOREZ N 2 EFITEED
BN F7.338 75 £13.6678 7T (20235 !
7.33870E18.24787T) 5219.8978 7T (2023
F 1 19.89787T) » REMEFIIFERER B
HAD B 280,674 (20234F : 1.226F) F0.744F
(2023F : 1.75%F) ©

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

with reference to the fair value of the options at the reporting
date.

As at 31 December 2024, the outstanding cash-settled options
under the Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme and the Old
DSFH Incentive Option Scheme related to directors and senior
executives of the Group have exercise price in the range of
HKS$7.33 to HKS$13.66 (2023: HK$7.33 to HKS$18.24) and at
HK$19.89 (2023: HK$19.89) respectively, and a weighted
average remaining vesting period of 0.67 years (2023: 1.22
years) and 0.74 years (2023: 1.75 years) respectively.
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44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group
has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from
and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As
at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the net amount
was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 29. The amounts offset are shown below.

HKS'000 2024 2023

PR EBrhRIEE 2~ IREER
BB RIEE 2 IREER

FERE B RIGE P

QZFEGEELZHEREERS
BRARABHZEHMEERAR

B PR R

AEBGRE A EHER 5B F 5] L ARISF RS
B LURBEERE - FREEHER
B> —EHRENEH FRESRXZHTFZ
RFER HZ TG > MPAE & R FIRR B
BROPREE WP EBRNSE M FrERY
FZRGEGUBEREE R—RTEEFERH
IR MR EEREE

Gross amount of accounts receivable

from HKSCC 62,098 146,241
Gross amount of accounts payable to HKSCC (5,122) (13)
Net amount due from HKSCC 56,976 146,228

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting agreement
but not offset on the consolidated statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all
outstanding transactions with the counterparty will be terminated
and all amounts outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except
for the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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44, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting agreement
but not offset on the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

TRINITZHEE S BARWN 2 BRI FERG The following tables present details of financial instruments
BLH AR EPTA RS T EF R subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.
REEEHE REANE IEERAMBERIRA
HARA  RRRA HiE 2 A%
HiEZEMA SITZ&R  Related amounts not set
SHEEEE EESE  offinthe consolidated TS RAfKE
Gross Net statement of SEHIET
amountsof  amounts of financial position 238
recognised  financial ~ £EIE StElhE
El2E®M finandial assets  (BIEIFHRE 258
BEME liabilitiesset  presented AR Amounts
Gross offin the in the Financial gk not subject
amountsof consolidated consolidated instruments SR to
recognised statementof  statement (including Cash F%  enforceable
2045 12A31H At 31 December 2024 financial  financial  offinancial  non-cash collateral Net netting A
LOBBFAR HKS'000 assets position position  collateral) received amount  agreements Total
THEE Financial assets
i Derivative financial instruments 3,451,052 - 351,02 (1,119536) (1,592,696) 738,820 632679 4,083,731
prespn pespmy TRERAMBRREN
WREM  REm HEZENERE
HETERT FTreE Related amounts not set
ghEEeE  afsg  offintheconsolidated RS R
Gross Net statement of BT
amountsof  amounts of financial position 258
recognised  financial ~ &ETE HEE
BHIEmM  financial  liabilities (BIEIERE 288
BfEMEE  assetsset  presented i) Amounts
Gross offin the in the Financial BER not subject
amountsof consolidated consolidated instruments  REIER to
recognised statementof  statement (including Cash B8 enforceable
204F12A31H At 31 December 2024 financial  financial offinancial  non-cash collateral Net netting A
LOBBF AR HKS'000 liabilities position position collateral) placed out amount  agreements Total
ERIBMR Financial liabilities
RS Deposits from banks 360,314 - 360314 (360,314) - - 1575922 1,936,236
fE4RIA Derivative financial instruments 1,469,460 - 1069060 (1,11953)  (305543) 44381 370455 1,839,915
RIFRZERNEE Trading liabilities 498,069 - 498,069  (498,069) - - - 498,069
HitERE KB Other accounts and accruals 371,826 - 371,826  (371,826) - - TAT5578 7,847,404

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5
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44, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting agreement
but not offset on the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

Reaws  neapy  DRESAMEBRIRA
WRER  gmEn  SBZEREE
HHYEED BIEveR Related amounts not set
smemeE  gesg  ofintheconsoldated YRR
6ross Net statement of REIRTT
amountsof  amounts of financial position 2R
recognised financial ~ $BTE SERE
ERRER financial assets  (BFEIERE 8%
BEMBE  liabilitiesset  presented it Amounts
Gross offinthe inthe Financial Bl not subject
amountsof ~ consolidated consolidated instruments  IR&IEIE to
recognised  statementof  statement (including Cash FE  enforceable
203128317 At 31 December 2023 financial financial  of financial non-cash collateral Net netting =
LB id)n HKS'000 assets position position collateral) received amount  agreements Total
THEE Financial assets
frE&mIa Derivative financial instruments 3,324,635 - 332463 (197336)  (1,493,009) 1,034,290 21514 3,566,149
Resamn Reasy  IRERGUIBITEA
RERN WRER HEZERRE
HESERED fRr4R Related amounts not set
CHBELE BETE offin the consolidated R RAIE
Gross Net statement of REIETT
amountsof  amounts of financial position 258
recognised financial ~ $BTE e
ERRER financial ~ liabilities (BEIEERE 288
BEMBE  assetsset  presented o) Amounts
Gross  offinthe inthe  Financial BE#R not subject
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments RelR to
recognised  statementof  statement (including Cash FE  enforceable
ABFNA3NA At 31 December 2023 financial financial  of financial non-cash collateral Net netting =
LEEFlid)n HKS'000 liabilities position position  collateral)  placed out amount  agreements Total
tHEE Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,849,838 - 1849838 (1,849,838) E = 635,006 2,485,044
fTE&mIg Derivative financial instruments 1,086,501 - 1,086,501 (19733) (228572 60,593 192918 1279419
RIERGRRNEE Trading liabilities 99,853 g 99,853 (99,853) = = 2 99,853
HEftERERTER Other accounts and accruals 47317 g 47311 (447377) = - 7629389 8,076,766
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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1. BXRTELER

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as
part of the accompanying information to the consolidated financial
statements and does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

20245 20234
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023

BAREBLLE Capital adequacy ratio
—EiERE—R - Common Equity Tier 1 16.9% 16.2%
——#R - Tier1 17.6% 16.9%
—h8 - Total 21.0% 21.2%

202412831 H K2023F12831H 2 EAR T B
EEZ T ARIRITRVAR S AR (BRI 2£ERTT
R A#ERTT (FE)) BIRGERTTE &) 7B
HEZEBBENERE ZEAT LR
HEHEEE BEITIZREAIRIERLR

RIBEEBRITENREG > KIRITHEBEMIE
TRETERTELLREMR/ER RPIFE
IRTTARBTARRPIRTEEENREKRK
ERTT (PR BETARPEIRTEEER
MRE

BT GR1TE (8B RA) > BRAAERER
BEEAR K EHMBRKRE 2 BN ERETIER
Z~$R17 49 B http://www.dahsing.com » I B AL LL
TE#EEL http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/
about_us/regulatory_disclosures.htmli’%]\ °

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023 represents the consolidated position of the Bank
(covering BCM and DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy
ratio takes into account market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject
to the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
regulations and DSB China is subject to the Mainland banking
regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory
capital and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s
website at http://www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the
following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.html.



2. 1ARREER

2. LEVERAGE RATIO

20245 20234

12H31H 12831H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

BIRLEE Leverage ratio 11.6% 11.2%

LR ARBITZERER R Z R RIRE R T
R HRGR R E

ARERITE KB RAD) > BEAKEER
BRI ZBHNER S TENARREITEE
http://www.dahsing.com » W F] & L T~ B % i8
4% http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.htmliE A ©

3. BN

The above ratios represent the consolidated position of the Bank
and are computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital
adequacy ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio
is published in the Bank’s website at http://www.dahsing.com and
is accessible at the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/
html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2024 2023

MBNEAERFEER

MENEMERF LER T A SRTT (BRI IR
FARFERTT (PE)) R BEESERE BT
R RE MR LR AV BB T 18 - R E
PMEAERFEERTHIRIR (BR17 5% OREnd) BRI 51
o

FRITABBEMIRITERBEEBIRTEMS
pliETREMEESER RPIFERITRE
STARIRPIRITEEE B RIRE R AR IRIT (F
Bl BB T ARTEIRI TR EE BRI E

Liquidity maintenance ratio 64.2% 64.0%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated LMR of the Bank (covering BCM
and DSB China) for the financial year. The LMR is computed in
accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject
to the liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB
China is subject to the Mainland banking regulations.
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4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD
and other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of
the total net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December
2024 and the corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The net position is calculated
in the basis of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency

BERE option contracts.
H{thsh ShiESE

TRPT Other Total

2024F12H31H At 31 December 2024 =T AR Macau foreign foreign
TEEREE AT Equivalent in HKS millions US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 86,544 16,024 9,382 9,705 121,655
REaRE Spot liabilities (62,076) (15,871) (10,013) (10,501) (98,461)
BHAE A Forward purchases 219,156 61,169 = 24,289 304,614
=B Forward sales (240,063) (63,041) = (23,499) (326,603)
MR RE Net options position (1,323) 1,516 = 58 251
£/ (9 %358 Net long/(short) position 2,238 (203) (631) 52 1,456
HMshtE  SMESE

gl Other Total

2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 e BT ARE Macau foreign foreign
HEEREEET Equivalent in HKS millions US dollars Euro  Renminbi Pataca  currencies  currencies
REEE Spot assets 80,496 1,054 16,286 10,028 10,091 117,955
RE&aE Spot liabilities (56,183) (1,580) (15,414) (10,625) (7,521) (91,323)
BHEA Forward purchases 87,748 2,429 31,383 - 19,741 141,301
BB Forward sales (110,039) (1,577) (32,820) - (22,389)  (166,825)
HAREFE Net options position (420) (34) 532 - 3 81
&/ (R BFE Net long/(short) position 1,602 292 (33) (597) (75) 1,189
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(a)

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed by

531 percentage covered by collateral
2024%12H31H 2023%F12H31H
At 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2023
Bk B
BrhingE EE
SRR (RPE AR IR
ZESL ZEDL
% of gross % of gross
loans and loans and
KRIEEER advances  REEBMHEER advances
Outstanding covered by Outstanding covered by
LOBHFITi3R HKS'000 balance collateral balance collateral
HEEBEHANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEHEm Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 6,425,975 60.6 6,908,262 60.1
—NERE - Property investment 23,066,021 91.0 23,767,506 914
—ERI - Financial concerns 5,154,554 4.8 3,607,794 14.0
—IRELL - Stockbrokers 1,441,956 62.8 1,240,252 46.9
—HEE T EE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,298,542 82.6 4,791,670 88.5
—HliE - Manufacturing 1,400,285 63.2 1,684,066 67.7
—BRKRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,883,028 77.0 2,662,549 80.8
—R4ES) - Recreational activities 48,882 94.3 62,840 9.1
—EHRE - Information technology 48,392 43.1 29,760 50.8
—Hfth - Others 5,665,507 67.4 6,062,815 75.7
50,433,142 72.5 50,817,514 77.1
fEA Individuals
-BEREEHEHE - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
AAZEERE K Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
MEEEERHEIEFEN Participation Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 414,186 98.5 467,752 99.3
—EEHMEENEEN - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,561,360 99.8 34,954,353 99.9
—(ERFEM - Credit card advances 3,645,014 - 3,841,087 =
—Hth - Others 13,998,682 53.7 13,530,504 50.4
51,619,242 80.2 52,793,696 79.9
EEEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 102,052,384 76.4 103,611,210 785
BESWE FH) Trade finance (Note (1)) 4,902,455 65.7 5,624,799 73.1
EEBLUMERNER (H2)  Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 31,419,446 58.5 33,813,467 56.8
138,374,285 72.0 143,049,476 73.2
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(Continued)

(a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed by
percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and merchandising
trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines issued by the
HKMA.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(Continued)

(a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed by
percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
constituting 10% or more of the total balance of loans and
advances to customers, the attributable amount of impaired
loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment
allowances are as follows:

=04
BEAREE P B e Pk B2
AEER BiasfEa P ER3 AL
(PkER3) Gross loans REEE Stage 1and
KREBER Impaired  and advances Stage 3 Stage 2
2024F12A31H At 31 December 2024 Outstanding loans overdue for impairment impairment
LBBF AT HKS'000 balance (Stage3)  over 3 months allowances allowances
HEBFERNEN Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEeRH Industrial, commercial and financial
—WEKE - Property investment 23,066,021 2,070,468 1,861,213 229,563 93,597
BA Individuals
—EEHMAET - Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 33,561,360 288,477 257,041 83,063 21,261
EEBLIMEBNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 31,419,446 708,103 704,815 178,072 137,442
Eak
HEAREE P R R P ER2
HEE™M Big3fEAa FEEL3 HEERE
(F&ER3) Gross loans BEEE Stage 1 and
RMEEMEER Impaired  and advances Stage 3 Stage 2
2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 Outstanding loans overdue for impairment impairment
LBBF AT HKS'000 balance (Stage3)  over3months allowances allowances
HEEFERNEN Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEeH Industrial, commercial and financial
/S - Property investment 23,767,506 470,739 546,729 31,720 64,506
BA Individuals
—HEHEMET - Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 34,954,353 170,938 179,532 31,933 27,440
EEELUMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 33,813,467 1,269,535 995,898 147,671 149,084
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(Continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities,
which includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by the
Bank and its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

BEAREZA HERRRIN

HIERER HIERRE

20245 2024 On-balance Off-balance taegE
LB TFTisn HKS'000 sheet exposure  sheet exposure Total exposures
1. FRREFT PRETESN 1. Central government, central government-owned

RERERBABNGE entities and their subsidiaries and joint ventures

NI = UNST)] (“IVs) 5,198,753 = 5,198,753
2. WA MABEE R 2. Local governments, local government-owned

BERENBARDNEGE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs

YN 1,170,713 367,215 1,537,928
3. BAEEFERM 2 BRHNTE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or other

FEI Padth pY 3L R EL A R entities incorporated in Mainland China and their

RERBARNEGE QT subsidiaries and JVs 7,657,826 559,311 8,217,137
4 RAELHE-EZRzH 4, Other entities of central government not reported

RETRVE i in item 1 above 4,128,734 57,523 4,186,257
5 AAELHETIRZRY 5. Other entities of local governments not reported

A TR E S in item 2 above 857,213 = 857,213
6. BEEFEAMLUIN 2 BR 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China or

LR BRI IZ B entities incorporated outside Mainland China

g s RERR where the credits are granted for use in

FEIA B Mainland China 8,738,887 435,408 9,174,295
7. HWRX ZHF » HERGBRRIE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are

YR AMEIRRTER R considered to be non-bank Mainland China

HVEREE exposures 462,266 1,677 463,943

28,214,392 1,421,134 29,635,526
FRITRANMBITRE AT Z Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
NsEEE s EEA subsidiary bank after provision 238,964,613
BEEBBRANGELEES On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
Btk total assets 11.81%

T LA E2RGHEEETRERBEKAMEE
FPREZ

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
other balances of claims on the customers.
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(Continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)

BESBERA BESERIN
RIEREE HIEREE
20235 2023 On-balance Off-balance fREREE
LOBEFTIsn HKS'000 sheet exposure  sheet exposure  Total exposures
1 PRET R REFT R SR 1. Central government, central government-
HWB AR EGERE owned entities and their subsidiaries
and JVs 5,335,030 - 5,335,030
2. MRS S BT A I R K 2. Local governments, local government-owned
HWB AR EGERE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 767,841 599,965 1,367,806
3. BETEFER 2z BRFEFEANM 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
AL E S R E B AR other entities incorporated in Mainland
HNEERT China and their subsidiaries and JVs 9,281,772 1,578,580 10,860,352
4 REMLRE-BERZPRBG 4. Other entities of central government not
R E S reported in item 1 above 4,812,981 69,574 4,882,555
5 REMLRETBERZMABG 5. Other entities of local governments not
R E S reported in item 2 above 760,676 135,329 896,005
6. BEEREMMMUINZ BRI 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
FREI R AN AR 32 B AR » T China or entities incorporated outside
W R EVE R R E P Mainland China where the credits are
granted for use in Mainland China 9,777,277 274,183 10,051,460
7. HXZHF  HERBwREs 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
FREIAREIFR TERR P BVERER are considered to be non-bank Mainland
China exposures 475,299 344 475,643
31,210,876 2,657,975 33,868,851
FERIT R EL MR T B A E) 2 1% Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland subsidiary bank
BERZEES after provision 242,059,031
BEABRNNGREGLEESHED On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
of total assets 12.89%
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross loans and advances to customers and
overdue loans by geographical area

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are
classified according to the location of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer
applies when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an
area which is different from that of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to
customers, impaired loans and advances to customers (Stage 3),
overdue loans and advances to customers, Stage 3, and Stage 1
and Stage 2 impairment allowances by geographical area.

HEEFRER
ERER REX (LK) BHERER PR 1R P ER2
RBRAaEE Impaired RE® PEER3 AEERE
Gross loans and Overdue AEZERE Stage 1 and
loans and advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2
2024128318 At 31 December 2024 advances to customers advances to impairment impairment
LCEBFT05)R HKS'000 customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
& Hong Kong 108,718,160 4,018,261 3,391,470 753,706 537,887
FHE Pt Mainland China 13,729,341 221,449 219,787 69,748 73,190
B Macau 13,527,103 197,973 197,973 49,535 35,765
Hit Others 2,399,681 - - - 12,514
138,374,285 4,437,683 3,809,230 872,989 659,356

HERFER
BREM KBS (EH3) BERFEM PEER 1R P B2
KBAAELE Impaired KBHR Fe& ER3 REEE
Gross loans and Overdue HEERE Stage 1 and
loans and advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2
2023128311 () At 31 December 2023 (Note) advances to customers advances to impairment impairment
LGB 05 HKS'000 customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
&5 Hong Kong 112,872,652 1,867,122 1,570,531 351,322 523,344
HE P Mainland China 14,163,149 726,783 407,022 98,187 74,568
e Macau 14,012,453 185,656 185,656 35,746 19,272
Hit Others 2,001,222 - 4,380 - 10,817
143,049,476 2,779,561 2,167,589 485,255 628,001

= BE2023F12B831HMERZSEEETE
5 UREREE YR

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5

Note: The amounts presented for the position as at 31 December 2023 have been
revised to conform with current year’s presentation.
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(Continued)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures
to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and
is derived according to the location of the counterparties after
taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk
from one country to another is recognised if the claims against
a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in a different
country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in a different country. Only regions
constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international claims
after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are disclosed.

JESRITRAA I AE
Non-bank private sector
FESRTT
SRS &R
Non-bank FANMERE fERELEEE
2024128310 At 31 December 2024 R1T B financial  Non-financial Total
BEET In millions of HKS Banks Official sector institutions  private sector claims
BEEHL Offshore centres 2,460 9,445 7,544 144,685 164,134
—Hi  &E - of which: Hong Kong 1,923 8,240 7,268 128,335 145,766
BERPEAE Developing Asia and Pacific 30,642 1,314 4,502 21,870 58,328
—H REIRgH - of which: Mainland China 18,724 879 4,341 15,065 39,009
JERITRAANIEE
Non-bank private sector
FEERTT
TR &R
Non-bank FA AR
2023%12H318 At 31 December 2023 1T EA&E financial  Non-financial EHEAzE
EET In millions of HKS Banks Official sector institutions private sector Total claims
BEEL Offshore centres 5913 8,819 7,129 158,640 180,501
—Hrh &8 - of which: Hong Kong 5,197 7,109 6,728 142,097 161,131
BEATLAR Developing Asia and Pacific 25,060 1,271 3,173 16,882 46,386
—Erh  hE R - of which: Mainland China 15,920 1,100 3,016 11,550 31,586
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 41 to 241, comprise:

« the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024;

«  the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

«  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

«  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

+  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

+ the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to
impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

Refer to notes 4 (a) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
impairment allowances of HK$1,532,345 thousand
in respect of its advances to customers.

The determination of the impairment allowances
involves complex methodologies and significant
management judgement. During the year, the
uncertainties in economic environments in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, including but not
limited to the dynamic situation in the real estate
sector, have continued to impact the inherent risk
and estimation uncertainty involved in estimating
impairment allowances.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECL include:

. Segmentation of portfolios based on
credit risk characteristics, selection of
appropriate model methodologies and
determination of key measurement
parameters and assumptions;

. Criteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit
risk (“SICR”), or a default;

. Determination of macro-economic
forecasts, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings; and

. The estimated future cash flows for loans
and advances to customers in Stage 3.

Impairment allowances on advances to customers
is an audit focus due to the high inherent risk
given the uncertainty of estimates, adoption
of complex models, involvement of significant
management judgements and assumptions.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls for the measurement of
impairment allowances on advances to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

. We tested the key controls over selection
of ECL model methodologies and
segmentation of portfolios, determination
and approval of key measurement
parameters and assumptions such as
internal credit rating, staging, macro-
economic forecasts and their related
probability weightings;

. We involved our credit risk experts in
evaluating the model methodologies for
ECL measurement including segmentation
of portfolios, key measurement parameters
and assumptions;

. We tested the key controls over timely
identification, assessment and reporting of
credit-impaired advances to customers;

. We tested the key controls over estimated
future cash flows and calculation of
present values with respect to advances to
customers in Stage 3;

. On a sampling basis, we assessed the
appropriateness of the internal credit
ratings, management’s judgements used
in determining significant increases in
credit risk and identification of credit-
impaired advances to customers based on
the borrowers’ financial and non-financial
information and other evidence provided by
management;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers (Continued)

We evaluated management’s selection
of macro-economic forecasts, economic
scenarios and weightings assigned. We
independently assessed the reasonableness
of the macro-economic forecasts by
comparing them to available public
information, and other current macro-
economic conditions;

For selected samples of advances to
customers in Stage 3, we assessed the
reasonableness of key management
judgements and estimates used in the ECL
calculation such as estimated future cash
flow from borrowers, collateral valuations,
range of scenarios and scenarios weightings;
and

We checked and evaluated the financial
statements disclosures in relation to the
measurement of impairment allowances on
advances to customers.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the models, significant judgements and
assumptions, as well as key parameters used by
management in measuring impairment allowances
on advances to customers were supported by
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

4317 Branch Hhiik Address E:E Tel f#E Fax

A¥IRITHERAE

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

EBFST BERFPLES S =Skt E

Aberdeen Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3, 2554 5463 2554 0843
Aberdeen Centre

EEBEPOST EREBEIFEETHOEE 1210575

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 25291338 31102818
No. 18 Harcourt Road

HRE D17 7 #7875 BT JE 557 184685 s B i 2= FP OV T Kot R

Causeway Bay G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre, 2891 2201 2591 6037
No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

hES1T B E P 195R IR IR A B M AR &

Central Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427

MWaWRT 16 A 2 £ 18293-2995% i = A B ! T 15-225% &5 K 3 &

Fortress Hill Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

BEMSIT B M B 135 2 H A E it TASEES

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, 13 Yuk Sau Street, Happy Valley 2572 0708 25720718

BIEWHT B B R B 100SR A TE I AT T 2182342355748

Heng Fa Chuen Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 2558 7485 2889 2520
100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

HEBUEDTT T 2iE1645E

Johnston Road 164 Johnston Road, Wan Chai 2572 8849 28913743

EAR1T I B {H433-4375R R A B

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 2811 4474

BRERZT | & BT 2 EARER248TK AR O TGT, GTAKGSSE &

Queen’s Road East Shop No. G7, GTA & G8, Ground Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 23218912 2598 5300
248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai

BHEERT A RBIE5T-8TSR A R IEH T GesE R

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

AEEST B G IE 7H443-4535% 31 T 15-165% 5

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

LIRA1T IR EIE 2885 7 1@ R S KB M T B2SRAIE —18BE

Sheung Wan G/F &1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 28516281 25812216

K217 78 B R A DI KA B 15 2 B & # 50158 58

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road & 2884 4802 28843151

No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5



4317 Branch Hhihik Address E:E Tel f#E Fax

A¥IRITHERAE

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

RVEDT RV B1E8895% ZE AN /0yl 157 &

Cheung Sha Wan Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road 23610951 2958 0985

BIZEHDT BB R £ AT199% B R A E 5 NASR &

Chong Yip Street Shop A, G/F., Montery Plaza, 19 Chong Yip Street, Kwun Tong 23893911 2389 8239

AR 1T AT TS M 72857 S FE R Mt T 345 ER » 118258 &5 R 212358

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop No. 3 on 2/F, 23658110 23635917
Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EHRT - B BUE3355%

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 23850161 2782 0993

EEMWAT = ¥R F MR 75 1B 10AM T N26E Kz F5ik &7

Mei Foo Sun Chuen Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V, 2370 2660 23702006
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

BEA DT BE A S 2B 6975

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 23919104

REHDT B IE AR 2E AT 10573 TASS

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 21918103 2191 8723

EEERZ1T LB B ELR E S —HA Z18F5A-F6ASE

Telford Gardens Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza I, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967

RIVIEZIT R 7D IR 2 E66-705R & TEAE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 2366 9121 23111491

BEAMWAT BAFEARAAO FEEEH S G3CHR &

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

p::iruba Ky H R 3t 57 2 B 56 151K

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 23859285

MED1T 58 B A0 BR 88 EZB B35 1 S A11-A1452110-1125% &4

Fanling Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza, 2677 8830 2669 9950
88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

BED1T 2E35 75 bR 1785% B E Hh 25k A

Kwai Fong Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung 2487 8033 2489 1253

=30 %K) 76 B R R M % 15 The LOHASEE 141841457

LOHAS Park Shop Unit 414, Level 4, The LOHAS, 1 Lohas Park Road, 28382023 27196373
Tseung Kwan O
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4317 Branch Hhiik Address E:E Tel f#E Fax
A¥IRITHERAE
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
BRELESDT ¥R LLIFE 7D ER6085% 55 #2 LLI B35 = 1833558 &
Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan
BRIRAT B 1) A WUEE335% B T} 108 D-ES5E &
Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 24351368 24351582
BT P9 22 15168-2365/% 8 R 151152 93-955% &4
Ocean Walk Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130
WIRE ST 787V 1818286-2885% 3 T
Sha Tsui Road G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 26151510 26151099
WEHT ) EYF B R 0 o9 4
Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 26012413
EKHT K B B -508R K A HY T B9 4R
Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 26715030 2672 1533
KFA1T KL 2 BB L5% K 4 B 35 5358 K2 5457 &6
Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, 1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637
KES1T VDK BiE55-565% R fEA114-185% S 1B {EE #h N 1257 &
Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 26911272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
KIKE BT FKERIBHIRKR IO R A5 1EL12098 55
Tin Shui Wai Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre, 2448 9008 24489112
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai
1 E R 18 B2 5BMCP Discovery—1812755 &
&R RO 1T
Tseung Kwan O Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O 29272101 2702 2305
Metro City Plaza
EERT EEAEI4-165 B AE
Tsuen Wan Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan 2492 8102 2415 0984
wPIH T T PI4BE Witin2- 6297 B HE I T 49 RS9 4
Tuen Mun Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion, 24416218 2441 6613
52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
RANT AU LY BROR B SR 155 BRI/ B 3t T~ 23518 &
Tung Chung Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street, 2109 3484 2109 4353
Tung Chung, Lantau Island
TLEABLE ST TR E WA BS T RAEL162-16858 B A iE 3 T CSE &
Yuen Long Castle Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road, 2479 4555 2479 4522
Peak Road Yuen Long

FIND1T
Shenzhen

FRERYITmE L EE L EEREANE R EEBH O

P9 EA2182301522304-b (EB#4R : 518000)

Unit 2301 & 2304-b, Phase 4, Tower 2, Qianhai Kerry Centre,
Qianhai, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China (Postcode: 518000)

(86-755) 29392399 (86-755) 2883 9871
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D1THER (Himsre)
LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

4317 Branch

Hthik Address

E&E Tel

BRAERRITROARAE

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

B2 1T
Macau Branches

AT

Main Branch
RERT
Almirante Lacerda
HEDT

lao Hon

BEST

Kin Wa

S 01T
Mercadores
EHHT
Nape

BEMDT
Palha
StSH2T
Pedro Coutinho
alsiT

Toi San

7 K B ER5T25%

Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572

R LE TR £ B KB B8 43-BEE

Avenida Do Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B

BN S — 1455t TE K E (5—H) # FACEE
Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC
BIVIRE B B BR2457% R 2 KB S5 13EE i N ARE
Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,
Bloco 13R/CA

S K 74058 T ARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/CA

RNE L EIH3635RE L A R0 FOREE

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpgao, No. 363,

Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

B E M fT45TH AR

Rua da Palha, No. 4, R/C A

= it S 725-DE S SR #h T BEE

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B

B UEREDIEE+— i {EE 5 18/ 1 T CCE
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 28316191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2821 6523

(853) 2823 8483

KFEDT

Taipa Branch

UKF R FIEW 1T

Prince Flower City
Taipa

UKAFIR R R F T30 — RER B 3t 18
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BIRE DT

Coloane Branch
BIRDT

Coloane

FRIR B A 7SR M DR
Largo do Matadouro No. 7, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374
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4317 Branch

ik Address

EEE Tel

KHIRIT (PE) ARAE
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

1T
Head Office

HEWL T
Shenzhen Nanshan
Sub-Branch

BEMND1T

Guangzhou

obi=3 by
Shanghai

Aa71T
Nanchang
I A1T
Zhenjiang
#HLZIT

Foshan Sub-Branch

FR 31 T3 %R 7 BR B8 50165 S B 100 A [EARE151E
15/F, Tower A, Kingkey100 Building, 5016 Shennan Road East,
Shenzhen

AR L@ EE O T3t S B 50 Ob&) 4 THRAEIB1235

Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North),

Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen
EREEMNHHEEE A RILR60458 IR TAIELE

1/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604 North Renmin Road,

Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

EiEmIT A& R AR 50157 L8 H M ESH15/Z06, 078 T
Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza,

No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai
IAEEAamRNEELERI365E1-2E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi
JIERE R h R & #8595k

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu
ERE ML ™IBEE S 3R EE M IReSR (R A E 5 0
15RIZ 55318

31/F, Tower 1, Poly Business Center, 8 Wenhua South Road,
Lecong, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-755) 2519 9069

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 5551 2808

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8880 9996

(86-757) 8513 3555

RITRITARAE 2024FF 5



Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#iR1THARAT]
26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
EREFERKRKER248FEAMMER AP 0261

Telephone EEE : (852) 2507 8866 o i
FaCSimile %E . (852) 2598 5052 \@ Paper | Supporting responsible forestry
FS B3R | I AREMMK

: . C S
Website #4841t : www.dahsing.com iscon FSC° C176382
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